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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED .
(Formerly ‘TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED?)

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinien

We have audited the accompanying Ind-AS financial statements of Tata Motors Finance
Limited (Formerly ‘Tata Motors Finance Solutions Limited’) (“the Company”). which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended and the Notes to the Ind-AS financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind-AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, ('the Act”’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (Ind-AS) and with other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, the profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind-AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind-AS
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind-AS financial
staternents under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter

| How the matier was addressed in our audit

1) Impairment of Loans to Customers

Gross loans: Rs. 32460,17.33 lakhs for year ended March 31, 2024
Provision: Rs. 135013.43 lakhs as at March 31, 2024

LA

of financial assets”,

Refer to the accounting policies in ""Note 3(x)(4)(iii) to the Financial Statements: Impairment
Note 3 (i) to the Financial Statements: Material Accounting Policies- use
of estimates and judgments” and "Note 9 to the Ind AS Financial Statements: Loans"

Subjective estimate:

Under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments,
allowance for loan losses is determined using
expected credit loss (ECL) estimation mode].
The estimation of ECL on financial
instruments involves significant judgement
and estimates. The key areas where we
identified greater levels of management
Jjudgement and therefore increased levels of
audit focus in the Company's estimation of
ECLs are:

e Data inputs - The application of ECL
model requires several data inputs. This
increases the risk of completeness and
accuracy of the data that has been used to

. create assumptions in the model.

e Model estimations - Inherently
judgmental models are wused to
estimate ECL  which involves
determining Probabilities of Defaunlt
{("PD"), Loss Given Default
(""LGD"), and Exposures at Default
("EAD"). The PD and the LGD are
the key drivers of estimation
complexity in ECL and as a result are
considered the most significant
judgmental aspect of the Company's
meodelling approach.

» Qualitative adjustments -
Adjustments to the model-driven
ECL results are recorded by the

Our key audit procedures inciuded:

We performed end to end process
walkthroughs to identify the key systems,
applications and controls used in ECL
processes. We tested the relevant manual
(including spreadsheet controls), general IT
and application controls over key systems used
in ECL process.

Key aspects of our controls testing involved
the following:

e Testing the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls over
the completeness and accuracy of the
key iputs, data and assumptions into
the Ind AS 109 impairment models

o Testing the 'Govemance Framework'
controls over validation,
implementation and model monitoring
in accordance with Reserve Bank of
India guidance.

e Testing the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls over
the application of the staging criteria.

o Testing key controls relating to
selection and implementation of
material macro-economic variables and
the controls over the scenario selection
and application of probability weights

e Testing management's controls over
authorisation and calculation of post
model adjustments and management

Management to address known overlays.

impair}nent model limitations or e Testing management's controls on
emerging trends as well as risks not compliance with Ind AS 109
captured by models.  These disclosures related to ECL.
adjustments arc inherently uncertain

and significant management
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Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

judgement is involved in estimating
these amounts.

The underlying forecasts and assumptions
used in the estimate of allowance for
impairment loss are subject to uncertainties
which are often outside the control of the
Company. Given the size of loan portfolio
relative to the balance sheet and the impact
of impairment allowance on the financial
statements, we have considered this as a key
audit matter.

Disclosures

The disclosures regarding the Company's
application of Ind AS 109 are key to
explaining the key judgements and material
inputs to the Ind AS 109 ECL results.

e Testing key controls operating over the
information technology systermn in
relation to loan impairment.

e including system access and system
change management, program
development and computer operations.

Test of details
Key aspects of our testing included:

e Sample testing over key inputs, data and
assumptions impacting ECL calculations to
assess the completeness, accuracy and
relevance of data and reasonableness of
economic forecasts, weights, and model
assumptions applied.

o Mode]l calculations testing through re-
performance, where possible.

» Test of details of post model adjustments,
considering the size and complexity of
management overlays, in order to assess
the reasonableness of the adjustments by
challenging key assumptions, inspecting
the calculation methodology and tracing a
sample of the data used back to source data.

¢ Assessing disclosures - We assessed
whether the disclosures appropriately
disclose and address the uncertainty which
exists when determining ECL. In addition,
we asgessed whether the disclosure of the
key judgements and assumptions made wasg
sufficiently clear.

2) Assessment of Impairment testing of goodwill

Refer to the "Note 138 to the Financial Statements: Goodwill .

The Company has goodwill of Rs. 18,025.25
lakhs as at March 31, 2024. The goodwill has
been allocated to the Used vehicle cash-
generating units ('CGU"). The annual
impairment testing of goodwill is considered
to be a key audit matter due to the significant
management judgement and estimates
involved in determining the assumptions to
arrive at the fair value of the CGU. The fair
value of the CGU is determined using market
and  income-based  approach.  These

QOur key audit procedures included:

s Evaluating the appropriateness of the
assumptions applied to key inputs such as
future income projections and interest
rates, operating costs, long-term growth
rates, in Hne with externally derived data as
well as our own assessments based on our
knowledge of the Company and the
industry.
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Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in cur audit

approaches use several key assumptions,
including estimates of future business,
interest rates, operating costs, terminal value
growth rates, the weighted-average cost of
capital (discount

rate), and consideration of comparable
market multiples.

performing our own sensitivity analysis,
which included assessing the effect of
reasonably possible reductions in growth
rates and forecast cash flows to evaluate the
impact on the currently estimated
headroom between the carrying value and
the estimated fair value of the CGU.
evaluating the adequacy of the financial
statement disclosures, imncluding
disclosures  of key  assumptions,
judgements and sensitivities.

3) Information technology

Information Technology ("IT") systems and
controls.

The Company's key financial accounting and
reporting processes are highly dependent on
the automated confrols in information
systems, such that there exists a risk that gaps
in the IT control environment could result in
the financial accounting and reporting
records being materially misstated. We have
focussed on ‘user access management’,
‘change management®, ‘interface controls’
and ‘system application controls® over key
financial accounting and reporting systems.

Our audit procedures to assess the IT system
access management included the following:

Involved IT specialists as part of the audit for
the purpose of testing General IT controls and
application controls (automated and semi-
automated controls) to determine the accuracy
of the information produced by the Company’s
IT system,

With respect to the “In-scope IT systems”
identified as relevant to the audit of the
financial statements and financial reporting
process of the Company, we have evaluated
and tested relevant IT general conirols.

On such “In-scope IT systems” we have
performed the following procedures:

We tested a sample of key controls
operating over the information technology
in relation to financial accounting and
reporting systems, including system access
and system change management, program
development and computer operations.

We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls over user
access  management  which  inchudes
management of user access and
enforcement of segregation of duties,

For a selected group of key controls over
financial and reporting systems, we
independently performed procedures to
determine the operating effectiveness of
application controls. For those controls that
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Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

were changed during the year, we tested the

. change management process.

¢ We evaluated the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of the
significant accounts related IT key
automated controls which are relevant to
the accuracy of system calculation, and the
consistency of data transmission.

o Other areas that were independently
assessed included password policies,
systerz configurations, system interface
controls, controls over changes to
applications and that business users and
developers did not have access to migrate
changes in the preduction environment and
the privileged access to applications,
operating system or databases is restricted
o authorized personnel.

¢ For system implemented, we evaluated the
program development related controls to
determine whether adequate controls have
been established to ensure that system
implemented was authorized, tested and
approved.

» With respect to controls managed at
vendor, we have reviewed the SOC Type I
and II reports.

¢ Additionally, we have checked the
compliance with respect to audit trail as per
amendment in section 128 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company is
compliant with respect to the audit trail
requirements,

Information Other than the Ind-AS financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director’s Report, Management Discussion and Analysis and
Report on Corporate Governance but does not include the Ind-AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Other information is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Ind-AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind-AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind-AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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When we read this other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and
review the steps taken by the management to communicate to those in receipt of the other
information, if previously issued, to inform them of the revision,

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind-AS financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind-AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and the cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Ind-AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Ind-AS financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind-AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind-AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind-AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management,

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Lvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
inciuding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind-AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the andit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govermance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind-AS financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
int extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

In terms of National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Order dated May 12, 2023 (published by
NCLT on June 135, 2023}, (*the Order’) the NBFC business of erstwhile “Tata Motors Finance
Limited’ (TMFL) (currently known as TMF Business Services Limited), a fellow subsidiary
of the Company was demerged with the Company. Upon filing the copy of Order sanctioning
the Scheme of Demerger (*Scheme’) with the Registrar of Companies {‘'ROC™), on June 30,
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2023, the Scheme became effective and NBFC business of TMFL merged with the Company.
The Scheme became effective from the appointed date i.e. April 1, 2023. To comply with
requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS 103 - (‘Business Combinations’), the restatement of the
financial statements has been given effect from the date of control 1.e. April 1, 2022, (Refer
Note 35)

Accordingly, the figures in the ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(audited-published) have been restated to give the effect of the Scheme on which we have
issued an unmodified opinion dated April 28, 2023 and basis the figures stated in the financial
statements of erstwhile TMFL in relation to the NBFC Business which has been extracted by
the Management from the financial statements of TMFL, which were audited by another firm
of Chartered Accountants who have issued an unmodified opinion dated April 28, 2023,

With respect to above, we have audited the climinations / adjustments which have been
reported in the financial statements. However, we have not issued a separate report on these
restated figures since these have been audited by respective auditors in respective years.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (*the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the "Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity, dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind-AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the Company
as on March 31, 224, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors
of the Company are disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a
Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f} With respect to the adequacy of the imternal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.



KALYAMIWALLA

g)

h)

& MISTRY LLF

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending htigations on its financial
pesition in its Ind-AS financial statements — Refer Note 34 to the Ind-AS financial
staternents.

b. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losges, if any, on long-term contracts
including dertvative contracts.

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

i. The Management has represented that, 1o the best of it’s knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guaraniee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

ii. The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign
entities {“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bepeficiares;

ili. Based on our audit procedures we have considered it reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i1)
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year. Hence, compliance
with section 123 of the Act is not applicable.
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f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with,

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable with
effect from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements
for record retention is not applicable for the financial vear ended March 31, 2024,

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. 104607W / W100166
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Tata Motors Finance Limited (Formerly ‘TATA MOTORS FINANCE
SOLUTIONS LIMITED?)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's report- March 31, 2024

(Referred to in 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement' section of our
report of even date)

We report that:

i

ii.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right
of Use assets),

{b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets.

(c) The Company has a program of physical verification to cover all the items of
Property, Plant and Equipment at least once in three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were due for
verification during the year and were physically verified by the Management during
the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on verification.

(d) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination
of the records of the Company, the Company does not hold immovable properties
included under the head property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, clause 3(i)d)
of the Order is not applicable.

(e) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (includiang Right
of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(fy There are no precesdings being initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder,

(a} The Company is in the business of lending. The Company does not hold any physical
inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the Management and
based on the audit procedures performed by us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crore, in aggregate, at various points of time
during the year, from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets of the Company. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us and'based on audit procedures performed by us, the quarterly
returns filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions are in
agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company for the respective
quarters. :

i, The Company has made investments in companies and has granted secured and
unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company is in the principal business of giving loans, hence clause 3(iii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable. :

(b) According to the information and explanation given fo us, the investments made, and
- the conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

{c) In respect of loans and advances, in the nature of loans granted during the year in the
ordinary course of lending business, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest have been stipulated and the repayment of loan and receipts of
interest are generally regular except there were cases which were not repaid / paid when
they were due or were repaid / paid with a delay. Such loans have been accounted for
in accordance with the Company’s policy on asset classification and provisioning as
described in Note 3(x) to the Ind AS financial statements.

Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practicable to
furnish borrower-wise details of trregularities. However, such details are available with
the Company. For details of total loans and advances which were overdue as of March
31, 2024, Refer Note 43 to the Ind AS standalone financial statements.

{d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the following amounts are overdue for
more than ninety days from companies or any other parties to whom loan has been
granted. The Company has taken reasonable steps for recovery of the overdue amount
of principal and interest.

(Amount in lakhs)
No of cases Principal Interest Total Overdue | Remarks, if
Amount Overdue any
Overdue
48121 93818 21791 115609 -

(e) The Company is in the principal business of giving loans, Hence, clause 3(iii)(e) of the
Order is not applicable.
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The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. (Refer Note 47(b) to
the Ind AS Financial Statements) The details of the same are as follows:

{Rs. In lakhs)

Related Parties Promoter

Aggregate amount of
loans/ advances in
nature of loans -
Repayable on demand

{A) - Agreement does
not specify any terms
or

period of repavment

(B) 5464.66 8300

Total (A+B) 5464.66 8500
Percentage of loans/ 0.17 % 0.26 %
advances in nature of
loans fo the total loans

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no loans / guarantees or security provided in connection with any loan which have been
given to directors to any other person in whom the director is interested, therefore the
provisions of Section 185 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. According to
information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made investments
through more than two layers of investment companies in accordance with the
provisions of Section 186(1) of the Act. The other sub-sections of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is a systemically important non-deposit taking non-banking finance
company registered with RBI, and consequently is exempt from provisions of Sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under.
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the services rendered by the
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination
of the books of account, and records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in
the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including goods and
services tax , provident fund. employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, services
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax , cess and other material statutory
dues have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us,
the Company did not have any dues on account of sales tax, value added tax, duty of
customs and duty of excise. According to the information and explanations given to us,
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees state insurance,
income-tax, value added tax, goods and service tax. cess and other material statutory
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dues were In arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from
the date on when become payabie.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination
of records of the Company, the details of statutory dues referred to in sub- paragraph
(a) above which have not been deposited with the concerned authorities as on March

31, 2024, on account of dispute are given below;

(Rs. Lakhs)

IName of the statute MNature of Period to which AT Amouwtt Forum where dispute
dues the amount Inveolved as | unpaid as on is pending as on
relates on March March 2024 March 31, 2024
2024
Andhra Pradesh Vahue WAT F.V 2007- 08 to 1,005.28 &70.19 | High Cowrt of Andhma
Added Tax Act, 20065 2012~ 13 Pradesh
Andhra Pradesh Valse Penaly on F.Y 2007- 08 o 1,005.28 1.005.28 | High Cowt of Andhra
Added Tax Act, 2005 VAT 2012- 13 Pradesh
Andhra Pradesh Value VAT FY¥Y 2013- 140 2.213.49 1,475.66 | High Court of Andhra
Added Tax Act, 2005 2016- 17 Pradcsh
Andhra Pradesh Vahie Penakty on FYW 2013- 140 2,213.49 221249 | Hipgh Couwt of Andhra
Added Tax Act, 2005 VAT 2016~ 17 Pradesh
Arndhra Pradesh Value VAT APl 2017 o June 132.95 66.48] High Court of Andhra
Added Tax Act. 2005 2017 Pradesh
Andhra Pradesh Value Pemaly on  [April 2017 to June 132,95 132,95} High Court of Andhra
Added Tax Act, 2005 VAT 2017 Pradesh
West Bengal Vahwe Added VAT FY 2007~ 08 and 364.93 - Suprere Couwrt of India
Tax Act, 2005 FY 2011-12
Madhya Pradesh Vahwe EnbyTax F.Y 2013- 14 79.42 47.661 Appelate Authority,
Added Tax Act, 2006 Bhopal
Jharichand Value Added VAT F.y 2012-13 21.11 21,113 Jont Comurissionsr.
Tax Act, 2005 Jharkhand
Rajasthan Valoe Added Tax VAT F.¥Y.20i4-15 3.91 3.91 |Asgsistaryt Cormmissioner,
Act, 2003 Rajasthan Commercial
tare
Rajasthan Value Added Tax VAT F.Y. 2015-18 11.39 11.39 |Assistant Cormrmissioner,
Act, 2003 Rajasthan Commercial
tax
Goods and Service Tax GST F.Y, 2018-192 10,66 2.80 | Assistant Conmissioner
Aet, 2017 of State tax, Bihar
Goods and Service Tax GET F.Y. 2019-20 42.41 39.40 S Tax afficer,
Act, 2017 Jhavkhand
Goods and Service Tax GST F.Y. 2017-18 794,69 758,39 | Commissioner Appeals,
Act, 2017 Bihar
Goods and Service Tax Gs5T F.Y. 2017-18 Q.70 0,70 | Comrmissioner Appeals,
Act, 2017 Bibar
Goods and Service Tax G8T F.Y. 20(7-18 503.83 484.61 | Commissioner Appesals,
Act, 2017 Maharashus
Goods and Service Tax GST F.Y. 2017-18 47,50 45.27 | Commmissioner Appeals,
Act, 2017 Keralk
Goods and Scrvice Tax GST F.Y.2017-18 0.13 - Sales Tax Officer,
Act, 2017 Kerala
Goods and Service Tax GS8T F.Y, 201718 55.81 53.15 | Commissioner Appeals,
Act. 2017 Delhi
Goods and Service Tax GST FY. 2017-18 2.05 8.61 | Commissioner Appeals,
Act, 2017 Deli
Goods and Service Tax GST F.Y, 2017-18 .07 3.70 | Comumissioner Appeals,
Act, 2017 Telngana
Goods and Service Tax GST F.oY. 2017-18 15,781.09 15, 781.09 Hon'ble HC, TN
Act, 2017
Goods and Service Tax GET F.Y. 2017-18 139.59 132.90 | Comrissioner Appeals,
Act, 2017 Assant
Goods and Service Tax GST F.Y, 2017-18 Q.36 Q.36 | Cormmisgioner Appeals,
Act, 2017 Crdisha
Goods and Service Tax GET F.Y.2017-18 0.27 0.27 | Commnissioner Appeals,
Act, 2017 Odisha
Goods and Service Tax GET F.Y, 2018-19 1,080.40 1.023.39 | Commissioner Appeals,
Act, 2017 Bihar
Goods and Service Tax G5T EY. 201819 0.70 0.70 | Comumissioner Appeals,
Act, 2017 Bihar
Goods and Service Tax GST EY. 2018-19 5.69 5,69 | Commissioner Appeals,
Act, 2017 Odisha
Goods and Scrvice Tax GST F.Y.2018-19 277.44 277.44 | Commissioner Appealks,
Act, 2017 Delhi
Goods and Service Tax GST F.Y. 201819 19.92 19,92 | Commissioner Appceals,
Act, 2017 Gujarat
Madhya Pradesh Value VAT F.% 2016-17 13.53 10.15 | Addin Commissioner of
Added Tax Act, 2006 Commmercial Tax
Madhya Pradesh Value Enay Tax F.Y 2016-17 2.94 2.20 | Addin Commissioner of
Added Tax Act, 2066 Commereial Tax
Untarakhand Value Added VAT F.Y 2017-18 4.14 3.93 | Commissioner of Swate
Tax Act, 2005 Tax
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* the above disputed dues are transferred on Demerger (Refer Note 35 of Ind AS
Financial Statements)

vili.  There are no instances of any transactions not being recorded in the books of account

1X.

Xi.

that have been swrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the fax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

{(a} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender. The Company has not taken any loans or borrewings from Government;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not declared
a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans were applied for
the purpose for which the loans were obtained;

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on short term
basis have not been utilised for long term purposes;

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures;

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies,

(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

(b) The Company has not issued Non-Convertible Debentures during the year. Further, in
respect of the Non-Convertible Debentures issued in previous years, it has complied
with the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Act and the funds raised have
been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

(c) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
{(fully, partially or optionally convertible)} during the year.

() During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according
to the information and explanations given to us, except for 15 cases aggregating 378.92
lakhs which largely pertains to Cheating and forgery which has been reported by the
Company in FMR-1 to Reserve Bank of India(RBI) , we have neither come across any
instance of fraud by the Company or any material instance of fraud on the Company;
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(b) We have not filed any report under sub-section (12} of section 143 of the Act in Form

ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle-blower complaints received by the

X1,

Xiii.

Xiv.

Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit
procedures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company,

According to information and expianations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions entered inte by the Company with the
related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable
and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Note 36 to the Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable {ndian Accounting Standards.

{a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal andit system

comumensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued, for the year under

XV,

xvi.

XVil,

audit,

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him, Accordingly. the provisions
of clause 3(xv} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is registered under
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and it has obtained the
registration.

The Company has conducted the Non-Banking Financial activities with a valid
certificate of registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI} as pe the RBI
Act, 1934,

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India

According to the information and explanation provided to us by the Company, the
Group has 4 Core Investment Companies (CICs) which are registered with the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI).

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year (pre-demerger). (Refer Note 35)
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There has not been any resignation of statutory auditors of the Company during the
financial year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) There are no ‘other than ongoing projects’, wherein the Company has an unspent

amount required to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act;

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the company will transfer unspent amount of Rs. 54.03

Lakhs to a special account, within a period of thirty days from the end of the financial
year in compliance with section 135(6) of the said Act (Refer Note 26 (ii) of the Ind AS
Financial Statements)

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. 104607W / W100166

Glgitally: by Damacta Sl Vanizra Ramana

Damarla Sai B o
: _

A stess1IG1,

Venkata Ramana G o S,

Vos 724,54 29 S0 0425 1 05300

Sai Venkata Ramana Damaria
Partner

Membership. No. 107017
UDIN: 24107017BKERSY 2624
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 29, 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's report- March 31, 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Referred to in 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement' section of our
report of even date)

We have audited the intemnal financial confrols with reference to the Financial Statements of
Tata Motors Finance Limited (Formerly ‘Tata Motors Finance Limited’) (the "Company") as
of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference
to the Ind AS Financial Staternents criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013 ("Act).

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section
143 (10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS
Financial Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists. And testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the
Ind AS Financial Statements,
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to the Ind AS Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of the Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with
reference to the Ind AS financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable agsurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to the Ind AS
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to exror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the intemnal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial controls with
reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (the "Guidance Note"). '

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. 104607W / W100166

gty slgnes By Daniadta Sal Venluta Kariuna

Damarla Sai T S,
0554 1347,
Ve n kata Ra m a n a ;ﬁ:ﬁb:ﬁm:m|??&sh-f;suﬂn Salvenkaiz Baara

3094 FR 43

Sai Venkata Ramana Damarla
Partner

Membership. No. 107017
UDIN: 2410701 7BKERSY 2624
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 29, 2024



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LINITED] (CIN - U65930MH15992PLC187184)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2029

{% in 1akhs}
As at March 31 As at March 31
Particulars Notes 2024 2023
{Refer Note 35)
. ASSETS
1 Financial assets
{a} Cash and cash equivalents 5 3001,26.60 4123,16,78
{bj Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4 3,43.42 61,41.8%
{c} Derivative financial instruments 15 102,44.23 110,35.49
{d] Receivabies
i. Trade receivables 7 33,05.68 24,0784
fi. Cther recaivables 8 20,78.52 2,57.15
{e} Loans L] 31110,03.90 33528,60.80
{f) Investments 16 2530,75.45 1966,50.53
{g] Other financial assets 11 1087,06.98 808,77.15
37888,84.78 40726,51.76
2 Non-financial assets
{a} Current tax assets {net) 112,37.89 56,84.63
{6} Deferred tax assets {net) 12 11,6378 168,83.92
{c} Property, plant and equipment 13a 112,08.44 97,53.00
(4} Goodwil! i3B 180,25.25 180,25.25
{e} Otherintangible assets 13C 7.23.47 2,24,53
{f)  Other non-finandial assets 14 189,28.29 173,17.87
612,86.82 690,89.30
3 Assets held for sale 55,46.18 192,01.23
Total assets 38567,17.78 41609,42.29
L LIABWITIES AND EQUITY
1 Financial Habilities
{a} Derivative financial instruments 15 4,91.29 14,86.64
{b} Pavables 18
{i} Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises 13,07.47 13,5466
(b} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 279,06.66 245,30.77
{ii} Other payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
{h) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 110,70.40 103,85.12
{t} Gebt securitiez 17 3829,90.00 7867,43.92
{d) Borrowings {other than debt securities) 18 25348,39.28 24145,53.23
{e) Subordinated lisbilities 19 1082,86.07 1311,67.23
{f} Other financials lizbilities 20 1155,22.81 1002,76.03
31324,13.98 34712,97.63
2 Non-financial llabilities :
{a) Current tax liabilities {net} 15.43 -
{b} Provisions 21 98,52.42 81,0040
{c} Other non-financial Fabilities 22 58,77.78 78,85.11
168,79.63 159,85.51
3 Equity
{a} Equity share capital 23A 4968,38.18 1700,48.74
(b} Equity share capital to be issued pursuant to common control transaction 23A - 3268,89.44
{c} Instruments entirely equity in nature 23 1808,00.00 1808,00.00
{d} Other equity {203,15.01} {40,80.03}
6574,24.17 £5736,59.15
Total Habilities and equity 38567,17.78 41503,42.2%
See accompanying netes forming part of financial statements {1 to 54}
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm RngSEFBt!(.Jﬂ Numbher.iDASD'a’\i\iin\.l\ImOlEE PALAMADA! gty gy P s PATHAMADAS E?ﬁ”ﬁ:?;ﬁ“’
Damarla Sat . SUNDARARAJAN Sresust e BALACHANDR placino s
Venkata Ramana ; JAYAKUMAR %% ANBALAIL s
Saf Venkata Ramana Damarfa P. S. Jayakumar P. B. Balaji
Partner Director Birector
Membershin Mo, 107017 DIN-G1173236 Digitally sicned by {DIN - 02762983
g ‘ ' SAMRATgE i !
Place: M l{mbai G UPTA ?;eu.;zzngég‘}ézo?
Date: Aprif 28, 2024
Samrat Gupta
Managing Director &
CED VINAY Digitatly signed by
Digitally signed by (PIN - 07071475) VINAY BABURAO
RiDHl ZAVERI RIDH! ZAVER! GANGAR BABURAO LF\VANNESa .
GANGAR ~ Dumzoazs LAVANNIS  Torszasosss
Ridhi Gangar Yinay Lavannis
Chief Financiat Officer Company Secretary
{Membership No — A7811)
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 29, 2024



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTQRS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC18B7184)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

{% in Iakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Notes March 31 March 31
2024 2023 {Refer note 35)
; Revenue from operations
(a) Interestincome 24 3813,84.98 4285,88.67
{b} Dividend Income 12,9546 377.37
(¢} Rentalincome 3,35.17 3,30.73
(d} Fees and commission income 25 183,00.65 175,41.16
(&) Net gain on fair value changes 25 745,83.52 156,87.73
{f} Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments 48D 194,26.04 208,31.02
Total Revenue from operations 4954,26.22 4833,56.68
H  Otherincome 27 50,93.12 72,00.39
R Totaiincome {I+H} 5005,19.34 45905,57.07
IV Expenses
{a} Finance cost 28 2498,67.05 2703,72.81
{b} Impairment of financial instruments and other assets 25 1128,03.42 2025,21.27
(¢} Employee benefits expenses 30 507,30.64 385,57.27
{d} Depreciation, amortization and impairment 13A & 13C 31,11.80 24,23.89
{e} Ctherexpenses 31 617,91.61 681,56.24
Total expenses 4781,04.62 5824,31.28
Vv Profit/{Loss) before exceptional items and tax (M - IV} 224,14.72 (918,74.21)
V1 Exceptional items - -
Vil Profit/{Loss) before tax (V - VI) 224,14.72 (918,74.21)
Vil Taxexpense
(a} Current tax - 3,54.09
(b} Deferred tax 172,26.86 17,25.00
Total tax expense 12 172,26.86 20,79.09
IX  Profit/{Loss) for the year from continuing eperations (VI - V1| 51,87.86 {939,53.30}
X  Other comprehensive income
A i ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or Joss
{a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (8,34.49) 5,43.74
{b) Equity instruments through Other Comprehansive Income 45,27.85 {3,73.87)
ii. Income tax refating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss {11,35.57} 94.59
Subtotal (A} 30,53.79 2,64.46
B i Items that will be reclassifled to profit or loss
{a} Net gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges 15,8628 29,38,53
{b) Debt instruments through Other Comprehansive income {74,35.32) 77,6637
it. Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit orloss 18,71.32 (18,54.64)
Subtotal (B} {39,77.72} 87,50.26
Other Comprehensive income {A + B} {9,23.93) 90,14.72
X1 ‘total comprehensive income for the year 42,63.93 {849,38.58)
Xt Farning per equity shares [face value of % 100/- each) 32
Basic {in X} {2.46) {21.74)
Diluted {in X) {2.46) ) {21.74)

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements (1 to 54)

As per our report of even date attached
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP

Chartared Accountants - Cigitsily signed by

Firm Registration Number: 104607W / W100166 PALAMADAI PALAADA PATHAMADA basebragresss
Damarla Sai SUNDARARAJA iy BALACHAND momsmass excas
Venkata Ramana . NIAYAKUMAR S e e RAN BALAN awessivis

Sai Venkata Ramana Damaria P. 5, Jayakumar P. B. Balaji

Partner Director Director

Membership No. 107017 (DIN - 01173236} {DiN - 02762983)

SAM R ATUigirally signed by

SAMRAT GUPTA

Place: Mumbai GUPTA Date: 2024.04.29
- 19:10:54 +03'30"
Date: April 29, 2024 Samrat Gupta
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN ~ 07071479} Digitally sianed by
RIDHI ZAVER| - St snesymo VINAY a0
GANGAR Date: 20240529 19:05:31 BABURAO ;’?:fég;i ase
i LAVANNIS  1aqsios0530
Ridhi Gangar Vinay Lavannis
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

{Mambership No— A7911)
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 29, 2024



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KXNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - US5910MH1992PLC187184)
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

(% in lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 March 31
2024 2023 {Refer note 35)
A. CASH FLOW FROM CPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit/{loss) before tax 224,14.72 {918,74.21}
Adjustments for:
Interest income on icans, deposits & investments (3813,84.98) (4285,88.67)
Finance costs (other'than interest expense on lease liability) 2489,89.84 2697,23.83
Interest expense on lease liability 6,77.21 5,48.78
Dividend income {12,95.46} {3,77.37)
Gain on sale of Investments {133,20.76} {158,52.17)
Mark to market {gain)/loss on investments measured at fair value through profit or loss {618,56.98} {5.33.06)
Allowance for loan iosses and write-off loans 1201,53.91 20125,64.48
Allowance for doubtful loans and advances {others} {net of write-off) 26,49.51 3,56.7%
Depreciation and amertization 31,132.80 24,23.89
{Profit}/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments {39.96} {25.34)
Balances written back (6,13.23} {15,52.54)
Forex {gain}/loss on derivative instruments 0,26.7¢ 10,09.69
Loss on asset held for sale 33,72.41 71,04,53
Operating cash flow hefore working capital changes (662,15.17} (549,71.37).
Maovements in working capital
Trade payables 35,41.80 53,76.44
Other payables 6,85.28 {13,54.99)
Other financial fiabilities 203,65.27 {118,19.05}
Other non-financial liabilities (3,07.33} {2,50.00)
Trade receivables (8,97.84} {6,85.95)
Other receivables (18,21.37} 45,78.98
Other financizal assets {3,64.24) . {177,85.35)
Provisions 14,47.53 {1,38.92)
Loans 1151,53.24 833,71.39
Mon-financial assets (14,10.32) {63,18.38)
Assets held for sale 99,09.46 186,84.37

794,86.41 186,87.16
Finance costs paid (2214,53.33} (2479,31.84)
interest income received on laans, investments & deposits 3881,81.49 4242,44,78
Income taxes paid (net} (45,33.83} {54,02.37)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2416,80.74 1895,97.73 .

B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets (40,41.75) (25,04.92)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments 2,22,08 13,69.88
Purchase of mutusl fund units {98764,06,18} {139500,62.50)
Redemption of mutual fund units 98804,35.97 139251,56.71
Rademption of debt securities 1,50.00 51,50.00
investment in government securities - {1316,53.25)
Distribution from trust securities 58.97 16.54
Investment in treasury bills (5372,29.57} (1508,06.07)
Redemption of treasury bilis 5385,00.00 2005,00.00
Sale of government securities - 853,00.00
Dividend income 12,85.46 3,77.37
Deposits/restricted deposits with banks (3,86.51} (45,46.21)
Realisation of deposits/restricted deposits with banks 61,84.86 418,26.87

Net cash generated from investing activities B82,83.43 201,44.42




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - UB5910MH1392PLC187184)
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

(X in takhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 March 31
2024 2023 {Refer note 35)
€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in cash credit {net} 68,05.93 73,62.79
Proceeds from debt securitles 6838,24.06 6475,87.29
Repayment of debt securities {9622,00.00) (8872,50.00}
Proceeds from issue of perpetual debt {net of issue expenses) - 357,16.07
Repayment of sub-ordinated lizbifities (230,10.00) {196,40.00}
Proceeds from borrowings {other than debt securities) 19381,94.61 19102,59.25
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities) {18187,51.54) {19862,66.32}
Interest payment on lease liability {6,77.21) (6,48.77}
Principal payment of lease liability (14,27.87) {12,58.75}
Repayments of collateralised debt obligation (74,87.24) B
Redemption of long term debenture (1800,60.00) -
Distributions made to holders of instruments entirely equity in nature (174,25.12) {140,88.25)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares - 563,68.67
Nat cash (used in) from financing activities {3621,54.38) {2512,09.02})
Net {decrease in} cash and cash equivalents (A + B + () {refer note below) {1121,90.21) {414,66.87)
(% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 March 31
2024 2023 {Refer note 35)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4123,16.79 4402,47.83
Balances included on account of common centrol trapsaction - 135,35.83
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 5} 3001,26.60 4123,16.79

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statemants (1 to 54}

Naote:

1, Finance costs has been considered as arising from operating activities in view of the nature of the Company's business.

2. The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented using indirect method as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

As per our report of even date attached

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 104607W / W100166

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE UMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED} {CIN - US3930MH1992PLCIBT 184}

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.1

22

2.3

0]

Company information

Tata Motors Finance Umited (Formerly known as Tata Motors Finance Solutions Umited} {"the Company"} is & public limitad Company
incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office in Mumbai, India.

The Company s registered as @ Systemically Important Non-8anking Financial {Noh-Deposit Accepting ar Holding) Company {"NBFC") under
section 45-fA of the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI'), Act 1934 with effect from March G4, 1998, The Company is & subsidiary of TMF Heldings Limited.
The company is also registered as a corporate agent with Insurance Regulatory and Developmeant Authority of india having registration no.
CAQB7S.

The Company is engaged primarily in lending activities in providing finance, a) for new and pre-owned vehicles, b} to dealers and venders of
ultimate holding company {refarred to as "Tata Motors Limited") and ¢} providing commercial vehictes and passenger vehicles on finance lease,
through its pan India branch netwerk,

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on April 28, 2024,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

Staternent of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {'Ind AS'} prescribed under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the ‘Act') read with relevant rules issued thereunder and the other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. Any application guidance/ clarifications/ directions issued by the Reserve Bank of india or other regulators are implemented as
and when they are issued/ applicable.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain eritical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
ameunts of assets, lishilities, revenues and expenses and the disclesed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas Involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions are material to the Company are discussed in Note 3.1 - materiz! accounting judgements,
estimates and assumptions.

The financial statements are presented in indian Rupees (INR} and 2!l valuas are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise indicated.

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financiat instruments and plan assets of defined benefit
plans, which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below.

Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule I {Division I} of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as
notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). The Statement of Cash Flows has heen presented using indirect method as per the
requirements of in AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The material accounting policies applied in the preparatian of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting poitcies and reported amounts of assats, liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of these
financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates,
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date, Revisions 10 accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates is revised and future period affacted.

In particular, information about material areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most material effact on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are inciuded in following notes :

a) Nota 3 {x}- Business model assessment for classification and migasurement of financial assets

b} Note 3 {x} & 43- iImpairment allowances of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model.

¢} Note 3{v} and 3{vi}- Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

d} Note 3({viii}) and 37- Measurement of assets and obligations of defined benefit employea plans.

e} Note 3{iv} and 12- Recoverability and recognition of deferred tax assets,

) Note 3{ix), 21 & 48F- Measurement of provisions and contingencies,

g} Note 3(xii) and 38- Fair value measurement of financial instruments,

h) Note (x}- Effective Interest Rate (EIR) methodclogy that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral
life of financial instruments

i} Note {vii}- Determination of lease term where the Company s 3 lessee



TATA MOTORS FENANCE LHVITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - UB5910MH1992P1C187184)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

i

(i)

{iv)

v}

Revenue recognition

Revenue from Operations

{2) Income on loans arising from financing activities

The Company recognises the interest income by applying the Effective Interest Rate |EIR]} to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other
than credit-mpaired assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the Company calculates interest income by applying the effective
interest rate to the net amortized cost of the financiai assat,

The EiR in case of a financial asset is cornputed

- the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset.

- by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows.

- Including all f=as/service charges and incentives paid and raceived between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interast rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subseguent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows s recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the assets,

Qverdue interest is recognised on a point-in-time basis, and are recorded on reslisation basis.

Income from direct assignment

Gains {als0 known a5 the right of excess interest spread {EIS)) arising out of direct assignment transactions comprise the difference between the
intergst on the loan portfollo and the applicable rate at which the direct assignmenit is entered into with the assignee, The future EIS basis the
scheduled cash flows on execution of the transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered into with the assignae is recorded upfront in the
statement of profit and loss, Any subsequent changes in the excess interest spread is recognised with the correspending adjustment to the
carrying amount of the assats,

The Company recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing lability for servicing contract, If the fee to be received is expected to be more than
adequate compensation for the serviclng activities, @ servicing asset is recognised with a corresponding credit in Statement of Profit and Loss, if
the fae to be received I3 not expected to compensate the Company adequately for performing the servicing actlvities, a semcmg liabitity for the
servicing obligation is recognised with a corresponding charge to Statement of Profit and Loss.

tncome Taxes

Intome tax expense comprises currént and deferred taxes, Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit & loss except when they
refate to items that are recognised outside the statement of profit and loss (whether in other comprehensive incomea or directly in equity), in
which case tax is also recognised outside the statement of profit and loss. Current income taxes arg determined based on respective taxable
income of Company and tax rules applicable for respective tax jurisdictions.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets
and liabllitles and their respective tax bases, and unutilised business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Such deferred tax
assats and liabilities are computed separately. Deferred tax assats are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be
utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurad based on the tax rates that are expectad 1o apply in the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is seftied, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The effect of
changes in tax rates on defarred income tax assets and liabifities is recognized as income or expense In the period that includes the enactment or
the substantive enactment date.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabitities are offset when there is a legally enforcezble right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities 2nd when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intands to settle its carrent and deferrad
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis,

Property, Plant and equipment

Property, piant and equipment {PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost includes
purchase price, hon-refundable taxes and levies and other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its location and working condition
for its intended use.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LEIVIETED [FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FEINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED] {CIN - US5910MH1992PLL187184)

Notes forming part of the finandial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{vi}

{vii}

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets considering the nature, sestimated usage, operating
conditions, past history of replacement and anticipated technological changes.

Schedule It to the Companies Act 2013 ("Schadule’} preseribes the useful lives for various class of asgefs. For certain class of assaets, based on
tachnical evaluation and assessment, Management balieves that, the useful lives adopted by it reflects the periods over which these assets are
expected to be used. Accordingly for those assets, the useful lives estimated by management are different from those prescribed in the Schedule.
Managament’s estimates of the useful lives for various class of PPE are as given below:

Type of Asset Estimated usefu] life
Building 19 & 60 years

Data Processing Machines 3 years

Furniture & Fixture 5 & 10 years

Cifice Equinment 2to 10 years
Vehicks 4 & 5 years

The useful lives and methad of depreciation is reviewed at least at each year-end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as change in
accounting estimates. .

However, [gasehold improvements and PPE located in leasehold premises are depreciated on a straight-line method over shorter of thair
respective useful lives or the tenure of the lease arrangement.

Assets costing less than % 5,000/- are expensed off at the time of purchase.

Other intangible assets

intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Fallowing initial recognition, intangibie assets are carried at cost less any accumuleted ameortisation and
accumutlated impairment Josses, if any.

intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment, whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amertisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumgption of future
sconomic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense an intangible assets with finite lives is recagnised in the statement of Profit and Loss
unless such expenditura forms part of carrying value of another asset. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful fivas,

intangible assets and their usefu! lives are as under
IType of asset |Estimated useful life |
‘Software {5 years

Leases
Contracts/arrangemeants, or part of a contract/arrangemeant meeting the definition of "lease” and falling within the scope of Ind A5 116 "Leases”
to follow zecounting policies mentioned below

{A} Company i5 a Lessee- Assets taken on lease

{i} Right of use of assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease, Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of fease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on 3 straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful fife and lease term, Right-of-use
assets are subject to impalrment,

{if} Lease liabilities

At the commaencemant date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease paymeants include fixed payments and the exercise price of a purchase option reasonzably certain to be exercised
by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate,



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED [FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SCLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - UB5910MH1IS32PLC187184)

Notas forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{viii)

in calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After the commencement date, the amount of lease Habilities is increasad to reflect
the accretion of interast with corresponding amount recognised in finance cost under the statement of profit and loss and reduced for the lease
payments made. in addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, 2 change in the Jease term, a change
in the in-substance fixed lease paymeants or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

{iii} Short-term leases and ieases of low-vaiue assets

The Company applies recognition examption of not to recognise right-of-use assats and lease liabilities for short-term leases {i.e., thase leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option) and low-value assets that are
considered of low value. Lease payments on short-tarm leases and Jeases of low-value 255618 are racogrised as expense in the statemant of profit
and loss on a straight-line basis aver the lease term.

{B] Company as a Lessor

Lease classification is made at the inception date and is reassessed oniy if there is 3 lease modification. Changes in estimates {for example,
changes in estimates of the economic life or of the residual value of the underlying asset), or changes in circumstances {for example, default by
the Jessea), is not a lease modification do not give rise to a new classification of a lease for accounting purposes.

Assets given op finance fease

Tha Company has given vehicles on lease whare it has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 1o ownership of an vehicle and
hence these are classified as finance lease.

Assets given under finance lease are recognised as a finance lease receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The net
investment in the lease is calculated by discounting the gross Investment in lease at tha interest rate implicit in the {ease. Lease rentals for the
period are apportioned between principal and interest income, The portion of principal amount reduces the net investment in the lzase. Interest
{finance)} income is recognisad in the statement of profit or loss under Interest Income over the lease term, based on 2 pattern reflecting a
constant periodic rate of return on the Company's net investment in the lease.

Employee benefits

{A} Short - term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be pald In exchange for the services rendered by employees is
recognised during the period when the empioyee renders the service. These benefits include saiaries and performance incentives/benuses which
arg expected to occur within tweive moenths after the end of the period in which the employee renders the refated services,

{B} Post Emplayment/retirement benefit Plans

{1} Defined contribution plans

For provident fund and superannuation fund, the company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made,
Payments/contributions to the Company's defined tontribution plans are accounted for on an accrual basis (L.e. when employeas have rendered
the service antitling them to the contribution) and are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Superannuation fund
Contribution fo the superannuation fund is made at 15% of basic salary for the employees who have opted to the scheme, managed by the
ultimate holding company and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis,

{a} Provident fund

The employees are entitled to receive henefits under provident fund, where both, the employees and the Company, make monthily contributions
at a specified percentage of the covered employeaes’ basic salary. The contribution is paid to the Regional Provident Fund effice. The Company
has no lishility for future benafits other than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions a3 an expense in the year in which
employee renders the ralated services.

{a} Gratuity

For defined benefit schemes in the form of gratuity plan, the cost of providing benefits is actuariaily determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out 2t each year end. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet
reprasents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets.

The Company have an obligation towards gratuity, post employment/retirement defined benefit plan covering eligible amployees. The benefit is
in the form of lump sum payments to eligible employees on resignation, retirement, or death whila in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days’ to 30 days’ basic salary payable for each completad year of service, Vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service. The liability determined hasis actuarial valuation is compared with the fair value of ptan assets and the
shortfall or excess is accounted for as a Hability or an asset raspactively.
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{ix}

%

{a)

The present value of the said obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using market vields of government
bonds of equivalent term and currency to the liability,

The interest income / (expense) are calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The net interest income /
{expense} on the net defined benefit liability Is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in
which they occur, directly tn OCL They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in
profit or loss as past service cost.

(C) Other long term employee benefit plans
{1} Defined benefit plans

{a} Compensated absences

The labilities for compensated sbsences sre not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service, They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using
the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporiing pericd that have terms approximating to the terms of the related cobligation.
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss,

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision Is recognised H, as a result of a past event, the Company has & present legal or constructive obligation that can he estimated reliably,
and it is prebable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation.

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to the net present
value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the lability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent Hability, Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is 2
possible obligation arising fram past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nen-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company, where the possihility of any outflow of resources in sattlament is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabHities,
Provisions, contingent liahilities and cantingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financiat
statements.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or eguity instrument of another
entity. Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised inftially at fair value. However, In the case of financizl assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the scquisition of the financial asset are added to the fair value. The transaction costs directly
atiributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are immaediately recognised in profit or loss,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame estzblished by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, l.2., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Firancial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest,
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Classification and Subsequent measurement

For the purposes of initial recognition, financial assets are classified in the following categories -
a. at amortised cost, or

b. at fair vaiue through other comprehansive income {FVOCH, or

c. at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL}

The above classification depends on the Company's business mode! for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flow.

{1} Dabt nstruments
Initiat classification of debt Instruments depends on the Company's business modei for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of
tha asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its dabt instruments.

{a) At amortised cost:

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost, if both the following conditions are satisfied/ fulfiijed

- The asset is held within 5 business model whose objective is to hotd assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solaly payments of principal and interest {SPP1) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsaquently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EiR) method.
Amortised cost is caiculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acguisition and feas or costs that are an integral part of the EIR,
The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.
This category generally applies to loans arising from financing activities and investments,

{b) At FvTOCK

A debt instrument is classifiad at FVTOC, if both of the following criteria are met:

- The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractuat eash flows and selling the financial assets; and

~ Lantractus! terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest {SPPI) on the principal
amaount cutstanding.

Debt instruments inciuded within the FVTOC! category are measurad initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. These loans are
measured as the present value of all future cash receipts discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest (i.e, Interest rate at which loans
are assigned during the relevant guarter). Fair value movaments are recognised in the other Comprehensive Income {OCl}. Mowever, the
Company recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals in the Statement of Profit and toss. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC is reclassified from the equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earsed whilst
holding FYTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

{c} At FVTPL:

FVTPL is a rasidual category for debt instrumants. Any debt Instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortized cost
or as FVTOC, is classified as at FYTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate 2 debt instrument, which otherwise meeats amortised cost or FVTCCI eriteria, as at FVTPL.
However, such election is allowad only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition Inconsistancy {referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in theair entirety when determining whether thair cash flows are selely payment of principal and interast.

{H} Equity Instruments/investments

Investments in equity instruments are measured at fair vajue. Equity instrumants, which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. For equity
instruments, other than held for trading, the Company has irrevocable option to present in 0L} subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such alection on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The ¢lassification is made on inftial recognition and s irrevocable.

Where the Company classifies equity instruments as at FVTOC, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized
in the OCI. There Is no recyching of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measurad at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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{11} Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the Expected Credit Loss {ECL} model in accordance with Ind AS 109 for recognising impairment loss on financizal assets
except for

- eguity instruments which are not subject to impairment under Ind A5 109, and

- other debt financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise from ali possible default events over the expected life of the finandial assets
{’lifetime £CL}, unless there had been no material increase in credit risk of a default occurring since crigination or initial recognition, in which
case, the impairment sllowance is based on the 12-month ECL. The 12-month ECL is 2 portion of the fifetime ECL which resuits from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL {both life tme and 12 months) are calculated on a collective basis considering the homogeneous nature of the underlying portfolio of
financial assets.

The impairment methodology eppiies depends on whether there has been material increase in credit risk. When determining whether credit risk
of a financial asset has increased materfally since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both guantitative and
gualitative information and analysis, including on historical experience and forward-looking information,

The expected credit {oss is a product of exposure at default {'EAD"), probability of default ['PD'} and loss given default ('LGD"). The Company has
devised an internal model to evaluate the PD and LGD based on the parameters set out in Ind AS 108, Accordingly, the financial assets have been
segmented into three stages based on the risk profiles. The three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial assets,
The Company categorises financial assets at the reporting date into stages based on the days past due ('DPD’) status as under:

- Stage 1: Low credit risk, i.e. 0 to 30 days past due

- Stage 2: material increase in credit risk, i.e, 31 to 80 days past due

- Stage 3: Credit Impaired assets, L.e. more than 90 days past due or cases where the company reported as fraud and additionally in case of
corporate lending business, customers identified as nen-operative at holding company are categorised as stage-3.

For restructured cases which are not getting covered under any spacific ragulatory package 1ssued by RB, as 2 part of qualitative assessment of
whether a customer is in default {i.e. credit impaired), the Company carefully considers and assesses various instances to determine whether the
restructuring of a loar or advance should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as stage 3 for ECL calculations.

Definition of default

The Company considers a financial asset to be in “default” and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL caleulations when the borrower
becomes 90 days past due on Its contractual payments or reported as fraud. Pursuant to RBI Circular RBI/2021-22/125
DOR.STR.REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22 dated November 12, 2021, on ‘Prudential Norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning pertzining to Advances — Clarifications and Subsequent clarification issued on February 15, 2022, effective Getober 1, 2022, Stage 3
horrowers are upgraded when all outstanding dues are fully repaid.

LG is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due and those that the Company would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. it is usually expressed as a
percentage of the EAD.

PD is defined as the probability of whether the borrawers will default on their obfigations in the future. For assets which are in Stage 1, a 12-
month PD is required. For Stage 2 assets a lifetime PD is required while Stage 3 assets are considered default. PD estimation process is done
based on historical internal data available with the Company.

EAD represents gress carrying amount at the reporting date in case of Stage 1 and Stage 2. in case of Stage 3 loans EAD represents gross carrying
amourit at the time when the default occurrad for first time,

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-ecanomic developments oceurring in the economy and market it
operates in. On a pericdic basis, the Company analyses if thers is any relstionship between key economic trends like Gross Domestic Product
{GDP), Brent rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc, with the estimate of PR determined by the Company based on
its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays,
if any, are embedded in the methadology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

Based on the consideration of external actual and forecast information, the Company forms a ‘base case’ view of the future direction of relevant
economic variables, This process involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probazbilities of
each outcome, The base case represents a most Ekely outcome while the other scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic
outcomes.
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{8

Coilaterat vatuation:

The Company creates & secures first and exclusive collateral charge at the time of loan origination on all vehicles for which vehicle financing toans
are given. Mypothecation endorsement is obtained in favour of the Company in the Registration Certificate of the VYehicle funded under the
vehicle finance category. Any surpius remaining after settlement of outstanding loan by way of sale of vehicle {coilateral] is returned to the
customer. In case wheare the Company has settied outstanding dues against repossession of the underlying collaterai, collateral is recorded as
assets held for sale in the balance sheet.

The Company enters into a financial guarantee contracts which require the issuer of such contract to reimburse the Company for a loss it incurs
because a specified customer fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of the loan. For these separate third party financial
guarantee contracts, the Company recognises a reimbursement asset of an amount expected te receive from issuer of financial guarantee with a
corresponding reimbursement gain as a reduction in the impairment charge in the Statement of profit and loss, if it is considered virtually certain
that a reimbursement would be received if the specified customer fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of the Ioans,
Reimbursement gain is presented as other financial assets in the balance sheet.

The measurement of impairment losses across all the categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a material increase in
credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allewances. The Company’s ECL
calcufations are outputs of compiex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their
interdependencies. The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the date of
financial statements, The Company regularly reviews its models in the context of actual ioss experience and makes adjustments whan such
differences are materially material,

The amount of ECL {or reversal} at the reporting date is recognised as an impairmant loss/(gain) in the statement of profit and loss.

ECL on Debt instruments measured at amortised cost
The ECLs for debt instruments measured at amortised cost s reduced from the gross carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance
shest,

ECL on Debt instruments measured at fair value through 0Q

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FYOL do not reduce the gross carrying amount of these financial assets in the bafance shaet, which
remains at fair value. Iinstead, an amount equal to the ailowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortised cost i3 recognised In
OC} as an accumulated Impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss recognised in OCI is recycled to
the profit and loss upon darscognivion of the assets,

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of z flnancial assets is written- off {either partially or fully} to the extent that there is no reascnable expectation of
recovering the asset in its entirety or a portion thereof, However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any subseguent recoveries against such
financial assets are craditad to the statement of profit and {oss.

{1V} Derecognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of tha asset to another party. if the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Campany recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated lizbility for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises an associated liability as coliateralised
barrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consigeration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OC, and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial liabifities and equity instruments

Elassification as debt or aguity

Debt and equity instruments, issued by the Company, are classifled as either financial liabilities or as aquity, in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity Instrument.

i) Financial liabilities

Enitial recognition and measurement

All financial liahilitias are racognised initially at fair value. Howaver, in the case of financial iabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of financial Habilities are deducted from the fair value of financial Habilities. The
transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or
loss.

The Company’s financial liabiiities majorty comprise of trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, including bank overdrafts and cash credit
faciiity and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

All finzncial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method or at fair value through profit or
loss {(FVTPL).
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{a} At FVTPL:

Financial liabilities includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that ara not designated and effective as hedging
instruments in hedge refationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading, unless they
are dasignated as effective hedging instrumants,

Financial liabilfties, designated upon initial recognition at FYTPL, are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in
ind AS 109 are satisfied,

{b} At amortised cost;

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subseqguently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate
{EIR} method. Amortised cost is calculzted by taking into account any discount or premium an zcquisition and fees or costs that are an integrat
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest expenses in the profit or loss,

financial guarantee contracts:

A finaneial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

- the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment reguirements of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments; and

- the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised In accordance with the principles of ind AS
115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

Derecognition of financial [iabilities:

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial lability de-recognised and the consideration paid and pavable is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Modification/Renegotiation that do not result in derecognition

Changes to the carrying amount of a finandal lability as 2 result of renegotiation or modification of terms that do not result in derecognition of
the financial liability, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows of
financial fiability is recognised under finance cost in the statement of profit or loss with the corresponding adjustment te the carrying amount of
the financial fiability.

i1} Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interests in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
Incrementai costs incurred which are directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds,

H1) Compound financial Instrument
The components of compound financial instruments issued by the Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
secordance with the suhstance of the contractual arrangements and definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion
option that will be settled by exchange of fixad amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non - convertible
instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an amartised cost basis using the effective interest rate method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date,

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of llability component from the falr value of the compound
financial instruments as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition,
tha conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in
equity wilt be transferred to other component of equity. When the conversion opticn remains unexercised at the maturity date, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instrument are aliocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
aflocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in eguity. Transaction costs relating
16 the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the life of the convertible
instrumnent using effective interest rate method,
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{x)

{nii}

Berivatives and Hedging activities

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk,
including foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps. Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 14.
Derivatives are initially recagnised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered Tnto and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair valug at the end of each reporting date, The resulting gain or loss is recognised in Statement of profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument {Refer sub note (a) below), in which event the timing of recognition in profit or loss
depends on the nature of the hadging relationship and nature of the hedge item.

Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Derivatives embedded in alt other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embadded derivatives are not
closely refated to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and accordingly, are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives closely reiated to the host contracts are not separated.

{a) Hedge accounting

The Company designates foreign currency forward derivative contracts as hedges of foreign exchange risk associated with the cash flows of
foreign currency risks associated with the borrowings denominated in foreign currency {referred to as "cash flow hedges”).

The Company documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the economic refationship between the hedging instruments and hedge
items including whether the hedging instrument {s expected to offset changes in the cash flows of hedge items. The Company documents its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions at the incepticn of the hedging reiationshig,

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve, The gain or joss relating to ineffective pertion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive lncome and accumulated in equity to effective portion (as described above) are
reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedge ftem affacts profit or loss, in the samae fine as the racognised hedge item.

tn cases where the designated hedging instruments are forward contracts, the Company has a2n option, for each designation, to deslgnate on an
instrument only the changes in spot element of forward contracts respectively as hedges. In such cases, the forward element {i.e. forward
premium} is accounted based on the type of hedge which those forward contract hedge.

The changes in the forward slement of the forward contracts are recognised within other comprehensive income in the costs of hadging reserve
within equity.

tn case of transaction related hedge item in the above cases, the changes in tha forward alement {(i.e. forward premium} of the forward
contracts accumuiated within other comprehensive income in the costs of hedging reserve within equity is reclassified to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment in the same period in which the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

in case of time-period rolated hedge item in the sbove cases, the changes in the forward slement (i.e. forward premium) of the forward
contracts accumuiated within other comprehensive income in the costs of hedging reserve within equity is amortised on a systematic and
rational basis over the period during which the forward contracts spot element could affect profit or foss as a reclassification adjustment from
cther comprehensive income,

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting.

Fair value measureament

A nurmber of Company’s accounting poflcies and disclosures require the measurament of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
tha measurement date regardless of whether that price is directly observabig or estimated using another vaivation technigue,

Fair value measurements under ind A5 are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitles that the Company can access at measurement date;

tevel 2: Inputs other than quotad prices included in Level 1 that ara ohservable for the asset ar lisbility, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs for the asset or lizbility that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs) that the Company can access at
measurement date



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - US5920MH1992PLC187184)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(i}

{xiv}

Assets Held for Sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if thair carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and sale is considered kighly probable. A sale is considered as highly probable when decision has been made to sell, assats are
available for immediate sale in its present condition, assets are being actively marketed and sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded
within 12 months of the date of classification. Non-current assets held for sale are neither depreciated nor amortised, Assets and lisbilities
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of thelr carrying amount and fair value less cost of disposal and are presented separately in
the Balance Sheet.

Business combinations - common control transactions

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Group are accounted for using the pooling of interest method. Assets and
liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying value without adjustments being made to reflect falr values. The identity of the
reserve are preserved and reserve of the transferor become the reserves of the transferee. The difference, If any, between the amounts
recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the
transferor is transferred to capital reserve, The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior period is restated as if the
business combination had accurred form the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actua! date of the
combination.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA”} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to
the existing standards applicable to the Company.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

5. Cash and cash equivalents

(% in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
{a) Cashon hand ’ 7,02.26 7,57.60
{b) Balance with banks 555,26.81 375,04.41
(refer note 1}
{c} Cheques, drafts on hand 9,65.81 14,15.16
{d) Bank deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months 2429,31.72 3726,39.62
Total 3001,26.60 4123,16.79
1 includes T NIL as at 31st March 2024 (X 0.23 lacs as at 31st March 2023} towards unpaid dividend.
6. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
(X in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
{a) Deposits with banks - 8,23.14
- {b) Earmarkad balances with banks 34.42 36.35
(Refer note 1)
{c} Margin money / cash collateral with banks 3,09.00 52,82.42
{Refer note 2 and 3)
Total 3,43.42° £61,41.91
1 Earmarked balances with banks on account of unclaimed interest on debt securities.
2 Margin money is towards mark-to-market on derivative instrument entered to hedge risk arising from externai commercial borrowings.
3 Cash collateral with banks acting as credit enhancement in respect securitisation transactions.
7. Trade receivables
{Xin lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
(2] Recelvables considered good - Unsecured 33,0568 24,07.84
Total 33,05.68 24,07.84

No trade receivablas are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, Not any trade
receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

As at March 31, 2024

{X in lakhs)
6 Months - 1
Particuiars Not due Unbilled Less than & nths 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than Total

maonths Year 3 Years
{i} Undisputed Trade

receivables - considered  313,14.18 - 13,3021 2,95.62 33542 3025 - 33,05.68
good
{ii) Undisputed Trade

Receivables ~ which have
significant increase in
credit risk

(iif} Undisputed Trade
Receivables ~ credit - - - - - - - -
impaired

{iv) Disputed Trade

Receivables~considered - - - - - - - .

good
{v) Disputed Trade

Receivables — which have . - - - - - - R
significant increase in
{vi) Disputed Trade
Receivables — cradit
Total

13,30.21 2,95.62 3,35.42 30,25 - 23,05.68

13,14.18




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTQRS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED] {CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2624

As at March 31, 2023
{% in lakhs}

- h
Particulars Not due Unbilled Less than 6 & Months -1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than Total
months Year 3 Years

{i) Undisputed Trade

receivables — considered 7,62.17 - 13,1672 1,92.79 1,20.77 15.39 . 24,07.84
good

{ii) Undisputed Trade

Receivables — which have

significant increase in

credit risk )

{iif) Undisputed Trade

Receivables — credit - - - - - - - -
impaired

{iv) Disputed YTrade

Receivables—considered - - - - - - - -
good

(v} Disputed Trade

Receivables —which have

significant increase in

credit risk
{vi} Disputed Trade

Receivables - credit . R - - - . . .
impaired
Total 7,62.17 - 13,1672 1,92.79 1,20.77 15.39 - 24,07.34

8. Other receivables
(X in lakhs}

Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31

2024 2023

Other Recelvables considered good - Unsecured 20,78.52 2,57.15

Total 20,78.52 2,572.15

No other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any other
receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, 2 director or a member.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED]) (CIN - U65910MH1932PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note:

9. Loans
{Xin fakhs}
Particulars As at March 31 As’at March 31
2024 2023

{A} At amortised cost

From financing activities

{a} Term loans 12380,21.17 15134,64.07

{b} Finance {ease receivables 193,81.44 81,54.50

{¢} Credit substitutes 471,75.85 914,28.51
(refer note 1)

{d} Factoring 329,08,98 60,45.85

{e) Channel financing 1796,33.00 1919,56.03

From other than financing activities

{a) Inter corporate deposits {repavable on demand} 85,00.00° 45,50.02

Total (A} - Gross 15256,31.44 18155,95,98
Less: Impairment loss allowance {855,77.42) {1600,23.98)

Total [A) - Net 14360,54.02 16555,76.00

{B) At fair value through Other comprehensive income {FVGCI}

From financing activities

{a) Termloans 17203,85.89 17314,68.87
Less: Impairment loss allowance {454,36.01) {341,23.97)

Total {B} - Net 16749,49.88 16972,34.90

i)

(2} Secured by tangible assets 30384,70.51 31722,81.93
(refer note 2, 3 and 4 below}

(b} Covered by government guarantees 478,01.96 2470,66.99
(refer note 5 below)

{€) Unsecured 1597,44.86 1276,59.93

Total {C) - Gross 32460,17.33 35470,08.85
Less: Impairment loss allowance {1350,13.43} {1941,47.95)

Total {C) - Net 31110,03.90 33528,60.50

{D}

. Loans in India

(2) Public sector - -

{b} Others 32460,17.33 35470,08.85

Total {D} - Gross 32460,17.33 35470,08.85
Less: Impairment loss allowance {1350,13.43}). {1941,47.95)

Total {D} - Net 31110,03.90 33528,60.90

1 Investments in bonds, debentures and other financial instruments which, in substance, form a part of the Company’s financing activities {"Credit

Substitutes"} have been classified under Loans.

2 The Company covers/secures the credit risk associated with the joans given to customers by creating an exclusive charge/hypothecation/security on

the assets/vehicles as mentioned/spacified in the loan agreement with the customers.

3 Includes Vehicle term loan lending done to Micro and Small Enterprises, for which the Company has availed the benefit of Credit Guarantee Fund

Trust for Micre and Small Enterprises {CGTMSE) scheme to secure credit default risk.

4 For loans secured against underlying vehicle, security is created by way of borrower signing and executing hypothecation Agreement hefore
disbursement of loan. Borrower ensures endorsement of hypothecation in Registration Certificaie of underlying vehicle in favour of the Company.
However, in certain cases the Company is in the process of endorsing the hypothecation in Registration Certificate book of underlying vehicle. This
doas not impact the Company’s right as security holder over the asset under finance in the court of law, in case of default by borrower.

5 Fully backed by guarantee of Central Government of india under the emergency credit Line guarantee scheme (ECLGS).
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED] (CIN - US5510MH1992PLC157184)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Annexure to Note 10

{Xin lakhs)
Face . s
nti uantit
Value Description {in?:c’:: )tatsvat As at (in%os } asvat As 5t
per unit March31, 2024 oreh 3% 2024\ b1, 0003 areh 31,2023
{in Rs)
Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in equity shares
{a) Quoted
1 i.  Tata Steel Limited 6,095,110 94,99.24 6,095,110 63,69.3%
10 il.  Tata Chemicals Limited 10,060 1,08.75 10,060 §7.83
1 iil. Tata Power Limited 8,120 35.05 9,120 17.358
1 iv. Tata Consumer Products Limited (pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement, 114 shares 11,468 1,25.71 11,468 8129
were allotad for avery 100 shares held in Tata Chemicals Limited)
10 v, NTPC Limited {Note 2} - . 156,000 2,73.18
1 vi. NMDC Limited {Note 2} - - 20,000 22.31
vil, NMDC 5Steel Limited {{pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement, 1 shares were allotted
10 for every 1 shares held in NMDC Limited) {Note 2) - - 20,000 6.21
10 viii. Coal India Limited (Note 2) - - 11,904 25.43
{b} Unguoted
10 i.  Taj Air Limited 4,200,000 N 4,200,000 -
11,000 iil. Tatainternational Limited 19,350 42,29.14 19,350 41,84.55
100 ifl.  Tata Industries timited 993,753 28,98.78 983,753 19,09.00
Subtotal {A) 168,97.57 129,96.52
Investments measured at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in equity sharas
{a) Quoted
in L. Automobile Corporation of Goa Limited 48,318 10,4537 48,315 3,46.85
2 i, Tata Technologles Limited { Note 1} 8,119,920 787,28.31 - -
{b} Unquoted
2 i.  Tata Technologies Limited { Note 1} - - 8,118,920 177,03.43
10 fi,  Tata Hitachi Construction Machinery Company Private Limited 285,714 - 285,714 -
investment in trust securities
n i SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Trust 15,000,000 5,02.28 15,000,000 4,89.34
Investment in government securities (guoted)

i, Government securities bonds 8,68.30 3,45.10
Investments in Mutual fund {guoted) 300,38,96 407,22.61
Subtotal {B) 1112,83,22 602,09.33
Investments measured at Amortised cost
fnvestment in Praference shares
Fully Paid Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares (Unquoted}

100 {a) 6% Tata Precision Industries (india) Limited 40,000 40.00 40,000 40.00
Fully Paid Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares {Unquoted)

100 (b} 8.50% Tata Precision Industrias {India} Limited - - 150,000 1,50.00
Investments in Debentures and Bonds measured at Amertised Cost
Fully Paid Securad, Non - Cumuiative, Non - Convertible, Redeamable Debentures (quotad)

g {a) 8.49% NTPC Uimited {issued as bonus debenture} - Note 3 275,752 - 275,752 -

Investment in goverament securities {Quoted)
(a} Treasury bilis 145,91.63 134,44.04
(b} Government securities bonds 1097,33.28 1096,80.89
Subtotal {C) 1247,64.91 1233,34.93
Investments measured at cost
(i} Investmentin equity shares (unguoted}

3.80 TMF Business Services Limited { Formerly Tata Motors Finance Limited)* 18,22,016 1,29.75 1,25.75
Subtotal {D} 1,28.75 1,29.75

Total [A+B+C+ D) 2530,75.45

1986,50.53



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LINHTED) (CIN - UG5910MH1992PLC187184}
Notes forming part of financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note:- 1. During the financia! year ended March 31, 2024 the equity shares of Tata Technologies wers listed on the recoganised stock exchange.
2. During the period ended December 31, 2023, Investment committee has approved for disinvestment. Hence, these Investments have Deen classified as assets-held
for sale.
3. During the financial year ended March 31, 2024 there has been partial face value redemption in 8.43% NTPC Limited debentures, Thus, restated face value post
such partial face value redemption stands at Rs. 5.

i1 Other financial assets

{Z in lakhs

Particulars AsatMarch 31 Asat March31
2024 2023

{3} Depasits (Net of provision % 10.17 takhs; March 31, 2023 ¥ 52.96 lakhs} 16,44.20 30,62.51
() Interest accrued on deposits £3.40 2,46.23
{c} Interest accrued on investments 13,11 13.09
{d) Receivable from mutual funds 200,15.10 -
{e) Others {Net of provision ¥ 54,08.85lakhs; March 31, 2623 £ 27,41.49 lakhs} 875,91.17 876,55.34

Tatal 1087,06.98 908,77.15



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {(FORMERLY KNOWRN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC1BY184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

12. Income taxes

a) Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

{Z in {akhs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March 21 ended March 31
2024 2023
Income tax expense
Current tax
Cutrent tax on profits for the year - 3,54.09
Adjustments for current tax of prier periods - -
~ Total current tax expense - 3,54.08
Leferred tax
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets 108,58.25 {3,85.88}
{Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities 63,68.61 21,10.89
Total deferred tax expense/ibenefity 172,26.86 17.25.00
Income Tax expense 172,26.86 20,79.09
b} Reconciliation of the income tax expenses and accounting profit
Z.inlakhs}

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March 31 ended March 31
2024 2023

Raeconciiation of the income tax expense and the accounting profit multipiled by India’s tax rate:
Profit before taxes 224 1472 (918,74.21}
Income tax expenses calculated at Statutory tax rate 56,41.24 (231,22.990)
Tax effect of the amount which are nof taxable in caicuiating taxable income

- Effact of expenses not deductible for tax computation £9.95 1,82.98

- Effect of income taxable at lower rate {97,59.54) -

- Deferred tax assets not recognised because realization s not probable 258,57.38 251,18.04

- Previously unrecognised deferred tax assets recoganised now (43,88.13) -

- Adjustment recognised in relation to the current tax of prier years - (97.03)

- Others {1,93.74) -
Income tax expensef{credit) recognised for the year at effective tax rate 172,26.86 20,79.09
Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows:

¢} Deferred tax assetsiliahilities (het)
Z in lakhs}
\ Through other
. As at Through profit N As at
Particuiars Aptil 0, 2023 and loss .comprehenswe March 31, 2024
income/ Reserve

Deferred tax liahilities ;
- Fair Valuation of financial assets measured at FYTOC! and FYTPL 183,41.12 58,08.33 {7,31.75} 234 17.70
- lncome to be taxed on actual receipt basis 77,5129 6,30.41 - 83,81.70
- Sourcing commission claimed on incurrence basis 40,73.13 (T0.13) - 40,05.00
Total deferred tax liabilities 301,687.54 63,6861 (7,31.75) 358,04.40
Deferred tax asset !
- Property, plant & equipment - Accumutated depreciation 8,76.74 {1,72.80) - 8,03.94
~Provisions for impairment aliowances on inancial assets 458,13.62 (166.,57.42) - 302,56.20
-Compensated absences and retirement benefits allowable on payment basis £,08.76 1,04.88 - £,13.74
-Unabsorbed depraciation under tax book - 43,88.13 - 43,88.13
~ Others (3,47.67) 4,78.86 7.74.98 ©,06.17
Yotal deferred tax assets 471,51.48 (108,58.25) 7,74.98 368,68.18
Deferred tax assetsi{liabilities) (net) 168,83,91 (172,26.86) 15,06.73 11,63.78




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {(CIN - UB5910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:

¢} Deferred iax assetsfliabilities (net)

{Z in lakhs}

Farticulars As at Transferred as Through prefit clzof:e:gi; As at :
Aprit 4, 2022 part of demerger and loss ;come March 31, 2623

Deforred tax liabilities :
- Fair Valualion of financial assels measured al FVTOC] and FVTPL 27 45.20 135.98.72 1,34.16 18.60.04 183,41.42
- Income to be taxed on actuat receipt basis 14,44,23 46,703,711 16,36.35 - 77.51.29
- Bourcing commission claimed on incurrence basis 8,46.25 28,88.50 3,40.38 - 40,75.13
Total deferred tax liabilities 50,38.68 211,57.93 2,110.8% 18,60.04 301,67.54
Deferred tax asset :
- Property, plant & equipment - Accumulated depreciation 50.97 9,38.55 (12.78) - 9.7874
-Pravigions for impairment aliowances on financial assets 52,82.88 391,57.08 7,73.58 - 459,13.62 -
-Compensated absences and refirement benefits allowable on payment basis 58.11 4.58.24 (7.59) - 5,08.7¢
- Gthers 77.52 (57.77) (3,67.42} {3.47.67)
Total deferred fax assetls §1,69.48 404,96.08 3,85.89 - 470,51.45
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities} (net) 11,30.80 1933815 (17,25.00) (18,60.04) 165,83.91

d} Amounts recognised directly in equity
There was no income or expenses far current year and previous year for which tax impact has been routed through reserve.

2} Tax losses

As at March 31, 2024, unrecognised deferred tax assels amounted to Z Nit {As at March 31, 2023 - ¥ 41,50.83 fakhs} which can be carried forward indefinitely and ¥ 568,21.26 lakhs
{As at March 31, 2023 - ¥ 272,02.05 lakhs) which can be carried forward upto a specified pericd. These relate primarily to depreciation cammy forwards and business losses, The deferred
tax asset has not been recognised on the basis that its recovery is not probable in the foreseeable future,

Unrecognised deferred tax assets expire unutilised based on the year of origination as follows:

% in fakhs)
Year Amaount
March 31, 2031 272,00.49
March 31, 2032 2872077
Total £68,21.26

A schems of arrangement was filed by TMF Business Services Limited {TMFBSLY), and Tata Motors Finanee Limited  [formerly known as Tats Motors Finance Solutions Limited]
{'TMFL") for demerger of Non-banking Finance related Business of TMFBSL into the Company, which was approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunai, Mumbai bench on
12 May 2023. The Schema came in 1o effect from June 30, 2023. Appointed date of the Scheme is as 1 April 1 2023, In accordance with the provision of section 72A of the Income Tax
Act, 1961, Pursuant to this demerger, business losses of ¥ 1080,75.72 lakhs and unabsorbed depreciation of ¥ 362,81.48 lakhs were transferred from TMEFSL to the company.
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTICNS LIMITED] {CIN - US5910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

14. Other non-financial assets
{Fin lakhs)
Particuiars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
{a} Capital Advances 2,13.7% 6,53.61
{b} Deposits with statutory suthorities 1,91.47 70.85
{Net of provision X 41.85 lakhs; March 31, 2023 X 87.92 lakhs)
{c} Deposits paid under protest 13,08.15 13,82.51
{d}) Prepaid expenses 40,06.23 62,48.2%
{2} Taxes recoverable and dues from government 93,3595 &65,51.28
{Net of provision X 3,03.69 lakhs; March 31, 2023 ¥ 3,03.69 lakhs}
{f} Stamp papers 12,58.61 11,3073
{g) Cthers 26,14.09 16,82.72
{Net of provision % 2,17.28 lakhs; March 31, 2023 % 2,34.08 lakhs)
Total 189,28.29 175,17.97
15. Derivative financial instruments - March 31, 2024
{% In lakhs)

Particulars Notional Amounts Fair ValueAssets

Nofional Ameunts

Fair Value Liabitities

Currency derivatives
Farward Contracts - -

Forward exchange contracts - - 1831,18.34 4,91.29
Subtotal - - 4,91.29
{nterest rate derivatives

interest rate swaps 1831,18.34 13,42.21 - -
Subtotal 1331,18.34 13,42.21 - -
Other derivatives

Cross currency interest rate swaps 538,96.25 89,02.02 - -
Subtotal 85,02.02 - -
Total Derivative Financial Instruments 2370,14.59 102,44.23 1831,18.34 4,91,29
Derivative designated as hedge

Fair value hedging: - - - -
Interest Rate Derivative - - - -
Subtotal - “ - -
Cash flow hedging:

Forward exchange contracts - - 1831,18.34 4,91.29
Cross currency interest rate swaps 538,96.25 89,02.02 - -
Interest rate swaps 1331,18.34 13,42.21 - -
Subtotal 2370,14.59 102,44.23 1831,18.34 4,91.29
Undesignated Derivatives

Interest Rate Swaps - - - .
Subtotal - - . .
Total Derivative Financial Instruments 2370,14.59 102,44.23 1831,18.34 4,591.29

Refer Note 43 on Financial Risk Management for maturity analysis of Derivative financial liabilities at March 31, 2024,



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LHVITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - U65910MH1992P1C187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements far the year ended March 31, 2024

Derivative financial instruments - March 31, 2023

(X in lakhs})

Particulars

Notional Amounts  Fair ValueAssets

Notional Amounts

Fair Value Liabilities

Currency derivatives
Forward Contracts

Forward exchange contracts
Subtaotal

Interest rate devivatives
interest Rate Swaps
Subtotal

Cther derivatives

Cross currency interest rate swaps
Subtotal

Total Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative designated as hedge
Fair value hedging:

Interest Rate Derivative
Subtotal

Cash flow hedging:

Forward exchange contracts
Cross currency interest rate swaps
Interest Rate Swaps

Subtotal

Undesignated Derivatives

Interest Rate Swaps

Subtotai

Totz| Derivative Financizl Instruments

- - 179,63.75 14,86.64

- - 179,63.75 14,85.64
179,63.75 11,06.20 - -
179,63.75 11,06.20 - -
649,67.75 59,33.29 - -
649,67.75 99,33.29 - .
£29,31.50 110,39,49 179,63.75 14,85.64

- - 179,63.75 14,86.64
649,67.75 99,3329 - -
179,63.75 11,06.20 - -
829,31.50 116,39.49 179,63.75 14,86.64
829,31.50 110,39,49 179,63.75 14,86.64




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED [FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - US5910MH1992PLC187134)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

16. Payables

(= in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
{z) Trade Payables
i. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 13,07.47 13,54.69
il. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 278,06.66 248,30.77
Total 252,14.13 262,85.46
{b} Other Payabies
i. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
ii. torai outstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 110,70.40 103,85.12
Tatal 1148,70.40 103,85.12

Note: Information In respect of micro enterprises and small enterprises to whom the Company owes dues {including interest of X Nil}, which are due during
the period or outstanding as at the balance sheet date and disclosed ahove as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company and relied upon by the
auditor.

Note: According to the infarmation avallable with the management, on the basis of intimation received from its suppliers regarding their status under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Deveiopment Act, 2005, the Company has amounts due to micrc and small enterprises under the said Act as at
March 31, 2024 as follows :

{X In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
2) Principal smount due 13,07.47 13,5469
b} Interest due on above - -
¢} Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 200 - -
4} Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay - -
e) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end - -
f} Amount of further remaining due and payable in the succeeding year - -
Total 13,07.47 13,54.69
As at March 31, 2024
(X in lakhs}
Particulars Not due Unbilled Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than Total
1Year 3 Years
{i} MSME 11,54.96 - 1,52,51 . - - 13,07.47
(i) Others 171,83.97 35,66.50 £63,06.82 2,42.52 3,83.74 2,23.11 279,06,66
{iii} Disputed duess — MSME - - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - .
Total 183,38.93 35,66.50 64,59.33 2,42.52 3,83.74 2,23,11 292,14.13
As at March 31, 2023
(Zin fakhs}
Particulars Not due Unbilted Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than Total
1Year 3 Years
(i) MSME 10,66.67 2,83.13 4.89 - - - 13,54.69
(i) Others 147,80.99 44,22.85 48,71.45 5,58.08 90.96 2,06.44 249,30.77

(i) Disputed dues ~ MSME - - - - . . .
(iv) Disputed dues - Gthers - - - - - - N

Total 158,47.66 47,05.98 48,76.34 5,58.08 20.96 2,06.44 262,85.46




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED} {CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

17, Debt securities - At amortised cost
(T in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023

{a} Privately placed non-convertible debentures

i. Secured - 998,95.45

{refer note i)

il. Unsecured 2757,19.43 3266,40.64
{b) Commercial paper

i. Unsecured 1072,70.57 3602,07.83

(net of unamortised discounting charges and borrowing cost of £27,22.43

lakhs; March 31, 2023 X 144,92.17 lakhs)
Total (A} 382%,90.00 7867,43.92
{a) Debt securities in india 3829,90.00 7867,43.92
{b} Debt securities cutside India - -
Total (B) 3829,90.00 7867,43.92

Note {i}: Nature and extent of security for secured borrowings outstanding

Nature and extent of Security created and maintained for secured non-convertible debentures (privately placed) listed on WDM segment of NSE

as per SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015

At March 31, 2024, there is nil outstanding against secured non-convertible debentures of the Company.
The security created for proposed secured non-convertible debentures include first pari passu charge by way of registered mortgage on one of the
Company’s residential flat, all receivables of the Company arising out of loan and lease transactions, all other hook debts, trade advances forming
part of movable assets of the Company and any other security as identified by the Company and acceptable to the debenture trustee,
hypothecation on the Movable properties of the company as defined in the relevant security documents.

Since, no secured NCDs were outstanding as of March 31 2024, no security cover is reguired to be maintained.

Details of Non Convertibie Debentures (Secured) {% in lakhs)
From Balance sheet Date As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Interest Rate Range Amount interest Rate Range Amount

issued on private placement basis
Repavyable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year - - 8.50% to 8.75% 1005,66.00
Total Face Value - 1000,00.00
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost - 1,04.55
Total Amortised cost - 998,95.45

* These NCDs are zero coupon NCDs issued at par value and redeernable at prermium and the amount stated above are gross of premium on

redemption.
Details of Non Cumulative Debentures {Unsecured) {% in takhs)
From Balance sheet Date As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Interest Rate Range Amount interest Rate Range Amount

issued on private placement basis
Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year 7.15% t0 10.54% 1987,81.76 7.57% t0 7.97% 6006,00.00
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 8.43% 10 8.43% 866,31.54 7.48% t0 9.49% 1987,81.76
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years - ~ 8.43% t0 8.43% 966,31.64
Total Face Value 2954,13.40 3554,13.40
tess: Unamortised borrewing cost 196,93.97 287,72.76
Total Amortised cost 2757,18.43 3266,40.64




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTHONS LIMITED) {CIN - US5910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Details of Commercial Papers (Unsecured) {% in lakhs}
From Balance sheet Date As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Interest Rate Range Amount interest Rate Range Amount
Repayable on Maturity:
Waturing within 1 Year 8.32% 10 8.45% 1100,00.00 6.70% to 8.65% 3747,00.00
Total Face Value 1100,06.00 3747,00.00
Less: Unzmortised discounting charges 27,25,43 144,92.17
Total Amortised cost 1072,70.57 3602,07.83
12. Borrowings {Other than debt securities}
(% inlakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
{a) Term loans from banks
i. Secured 15828,73.45 18396,27.81
[refer note 1 and 1.1)
ii. Unsecured 2463,71.8% 3692,45.33
{b} Inter Corporate Deposits from related parties {unsecured) - 84.84
{c) Loans repayahle on demand from banks
i. Secured 2740,00.00 1910,00.00
{refer note 1)
ii. Unsecured 174,90.00 -
{&) Cash Credit from banrks {secured} 143,03.94 74,98.01
(refer note 1)
{f) Collateralised Debt Obligation (secured) - 74,87.24

(refer note 1)
Total (A}

{a) Borrowings in India
{b) Borrowings cutside india
Total {B)

Notes

25348,39.28

24149,53.23

22867,93.95 23207,05.34
2480,45.33 942,47.89
25348,35.28 24148,53.23

Nature of Security for secured term loans, cash credit and loans repayable on demand from banks
{1) Secured term loans from banks are secured by 2 pari-passu charge in favour of the security trustee on:
a) All receivables of the Company arising out of loan, lease transactions and trade advances,

b} All other book debts.

c) Receivables from pass through certificates in which Company has invested.

d) All factoring receivables

e} Such other current assets as may be identified by the Company from time to time and accepted by the security trustee,

{1.1) External Commercial borrowings is secured by way of first pari passu charge in favour of lenders on receivables of the Company.

{2) The Company has utilized all it's borrowings from Banks & Financial institutions for the purpose they have been borrowed.

{3) None of the borrowings have been guaranteed by directors or others.
{4) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of principal and interest.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED] {CIN - UB5910MH1992PLC187184)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Total term loans as per contractual terms {F = A+E)
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs
Total Amortised cost (G}

17353,17.15

6,89.04

17346,28.11

Details of Term Loans from hanks {Secured) (% in lakhs)
From Balance sheet Date As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Interest Rate Range Amount Interest Rate Range Amount

1. Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year 7.40% 10 9.11% 200,580.00 777%tc 8.97% 2825,00.00
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 8.79% 10 8.79% 200,00.00 7.40% to 8.88% 875,00.00
Total repayable on maturity {A) 2205,00.00 3700,00.00
2. Repayable in Instaliments:
i. on quarterly basis
Maturing within 1 Year 8.25% t0 8.80% 3695,79.91 7.40% 10 9.15% 3586,51.45
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 8.25% to 9.40% 4496,43.64 7.40% to 10.00% 5198,29.76 -
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years 8.25% to 5.10% 1414,06.10 7.50% to 8.95% 1222,35.72
Subtotal (B} 9606,25.65 10017,16.83
it. on half yearly basis
Maturing within ‘1 Year 8.50% to 8.85% 909,44 .88 7.75% to 8.80% 883,75.00
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 8.50% to 9.10% 2842,91.43 7.25% to 8.80% 1218,54.17
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years 8.50% to 8.85% 1285,51.19 7.40% to 7.85% 883,33.33
Subtotal (C} 5041,87.50 2985,62.50
iti. on yearly basis '
Maturing within 1 Year 7.85% to0 8.05% 200,00.00 7.60% to 8.80% 266,66.67
Maturing between 1 year {o 3 Years 9.05% to 8.05% 200,00.00 7.60% to 8.70% 300,00.00
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years 9.05% to 9.05% 14,000.00 8,70% to 8.70% 200,00.00
Subtotal (D) 500,00.00 766,66.67
Total repayable on instaliments (E = B+C+D) 15148,17.15 13769,46.10

17469,46.10

15,66.18

17453,79.92

Details of External Commercial Borrowings {USD) {Z in lakhs)
From Balance sheet Date As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Interest Rate Range Amount interest Rate Range Amount
{Refer note} {Refer note}

1. Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year 9.04% 10 9.17% 83,382.12 7.50% to 7.90% 123,25.50
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 8.62% t0 8.73% 1650,87.55 8.97% to 9.16.% 822,19.36
Total repayable on maturity 2484,69.67 945,44.86
tess: Unamortised borrowing costs 4,24.33 2,9697
Total Amortised cost {H} 2480,45.34 942,47.89
Grand Total (| =G+ H} 19826,73.45

Note : Represents effactive interest rates which includes cost of hedging

18396,27.81



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED]) {CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Details of Term Loans from banks {Unsecured) (% in lakhs)
from Balance sheet Date As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Interest Rate Range Amount Interest Rate Range Amount
1. Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within & Year 7.90% to 8.90% 21,600.00 - -
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years - - 8.40% to 8.40% 21,000.0¢
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years 8.80% to 8.90% 40,000.00 8.25% 10 8.65% 40,000.00
Total repayable on maturity {A) - 610,00.00 810,00.00
2. Repayable in Installments;
i. on monthly basis
Maturing within 1 Year - - - -
Maturing between 1 year 10 3 Years - - - -
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years - - - -
Maturing beyond 5 Years - - - -
Subtotal (B)
il. on quarterly basis
Maturing within 1 Year 9.05% te 5.05% 62,50.00 8.80% to 8.60% 62,50.00
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 5.05% tc 9.05% 125,00.00 8.60% to 8.60% 125,00.0C
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years - - 8.60% to 8.60% 62,50.00
Subtotal {B) 187,50.00 250,00.00
iii. on half yearly basis
Maturing within 1 Year 8.80% t0 9.20% 666,66.67 7.80% to 8.85% 416,66.67
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years 8.80% to 8.80% 250,00.00 7.80% to 8.85% 816,66.67
Total repayable in installments (€) 916,66.67 1333,33.34
iv. on yearly hasis
Maturing within 1 Year 8.70% to 8.95% 750,00.00 7.95% to 8.10% 75,000.00
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years - - 7.95% to 8.10% 75,000.00
Subtotal {D) 750,00.00 1500,00.00
Total repayable on installments {E = B+C+D} 1854,16.67 3083,33.34
Total term loans as per contractual terms (F = A+E} 2464,16.67 3693,33.34
Less: Unamaortised borrowing costs 44,78 88.01
Total Amortised cost 2463,71.89 3692,45.33
Details of Inter corporate deposits (1CDs) (Unsecured)
From Balance sheet Date As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Intarest Rate Range Amount Interest Rate Range Amount
Maturing within 1 Year - - 8.39% 10 8.3%% 94.84
Total - 94.84
Less: Unamortised finance cost - -
Total Amortised cost - 94.84
Details of Loans repayable on demand from banks {Secured)
From Balance sheet Date As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Interest Rate Range Amount interest Rate Range Amount
Maturing within 1 Year 7.70% to 8.50% 2740,00.00 7.50% to 8.30% 1916,00.00
Total 2740,00.00 1910,00.00
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs : - -
Total Amortised cost 2740,00.00 1910,00.00




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {(FORMERLY KNGWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED} {CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Details of Loans repayable on demand frem banks {unsecured)

From Balance sheet Date As at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

interest Rate Range Amount

Interest Rate Range

Amount

Maturing within 1 Year
Total

Details of Cash credit facilities {Secured)

8.08% to 8.08%

174,90.00
174,90.00

From Balance sheet Date

As at March 31,2022

As at March 31,2023

interest Rate Range Amount Interest Rate Range Amount
Maturing within 1 Year 8.90% t0 9.05% 143,03.94 7.95% to 7.95% 74,98.01
Total 143,03.94 74,98.01
Less: Unamartised borrowing costs - -
Total Amortised cost 143,03.94 74,98.01
Details of Collateralised Debt Obligation {Secured) (% in lakhs)
From Balance sheet Date As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Interest Rate Range Amount interest Rate Range Amount
Maturing within 1 Year - 6.40% t0 8.00% 74,87.24
Total - 74,87.24
tess: Unamartised borrowing costs - -
Total Amortised cost - 74,87.24
19. subordinated liabilities (unsecured)
(% in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
(a} Perpetual Debt Instruments to the extent that do not qualify as equity {unsecured) 50,10.50 124,81.59
{b) Privately placed subordinated unsecured redeemable, non-convertible debentures 1G32,75.57 1186,85.64
Total (A} 1082,86.07 1311,67.23
{a) Debt securities in India 1082,86,07 1313,67.23
(b} Debt securities outside India - -
Total {B) 1082,86.07 1311,67.23 "
Details of Subardinated liabilities in the nature of Tier il unsecured redeemable non-convertible debentures {Z in takhs)
From Balance sheet Date As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Interest Rate Range Amount Interest Rate Range Arnount
Issued on private placement basis
Repayable on Maturity:
Maturing within 1 Year 9.70% to 10.60% 235,00.00 9.85% to 10.15% 155,10.00
Maturing between 1 year to 3 Years - - §.70% to 10.50% 235,00.00
Maturing between 3 Years to 5 Years 8.35% to 10.00% 500,00.6C 2.35% t0 9.00% 250,60.00
Maturing heyond 5 Years 9.95% to 10.25% 300,00,00 9.95% to 10.25% 550,00.0¢
Total Face Value 1835,00.00 1190,10.00
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost 2,24.43 3,24.36
Total Amortised cost 1032,75,57 1186,85.64
Details of Subordinated iiabilities in the nature of unsecured non-convertible Perpetual Debentures* (¥ in lakhs),
Particulars Face Vaiue As at March 31
2024
11.10% TMFL Perpetual "A™ FY 2014-15 10 takhs 50,30.00
Total 50,30.00
Less : Unamaortised Borrowing Cost 18.50
Total Amortised cost 50,10.50

Note 1 - Redempticn period is not applicabie as the NCDs are perpetual. The Company has a call option which can be exercised, after the priar
approval of the Reserve Bank of ndia, at the expiry of 10 years from the date of aliotment and at the end of every month thereafter. in case of
nori-exercise of the option at the expiry of 10 years from the date of aliotment, coupon rate will be increased as per the terms of relevant offer

document.
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20. Other financials liabilities
(T in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
{a) Interest accrued on borrowings 154,33.60 24%,79.35
{b) Payabie for assigned receivables 437,31.64 448,57.38
{c) Deposits 8,56.36 6,74.21
{d} Lease liability for right of use assets 81,67.74 83,89.28
{e) Others 473,33.47 223,75.81
Total 1155,22.81 1002,76.03
21. Provisions
(X in lakhs}
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
{a} Provision for leave encashment 11,1822 10,30.83
(b} Provision for gratuity 7.51.78 57.59
(€} Provision for indirect taxes 63,92.43 68,82.43
{d) Provision for consumer disputes 11,18.99 1,19.55
Total 98,82.42 81,00.40
Movement of provisions during the year as required by Ind AS - 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Asset”
{a} Provision for Indirect taxes
(X inlakhs}
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Opening Balance 68,92.43 66,26.52
Add : Provision during the year - 2,65.91
Less : Utilisation/reversal during the year - -
Closing Balance 68,92.43 68,92.43
(b} Provision for consumer disputes
{Zin lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Opening Balance 1,19.55 72.54
Add : Provision during the year 10,21.9% 1,07.93
Less ; Utilisation/reversal during the year 22.55 60.92
Closing Balance 11,18.99 1,19.55
22. Other non-financial Habilities
(X in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 21 As at March 31
2024 2023
(a) Statutory dues 50,77.37 £3,19.37
(b} Others 19,00.41 25,65.74
Total £9,77.78 78,85.11




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {(FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

23A. Equity Share Capita!

(Zin iakhs)
Particuiars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Numiser L Number z
A Autherised
(2}  Equity shares of ¥ 100 each £30,000,000 5300,00.0¢ 530,000,000 5300,00.00
{b) Preference shares of T 100 each {redeemzbie) 20,000,000 200,00.00 20,000,000 200,00.00
550,000,000 6500,00.00 550,000,000 5500,00.00
B Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up
Equity Shares of T 100 each 456,939,176 4969,39.18 170,049,735 1700,49.74
Total 496,939,176 4969,39.18 170,049,735 1700,49.74
a) Recongiliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
{Zin lzkhs}
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Number X Number %
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 170,048,735 1700,49.74 170,049,735 1700,49.74
:23:?:;& of shares on account of Demerger Scheme (Refer 326,889,441 3768,89.44 ) }
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 496,939,176 4969,39.18 170,049,735 1700,49.74
b} Betails of shares held by holding company and its subsidiaries:
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
% of {ssued Share % of Issued Share
Number . Number .
Capital Capital
A. Equity shares with voting rights
Holding Company
TMF Holdings timited 485,939,176 10C.00 170,049,735 100.00
¢} Details of shares held by Promoters
Promoter name As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
No. of shares % of !ssuf_-d Share No. of shares % of Issut-ad Share
Capital _ Capital
TMF Holdings Limited 496,939,276 100.00 170,049,735 100.00

There is no change in promotors sharehclding {except new issuance as determined In part {a})during year ended March 31, 2024 and year

ended March 31, 2023.

d) Terms / rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares, Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the
Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to recelve dividend as deciared from time to time subject to payment of
dividend to preference shareholders. The voting rights of an equity sharehotder on a poll are In proportion to its share of the paid-up
equity capital of the Company. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual
assets of the Company, remaining after gistribution of alj preferential amaunts In propartion to the number of the equity shares held.

¢) Information regarding issue of shares in the last five years

3} During the year ended March 31, 2024, pursuant to scheme of demerger the Company has issued 32,68,89,441 of equity shares without
payment being received in cash. {Refer note 35)

(i} The Company has not issued any bonus shares.

(i5} The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares,

{) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting year
The Cornpany has not declared dividends at the end of the reporting year {(March 31, 2023 - Nil).



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNQWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) [CIN - U65910MM1992PLC187184}

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

238, Instruments entirely equity in nature
{i} Parpetual Debt
{%X In lakhs)
As at March 31 As at March 31
Particulars 2024 2023
Mumber X Number %
Balance as at heginning of the year 13,080.00 1808,00.00 14,480.00 1448,00.00
Increase during the year - - 3,604.00 360,00.00
Balance as at end of the year 18,080.00 1808,00.00 18,080.00 1808,00.00
The Company has issued subordinated, listed, unsecured, rated perpetual securities aggregating to X 1808,00 lakhs.
The coupon on these securities ranges between 8.35% p.a. to 11.50% p.a. These securities are perpetual in nature with no maturity or
redemption and are callable only at the option of the Company. Thera is a step up provision of 100 bps over the respective coupon rate if the
securities are not called by the issuer at the end of 10 years from the date of allotment, The payment of any Coupon may bz canceifed or
suspended at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
2jThe Coupon on these securities shall not be cumulative except where the company shall not be fiable to pay coupon and may defer the .
payment of Coupon, i
i. it's capital to risk assets ratio (“CRAR") is below the minimum regulatory reguirement prescribed by R8Y; or
il. the impact of such payment results in the Company’s CRAR falling below or remaining below the minimum regulatory requirement
prescribed by Reserve Bank of Indig;
b} In the event that making of any Coupon payment by the Issuer may result in net 10ss or increase the net loss of the Issuer, the making of
such of Coupon paymant by the Issuer shall be subject to the prior approval of the RB! and shall be made on receipt of such approval
provided that the CRAR remains above the regulatory norm after the making of such payment.
¢} The Coupon on the Debentures shall not be cumulative except in casas as in (a) above.
As these sacurities are perpetual in nature and the Company does not have any redemption obligation, these have been classified as equity,
23C. Equity Component of Compound Financial Instrument
{Xin fakhs)
As at March 31 As at March 31
Particuiars 2024 2023
Number X Number S
Authorised
Preference shares of X 100 each 80,000,000 800,00.00 80,000,000 800,00.00
800,00.00 800,00.60
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up
Equity portion of cumulative, non-participating
Compulsorilty convertible preference share - - - -
{CCPS} of % 100 each
Equity portion of non-cumulative, non-
participating Compulsarily convertibie - - - -
preference share {CCPS) of % 100 each
Total - - - -
a}  Reconciliation of the CCPS outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
{Z in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Number i Number £
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year - - 72,306,000 471,11.44
Shares cc!.nverted during the year into equity } . N 72,300,000 (471,11.44)
(Refar point {&) below)
Shares outstanding at the end of the year u - " -
b}  Detaits of CCPS held by holding company and its subsidiaries:
particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Number Y%of total shares Number %of total shares

TMF Holdings Limited - - . . .



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED)] (CIN - UE5910MH1292PLC187184}
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

cl Details of Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares {CCP5} held by each
. Ag at March 31 As at March 31
Particulars
2024 2023
Number of shares % of halding in % of holding in that class
that class of Mumber of shares held
heid of shares
shares
TMF Holdings Limited - - -
d)  Details of shares held by Promoters
X As at March 31 As at March 31
Particulars
articul 2024 2023
Mo, of Shares  %of totzl shares No, of Shares %of total shares
TMF Holdings Limited - - - -
e}  Terms [ rights attached to preference shares:
The Company had cumuiative, non-participating compulsorily convertile preference shares (CCPS) having a face value of T 100 each. The
helders of the CCPS are entitled for dividend on a yearly basis, in preference to the equity shareholders , subject to applicable faw, availability
of profits , after provision for depreciation. The CCPS were mandatorily convertible into equity shares on the date falling at the expiry of 7
years from the CCPS allotment date.
However, on June 29, 2622, the Company had early converted the outstanding Compuisorily comvertible preference share {CCPS) at pre-
determined conversion ratio. On conversion of CCPS, the Company had issued 23,470,506 equity shares of face value of ¥ 100 each against
723,00,000 no. of CCPS of face value of X 100 each.
) Information regarding issue of shares in the last five years
[} The Company has not issued any shares without payment being received in cash,
(i}  The Company has not issued any bonus shares.

(it}

The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED} {CIN - USS910M# 1992PLC187184)

Note 23D

4

Other componenis of squity

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{1}  The miovement of Equity instruments through Other Comprehensiva Income {GCH is as follows i {% in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 62,81.87 -
Included pursuant tc comman control transaction 65,61.15
Other comprehansive income for the year 45,27.85 {3,73.87)
income tax relating to gain/loss arising on other {11,38.57) 94.59
comprehensive income where applicable
Balance at the end of the year 96,70.15 62,8187
{2)  'The movement of Hedging Resarve is as follows :- {Zin iakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 |
Balance at the beginning of the year 21,95.82 -
included pursuant to common contret transaction - (9,21,58)
Gain/lloss) reclassified to profit or loss {5,55,00) 31,17.40
Balance at the end of the year 16,40.82 21,95.82
{3}  The movement of Cost of Hedging Reserve is as follows :- {% in fakhs}
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Balance at the beginning of the year (6,35.83) -
Included pursuant to common control transaciion (4,57.02)
Gainf{loss) recognised on cash flow hedges - Gain/{Loss) - {11,88.56}
Gain/{loss) reclassified to profit or loss 21,41.28 10,00.68
Baiance at the end of the year 15,05,39 [6,35.8%)
{4} The movement of Debt instrurents through other comprehensive income is given in note no., 38 'Fair Value measurement’
{5} Summary of Other components of equity :- (% in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 96,70.15 ©2,81.87
Hedging Reserve 15,40.82 21,95.82
Cost of hedging reserve 15,05.39 {6,35.89)
Debt instruments through other comprehensive income 407,54.02 463,18.02
Total 535,760.33 541,59.82
n Notes to reserves
{1}  Special reserve
As par Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Company 's required to create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not
less than 20% of its net profit every year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss and before any dividend is declared. No
appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund can be made by the Company except for the purpose as may be specified by the Reserve
Bank of Indla from time to time and every such appropriation shall be reparted to the Reserve Bank of india within twenty-cne days from tha
data of such withdrawal. The Company transfers said amount at the end of the financial year.
{2) Demerger reserve
Represents the difference between equity share capital issued and all assats, liabilities and reserves taken over on damargar of the NBFC
undertaking of the TMF Business Services Limited (refer note 35).
{3} Capital redemption reserve

The indian Companies Act, 2013 {the "Companies Act”) requires that where a2 company purchases Its own shares out of free reserves or
securities premium account, a sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased shall be transferred to 3 capital redemption
reserve account and details of such transfer shall be disclosed in the balance sheet. The capital redemption reserve account may be applied
by the company, in paying up unissued shares of the company to be issued to shareholders of the company as fully paid bonus shares.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LINITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MGTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED] (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{4) Securities Premium Account
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity instruments is recognised in Securities Premium Account. Also, issue expenses in
respect of issuance of equity & CCPS infusion is recognised in Securities Premium Account.

{5) Capital reserve
The Capital Reserve represents the compensating reversal adjustment relating to amortisation of discount on the Zero Coupon Debentures
which were charged against the Securities Premium Reserve earlier which is not allowed as per the Companies Act, 2013, This separate

{6) Generalreserve
The Company has transferred & portion of net profit of the Company before declaring dividend to General Reserve pursuant to the earfier
provision of Companies Act, 1956. Mandatory transfar to general reserve is not reguired under the Cormpanies Act, 2013.

{7} Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date.

{8)  Equity Instrument through OC}
It represents the cumutative gains/{losses} aristng on the revaluation of kquity Shares measured at fair value through OCL

{8}  Debt instruments through OCI
it represents the revaluation of debt instruments measured threugh OCL

{10) Hedging Reserve through GCl
It represents the effective partion of the fair value of forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedge.

{11} Cost of hedge reserve
Fair value gain/{loss) attributable to cost of hedge on all financials instruments designated in cash flow hedge relationship are accumulated in
cost of hadge reserve,



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN -

U65910MH1952PLC187184)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Xin lakhs}
24. Interest income For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 March 31
2024 2023
On financial assets measured at amortised Cost
(a) interestonloans 2285,52.87 2730,33.23
(b} interestincome from investments 99,18.36 71,78.88
(e} Interest on depaosits with hanks 38,40.61 61,68.35
(d} Otherinterest income 9,60.24 20,15.05
On Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit 8 Loss
(a) Interest income from investments - 1,62.98
On financial assets measured at FVOCI
{a} Intereston loans-FVOC) 1380,72.90 1400,30.18
Total 3813,84.98 4285,88.67
(X in lakhs)
25. Fees and commission income For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 March 31
2024 2023
{a) Commission on insurance agency business (Note 1) 22,16.24 -
(b} Co-sourcing commission 49,98.16 35,20.74
(c) Servicing fees for loan assigned 21,21.63 21,56.01
(d} Other fees & charges 89,64.62 118,64.41
Total 183,00.65 175,41.16
Note 1: includes commission of X 19,88.52 lakhs & % 2,26.72 lakhs on life insurance and non-life insurance respectively.
{%in lakhs)
. . For the year ended For the year ended
26. Net gain on fair vaiue changes March 31 March 31
2024 2023
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 746,83.92 156,87.73
Total 746,83.92 156,87.73
Fair Value changes:
(2} Realised 128,26.94 151,54.67
{b} Unrealised 618,56.98 5,33.06
Teotal 746,83.92 156,87.73
(% in lakhs)
7. Other Income For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 March 31
2024 2023
{a) Support services income 37,24.22 52,87.27
(b} Balances written back 6,13.23 15,52.54
{c} Netgain on derecognition of property, plant and eguipment 39.96 25.34
(d) Miscellaneous income 7.15.71 3,35.24
Total 50,93.12 72,00.39




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED} {CIN -

U65910MH1992PLC187184)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Zin lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
28. F
8. Finance Costs March 31 March 31
2024 2023
(a) Interest on borrowings 1856,56.68 1881,90.25
(b) Interest on debt securities 521,73.65 676,52.44"
{c} Interest on subordinated labilities 111,29.25 137,75.02
{d} Interest expense on lease liability 6,77.21 6,48.78
(e} Other finance charges 30.26 1,06.12
Total 2496,67.05 2703,72.61
(% in lakhs)
. . For the year ended For the year ended
29. ton fi 1i ts and
Impairment on financial instruments an other assets March 31 March 31
2024 2023
Loans measured amortised cost
(a} Allowance for loan fosses (760,98.04} (187,84.59)
(b) Loans written-off 1749,39.80 2010,64.26
{net of racoveries of X 158,15.86 lakhs For the year ended March 3%,
2024: % 170,45.72 lakhs For the year ended March 31 ,2023)
Loans measured fair value through other comprehensive income
(a) Alowance for loan lasses-FYOC! 113,12.05 202,84.81
Other assets
{a} Allowance for doubtful assets 25,74.40 3,47.77
{p) Balances written-off 75.11 9.02
Total 1128,03.42 2029,21.27
(% in lakhs}
For the year ended For the year ended
30. Employee benefits expenses
mioy B March 31 March 31
2024 2023
(z) Salaries 458,53.74 347,55.56
{b) Centribution to provident and other funds 25,64.79 19,26.70
{c} Staff welfare expenses 23,12.11 18,75.01
Total 507,30.64 385,57.27




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {(FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN -

U65910MH1992PLC187184)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(% in lakhs}
For the year ended For the year ended
31, Other expenses March 31 March 31
2024 2023
{a) Rent, taxes and energy costs 12,40.99 14,74.88
{b) Repairs and maintenance 4,15.73 3,70.04
{c] CSRexpense 2,78.56 4,17.53
{d) Communication costs 5,61.81 5,93.24
{e) Printing and stationery 2,48.79 2,65.48
{f} Advertisement and publicity 5,35.26 6,74.62
{g) Director's fees, aliowances and expenses 3,08.67 3,53.91
{h} Auditor's fees and expenses 1,21.80 1,56.66
{refer Note (i} below)
(i) tegal and professional charges 91,94.31 63,47.57
(it insurance 90,35.42 61,40.71
(k} Commission 66,37.25 70,84.24
(I} Service provider fees 174,61.00 242,83.94
{m) Travelling and conveyance 21,0661 14,38.69
(n} Cenvat credit reversal 51,96.94 65,70.03
(0} Loss on sale of asset held for sale 33,72.41 71,04.53
(p} Others expenses 50,72.06 48,80.17
Total 617,91.61 681,56.24
(% in lakhs)
. e . . . Far the year ended For the year ended
{iy Auditors’ remuneration {excluding taxes): March 31 March 31
2024 2023
(a) As auditors - statutery audit 95.00 1,05.63
{b} Taxaudit 13.00 13.88
{c) For other services 8.55 31.42
(d) Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 5.25 5.73
Total 1,21.80 1,56.66
(ii} Corporate social responsibility
{Xin lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 March 31
2024 2023
Amount reqguired to be spent by the Company 3,53.65 3,42.44
Amount of expenditure incurred 2,53.90 4,79.62
Excess/{Shortfall) at the end of the year {54.03) 75.0%
Total of previous years excess/{shortfall) 45.72% (62.09)

* Net of refunds pertaining to previous periods.



TATA MQOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN -
U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Reason for shortfall
For FY2024, the Company could not spent entire amount due to project complexities and delay in taunch of the project.

Nature of CSR activities

During FY2024, the Company conducted financial literacy & road safety to driver community {Project Akanksha), Mobile vision
screening camps for the driver community (Project Suraksha) and program consisting of scholarship provided to 25 adolescent giris'
(Project Uddan).

For the year ended For the year ended
Details of related party transactions March 31 March 31
2024 2023

i. Contribution to a trust controtied by the company in relation to C5R

expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard

ii. Any other, please specify - -
Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31 March 31
2024 2023

i. Pravision at the beginning of the year 74.05 62.09.
ii. Additional provision made during the year 24.66 74.05
iii. Provision reversed during the year - -
iv. Provision resuited in expenditure during the year 74.G65 62.09
v. Provision at the end of the year 24.66 74.05
Note :

1. At March 31,2024, unspend amount has been deposited into 2n escrow account with scheduled bank within due date.
2. At March 31, 2023, the company has made provision of Rs. 74.05 lakhs and the same has been subsequently paid for CSR
activities,



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - U65910M H1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

32. Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 — Earnings per share. Basic earnings per equity share
are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity hoiders of Company by the weighted average number of eguity sharas
outstanding during the year {including Ordinary shares that will be issued upon conversion of 3 mandatorily convertible instrument).

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of a
mandatorily convertible instrument.

The following table sets forth, for the years indicated, the computation of earnings per share.

{X in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 Marceh 31
2024 2023

Basic
Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding 496,939,176 496,929,176
Net profit /(Loss) attributable to equity share holders {Refer Note 1) (122,37.26) {1080,41.55)
Basic earnings per share () (2.48) (21.74)
Diluted
Weighted average no. of equity shares cutstanding 496,939,176 456,539,176
Net prefit/(Loss) attributable ta equity share holders {Refer Note 1) {122,37.26) (1080,41.55)
Diluted earnings per share (%) (2.48) {21.74}
Face value per share (X} 100 100
Note 1 - Calculation of net profit attributable to equity share holders
Profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss 51,87.86 (939,53.30)
tLess - Distribution made to holders of perpetual instruments (174,25.12) (140,88.25}
Net profit/ (Loss) attributable to equity share holders {122,37.26) (1080,41.55)

33. Segment reporting
The Company Is primarily engaged in the business of financing and there are ne separate reportable operating segments identified as per the
Ind AS 108 - Segment Reporting.

34, Contingent fiabilities and commitments i

1 Contingent liabilities to the extent not provided for:
a} Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
{Z in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
In respect of consumer disputes 25,77.55 28,07.83
Total 25 77.55 28,07.83
b} Bank guarantee for which the Company is contingently liable:
- (X in lakhs}
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
in respect of guarantees given by banks for Income tax mattars - 95.00

The Company’s pending iitigations comprise of ctaims against the Company primarily by the customers and proceedings pending with Income
Tax and other authorities, The Company has reviewed all fts pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where
provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The amount of provisions /
contingent lizbifities is based on managemant’s estimate, and no significant liability is expected to arise out of the same.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - UG5910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2 Commitments:
Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executad on capital account and not provided fer X15,27.59 takhs {as at March 31, 2023: %
80.85 fakhs).

Other commitments
Loan commitment of $673,24.61 lakhs (as st March 31, 2023: % 14,82.53 lakhs).



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FENANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - UE5910MH1992PLC187184a)

Notas forming nart of financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2024

35, 1. Disclosures for demerger

N

The Board of Directors has at its meeting held on October 3, 2022, approved a Scheme of Arrangement {“the Scheme”} under Saction 230
to Section 232 read with Section 66 of the Act, as amended between the Company and TMF Business Services Limited (Formerly known
as Tata Motors Finance Limited} (its feliow subsidiary) and their respective shareholders for Demerger of the Non-Banking Finance
refated business (“NBFC Undertaking”) of the Tata Motors Finance Limited into tha Company.

Appointed date for the scheme was April 1, 2023, The Reserve Bank of india has gave its no-objection for the Scheme. The Scheme was
approved by Mon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench on May 12, 2023, for which the final order was received on June
15, 2023, The Company had received alf other necessary regulatory approvais and filed the order with Registrar of Companies on June 30,
2023, Accordingly, the scheme came Into effect from June 30, 2023,

The difference, between the equity shares issued and all assets and liabilities, has been debited to ‘Demerger Reserve.
Amount {Rs. in lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars
At April 1, 2023

1 iAssets taken over 30010,07.99
2 {iabilities taken over 26966,04,72
3 iReserves taken over 2086,54.95
4 ifguity shares (32,68,89,441 ne. having face vaiue of Rs. 106 each) issued as consideration for demerger 3268,89.44
5 iDifference between consideration paid and net assets and reserves taken over (1-2-3-4) {2311,41.12}
6 {Canceflation of inter~company investments 103,70.27

Bemerger reserve {5-6) {2415,11.39)

Comparative accounting period presented in the financial statements of the Company has been restated for the accounting Impact of the
transfer, as if the business combination has occurred from the beginning of the comparative period in the financial statements i.e., April
1, 2022,

Financial statements

Business Combination

The Board of Directors has, at its meeting held on October 3, 2022, approved & Scheme of Arrangement {“the Scheme”) under Section
230 to Section 232 read with Section 86 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended between the Company and TMF Business Services
Limited (Formerly known as Tata Motors Finance Limited) {its fellow subsidiary) and their respective shareholders for demarger of the
Non-Banking Finance related business (“NBFC Undertaking”) of TMF Business Services Limited (Formerly known as Tata Motors Finance
Limited) into the Company.

Appointed date for the scheme Is April 1, 2023, The Reserve Bank of india has gave its no-objection for the Scheme. The Scheme was
approved by Hon'bie National Cempany Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench on May 12, 2023, for which the final order was received on June
15, 2023. The Company has received all other necessary regulatory approvals and flied the order with Registrar of Companies on June 30,
2023, Accordingly, the scheme came into effect from June 30, 2023.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the NBFC Undertaking of TMFL has been transferred as a going concern effective April 1, 2023, As NBFC
undertaking is transferred from fellow subsidlary, the demerger has been accounted in accordance with ‘Pooling of interest Methad’ laid
down by Appendix C ‘Business combination of entities under common control’ of Indian Accounting Standard 103 {ind AS 103), ‘Business
Combination’, notified under the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, all assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities have been recorded in
the books of aceount of the Company at their existing carrying amounts and in the same form, The difference, between the eqguity shares
issued and all assets and ilabilities, has been dzhited to ‘Demerger Reserve.” Comparative accounting perfod presented In the financial
statements of the Company has been restated for the accounting impact of the transfer, as if the business combination has occurred
from the beginning of the comparative period in the financial statements .2, April 3, 2022,




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LINMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Following are the assets and liabilities acquired at April 1, 2023

Particufars Amount
{Rs. in lakhs)
Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3226,96.12
Bank balance ather then cash and cash eguivalents £1,41.91
Derivative financial instruments 96,99.07
Receivable
i. Trade receivables 23,96.18
ii. Other receivables 2,37.54
Loans 23756,33.22
investrnents 1455,75.92
Other financial assets 779,06.47
29402,86.51
Non-Financiaf assets
Deferred tax assets [net) 220,47.12
Property, plant, and equipment 95,07.22
Other intangible assets 2,24.14
Other non-financizl assets 118,79.44
436,57.92
Assets held for sale 170,63.56
Total assets (A} 30010,07.99
Liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 14,86.64
Pavables
i. Trade payables
{a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 10,67.67
b} total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 205,75.31
it. Other payables
la} ‘total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises -
{b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smail enterprises 120,74.90
Debt securities 5219,10.58
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 16819,21.31
Subcrdinated liabilities 1311,67.23
Qther financial liabilities 775,14.12

25477,17.76

Non-financial liabilities

Provisions 78,50.25
Other non-financial liabilities 62,36.71
140,86.96

Equity -
tnstruments entirely equity in nature 1348,00,00
Other equity 2086,54.95
3434,54.95
Total liabilities and equity (B} 29052,59.67
Net assets {C) = (A} —{B] 8957,48.32
Less — Equity shares issued as consideration for purchase of NBFC undertaking 3268,89.44
Cancellation of inter-company investments 103,70.27

Demerger reserve

(2415,11.39)




Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Re-stated balance sheet at March 31, 2023

TATA MOTORS FINANCE UIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - U65910MH1992PLCIR7184)

{Amount Rs. in lakhs}

Particulars Before effect of Effect of business | Re-stated balances
business combination post effect of
comhbination business
combination
Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalants 896,20.67 3226,96,12 4123,16,79
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - £1,41,91 51,41.91
Derivative financial instruments 13,40.42 9§,99.07 110,39.49
Receivable
i, Trade receivables 11,65 23,96.19 24,07.84
ii. Other receivables 35,14.58 {32,57.43) 2,57.15
Loans 9772,27.68 23756,33.22 33528,60.90
Investments 614,44,79 1352,05.74 1966,50.53
Other financlal assets 130,70.68 779,06.47 909,77.15
11462,30.47 23264,21.25 40726,51.76
Non-Financial assets
Current tax assets {net} 66,84.63 - 66,584.63
Deferred tax assets {net) - 168,83,92 168,82,92
Property, plant, and egquipmeant 2,45.78 95,07.22 97,53.00
Goodwill 180,25.25 - 180,25.25
Other intangible assets 0.39 2,24.14 2,24,53
Other nen-financial assets 56,38.53 118,79.44 175,17.97
305,94.58 384,94.72 690,89.30
Assets heid for sale 21,37.67 170,63.56 192,01.23
Total assets {A} 11789,62.72 29819,79.57 41609,42.29
Liabilities and equity
Financial Habilities
Derivative financial instruments - 14,88.64 14,86.64
Payahles
i. Trade payables
{a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
entarprises 2,87.02 10,67.67 13,54.69
{b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
entarprises and small enterprises 43,55.46 205,75.31 349,30.77
ii. Other payables
(2} total outstanding dues of microenterprises and small
enterorigses - -
(b} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 18,0518 85,79.93 103,85.12
Debt securities 1648,33.34 6215,10.58 7867,43.92
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 7330,31.92 16819,21.31 24149,53.23
Subordinated Habilities - 1311,67.23 1311,67.23
Other financial liabilities 227,61.91 775,14.12 1002,76.03
9270,74.84 25442,22.75 34712,97.63
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 2,50.15 78,50.25 81,00.40
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 51,63.20 {51,63.20} -
Other non-financial liabilities 16,48.40 62,36.71 78,85.11
70,61.75 89,23,76 159,85.51
Equity 1700,49.74 - 456%,39.18
Instruments entirely equity in nature 480,00.00 1348,00.00 1808,00.00
Other agquity 287,76.39 2086,54.95 {40,80.03)
2448,26.13 3434,54,95 6736,59.15
Total liabilities and equity (B} 11788,62.72 28966,01.50 41609,42.29
Net assets (C} = {A) - [B) - 853,78.07 -
Less — Equity shares issued as consideration for purchase of NBFC 3268,89.44
Demerger reserve {2415,11.39)




Nates forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Re-stated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - U65910MH1992P1LC187184)

{Amount Rs. in lakhs}

Re-stated balances

Before effect of paost effect of
business Effect of business business

Particulars combination cormbination combination
Revanue from operations
{a}) Interest income 1162,14.41 3123,74.26 4285,88.67
{b} Dividend income - 3,77.37 3,77.37
{c) Rentalincome - 3,30.73 3,30.73
{d} Fees and commission income 285,78.58 148,62.58 175.41.16
{a} Metgain on fair value changes 50,28.40 106,55.33 156,87.73
(A Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments 84,56.84 123.74.18 208,31.02
Total Revenue froms operations 3323,78.23 3509,78.45 4833,56.68
QOther income 18,87.42 53,12.97 72,00.39
Total income 1342,65.65 3562,91.42 4905,57.07
Expenses
(s} Finance costs €78,36.69 2025,35.52 2703,72.61
{b} Impairment on financial instruments and other assets 347,00.12 1682,21.15 2029,21.27
{¢} Employee benefits expenses 82,30.97 303,26.30 385,57.27
{d} Depreciation, amortization, and impairment 50,99 23,32.90 24,23.89
{e) OCtherexpenses 131,85.88 5449,66.36 681,56.24
Total expenses 1240,48.65 4583,82.62 5824,31.27
Profit before tax 102,17.00 {1020,91.20) {918,74.20]
Tax expense / [income)
Current tax 3,54.09 - 3,54.08
Deferred tax 22,28.00 {5,03.00} 1,725.00
Total tax expense 25,82.09 {5,08.00 20,79.09
Profit for the quarter 76,34.91 {1015,88.20} {939,53.29}
Other comprehensive income
A i, ems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

{a} Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 20.57 5,23.17 5,43.74

{b) Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - (3,73.87) (3,73.87}

ii. Income tax relating to items that will be rectassified to profit - 94,59 94.58

B i, tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Net Gains/{Losses) on cash flow hedges 86.42 28,52.11 29,38.53

(b} Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive income 161,55.49 {83,89.12) 77,66.37

ii. Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit (40,66.G1) 21,11.37 (19,54.64}

Other Comprehensive Income 121,96.47 (31,81.75) 90,14.72
Total comprehensive inceme for the period 198,31.38 {1047,69.95) {B49,38.57}




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LEVIITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED} {CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

36, Related party disclosuras

t Related parties and their relationship {as defined under IndAS-24 Related Party Disclosures)
A,

Uitimate Helding Company: Tata Motors Limited

Hoiding Company: TMF Holdings Limited

B, Other Reiated Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year end:
(it} Fellow subsidiaries, associates and Joint arrangements within the Group

TMF Business Services Limited {Farmerly known as Tata Motors Finance Limited)
TML Business Services Limited {formerly known as Concorde Muotors (India) Limited)
Tata Technoiogies Limited
Tata Precision Industries {India} Limited
Automobile Corporation of Goa Limited
Tata Muotors insurance Broking & Advisory Services Limited
Tata Hitachi Construction Machinery Company Private Limited
Tata Passenger Electric Mobility Limited
Tata Motors Passenger WYehicles Limited
{ili} Tata Sons and its subsidiaries and loint arrangements

Tata Sans Private Limited

Tata Capital timited

Tata Capital Financlal Services Limited

Tata Capital Housing Finance Limpted

Tata Consultancy Services Limitad

Tata International Limited

Tata AIG Ganeral insurance Company Limited
Tata Telaservices Limited

Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
Tata Communications Limited

(iv) Relatives of Key Management personnel

Ms. Senu Mani - Spouse of Non Executive Director
{Upto August 31, 2023)

{v} Post Employment Benefit Plans

Tata Motors Finance Limited Employees Gratuity Trust

C.  KeyManagement personnel
Mr, Alok Chadha - Whole Time Director (Upto June 30, 2023)
M. Sarmrat Gupta - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (w.e.fJuly 1, 2023)
Mr. Nasser Munjee - Chairman & independant Director
Mrs. Vedika Bhandarkar - Indapendent Director
Mrs, Varsha Purandare - independent Director
Mr. P. 5. Jayakumar - Independent Director {w.e.f july 10, 2023}
Mr, P. B. Bala}l - Non-Executive Director
Mr. N, V. Sivakumar - iIndependent Director {w.e.f November 7,2023)
Mr. Shyam Mani - Non-Exacutive Director {Upto August 31, 2023)
Mr. Dhiman Gupta - Non-Executive Director
Mr. Uday Uehil - Chief Financial Officer {Upts June 30, 2023)
s, Ridhi Gangar - Chief Financial Officer {w.e.f July 1, 2023}
Mr. Vinay Lavannis - Company Secretary (w.e.f july 1, 2023)
My, Megraj Dwivadi- Company Secretary (Upto june 30, 2023)



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LEMITED} {CIN - U65910MH1992PLC18T7184)

Netes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The following table summarizes related-party transactions for the year ended March 31, 2024 and halances as at March 31,2024

(% in lakhs)
Particufars Ultimate Holding Holding Company  Other Related Parties Total
Company
a) Transactions during the year
Recoverles from employee benefit trust - - 8,11.60 8,11.60
interast incame 9,90.10 2,69.26 1,95.7% 14,55.15
Dividend income - - 10,56.79 10,56.79
Inter-Corporste deposits placed S00,00.00 740,00.00 262,00.00 1502,00.00
Inter-Corporate deposits repayment recaived 500,00.00 706,00.00 262,00.00 1462,00.00
inter-Corporate deposits accepted - 300,00.00 - 300,00.00
Inter corporate deposits repaid - 300,94.84 - 300,94.84
Factoring transactions 2105,77.46 - 404,06.45 2509,83.51
Expenses for other services (including reimbursement of expenses) 1,32.45 - 32,22.67 33,55.12
interest expenses - 51,13.42 - 61,13.42
Rent expenses 11.08 4,51.92 - 4,63.00
Other expenses - - 7.00.54 7,00.54
Short-term advances 408,22.54 - £43,53.55 1052,76.05
Short-term sdvances refunded back 409,28.12 - 635,48.99 1044,77.11
Rent Income - - 3,63.04 3,63.04
Other income 35.92 1,08.98 53.33 2,02.23
{% in fakhs)
b} Closing Balance Ultimate Holding Holding Company  Other Related Parties Total
Company
Inter-company deposits - 85,00.00 - 85,00.00
Finance lease receivables 52,09.04 - 31,75.98 93,85.02
Amount receivable - Short-term advances 46,60.10 - 8,04.56 54,64.66
Payables - borrowings ,debt securities & subordinates Habitities - 600,00.00 - 600,00.00
Other receivahles ‘ 1,02.18 27.59 2,53.33 3,83.10
Other Payables £63.16 31,6154 13,60.51 45,25.21
(% in takhs)
¢} Maximum balance during the year Uitimate Holding Helding Company  Other Related Parties Total
Company
inter company deposit " 262,00.00 - 262,00.00
Amaount receivable others hY 92.65 74,61 11,65.24 13,3250
Amount receivable in respect of security deposit 8.87 - 8.87
incentive receivable 59.16 - 58,16
Purchase of receivable 31.28 16.62 47.50
Finance Jease receivable 61,80.62 31,6167 93,42,29
Accrued interest income - Finance lease receivable 28.42 14.32 4274
Amount recelvable - Short-tearm advances 34,39.71 164,85.17 249,24.83
Amount payable in respect of Subordinate liabilities £00,00.00 - 600,00.00
Ampunt payable others 2,41.90 57,82.12 13,94.48 74,2850
{2 in lakhs}
d) Intra Group Exposure Uttimate Holding Holding Company  Other Reiated Parties Total
Company
Total amount of Intra - group exposures 108,69.14 85,00.00 1105,91.19 1299,60.33
Total amount of top 20 Intra - Group exposures 108.69.14 85,00.00 1105,91.19 1299,60.33
o,
o% of Intra group exposures to total exposures of the NB8FCon 0.31% 0.24% 3.46% 3.71%

borrowers/customers
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTd;iS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - US5910MH1992P1C187184)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The following table summarizas related-party transactions for the year ended March 31, 2023 and balances as at March 31, 2023

(Zin lakhs)

Particulars Uhtimate Holding Holding Company  Other Related Parties Total

Company
a) Transactions during the year
Income reiated to financing activities 2,35.68 - - 2,35.68
Interest income on loans and investmants 15,50.65 4,61.00 6.00 20,17.65
Dividend income - - 48.5¢ 49.59
Rent incoms - - 3,58.12 3,58.12
Service charges income 39.00 1,10.64 25,06.80 286,56.24
Expenses for other services {incl. relmbursament of axpanses) 2,46.98 - 27,87.05 30,24.03
Interest Expenses - 83,18.50 - 83,19.80
Rent Expenses {refer nate (i} ) 23.15 4,54.08 - 4,77.23
Other Expenses 75.97 3697 21,1194 22,24.88
Recoverles from employes benefit trust - - 5,47.11 5,47.11
Contributions paid to employee benefit trust - - 5,45.85 545,85
Loans and advances recovered 1470,00.00 355,00.00 - 1825,00.00
{oans and advances taken - 1500,00.00 - 1900,00.00
tssue of share capital (including share pramium) - 700,36.46 - 700,36,45
Loans and advances given 2090,00.00 655,00.00 - 2745,00.00
Loans and advances repaid £20,00.00 1555,00.00 - 2475,00.00
Purchase of fixed assets 9,74.85 - - 9,74.65
Purchase of receivable 578,47.34 14,65.1C 693,12.44
Short-term advances 156,52.66 34.90 156,87.5%
Short-term advances refunded back 109,86.58 - 34.90 110,21.88
Other incoms i8.30 - 8,04.40 g,22.70

{Z in lakhs)

b} Closing Balance Uhtimate Holding Holding Company  Other Relatad Partias Total

Lompany
Raceivable - ioans and Advances 46,65.68 45,00.00 50.00 92,15.68
Other Receivables 85.49 16.75 1.48.12 2,44.36
Recaivable - loans and Advances - Purchase of Receivable 20.00 - - 20.60
Receivable - loans and Advarnces - Finance lease 10.31 - - 10.31
Payakies - Borrowings & debt securities - 900,00.00 - 500,00.00
Other receivable - Factoring 1.29 - - 1.29
Other Payables 2,20.65 30,54.9% 6,79.54 39,5518
Intérest income accrued on loans - Finance lease .01 - - 001
€} Maximum balance during the year Ultlz's::p:::‘dmg Holding Company  Other Related Parties Total
Ameount receivabie athers 50.35 20,76 71.11
Amount receivable in respect of security deposit 7.26 25,4247 25,48.73
Incentive receivable 10,54.88 - 10,54.88
Other receivable - Factoring 36.13 - 36.13
Finance lease recejvabies 10.32 - 18,32
Accrued interest income - Finance lease 0.01 - 0.01
Amaount receivable in respect of Inter company deposit 300,00.00 - 300,00.00
Amount receivable - Short-term advances 53,22.06 - 53,22.06
Amount payable in respect of Subordinate liabilities 500,00.00 - 600,00.00
Amount payable others 2,10.38 42,14.93 - 44,25,32
Amount payable in respect of Inter company deposit 800,00.00 8,02.75 808,02.75
d) Intra Group Exposure Uitimate Holding Holding Company  Other Related Parties Total

Company
Total amount of Intra - Group exposures 30.32 45,00.00 378,00.66 42,330.58
Total amount of top 20 intra - Group exposures 30.32 45,00.00 378,00.66 42,330,98
% of Intra group exposures to total exposures of the NBFC on 0.00% 0.07% 1.01% 1.13%

borrowers/customers

Note:

The Company has entered into various lease rent agreement with ultimate holding company as a lessee. Thase contracts meets the lease definition as per ind AS 116.
Accordingly, the Company has recognized the right of use assets and corresponding lease liability. Rent expenses includes % 11.08 lakhs {% 23.15 lakhs for year March 31,

2023) which has been adjusted against the cutstanding lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116.

The Company has issued 1,38,67,774 equity shares having face value of Rs, 100 each to its holding company, TMF Holdings Limited during the year ended March 31, 2023

{refer note 23A).



TATA MOTORS FEINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWRN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) [CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{1P} Transactions and balances with Key Management personnel and their relatives

[T in lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Transactions during the ye
3t ng the year March 31 March 31
2024 2023
Distributions made for Instruments entirely equity in nature - 10.25
Interest paid on unsecured perpetual debentures 3.40 2.81
Repayment of unsecured perpetual debenturaes 30,00 -
Sale of asset 0.84
Reimbursement of insurance premium 1.65
b) Balances as at As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Net payable - Unsecured perpetual debentures - 1,30.00
Key management personnel remuneration
(% in fakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
articu March 31 March 31
2024 2023
short term employee benefits {refer notes below} 11,78.70 5,33.58
Total 11,79.70 5,33.58
Notes:
[} Expenses towards provision for gratuity and leave encashment which are determined on actuarial basis at an overal! Company level are not included in the above
information,

(i} Includes sitting fees paid to independent directars X 2,88.80 lakhs and % 2,94.30 lakhs for the year ended ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively.
(i} Includes commission paid to independent directors T 2,37.50 and % 2,50.00 Iakhs for the year ended ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS EINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED] {CIN - US5910MEI992PLC1S7154)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

37. Employee benefits

a) Defined contribution plans

Suparannuatien fund

The Company makes contribution towards superannuation fund, a defined contribution retirement plan for qualifying employees. The Superannuation
Fund is administered by the Trustees of the Tata Motors Limited Superannuation Fund. The Company is liable to pay to the superannuation fund to the
extent of the amount contributad. The Company recognise such contribution as an expense in the year of contribution,

The amounts contributed in current year of X 95.44 lakhs (previous year X 1,05 lakhs) has been racognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gratuity

The gratuity defined benefit plan is 2 funded pian and the Company makes contributions to the Tata Motors Finance Limited Employees Gratuity Trust for
funding the defined benefit gratuity plan for gualifying employees. The plan provides far 2 lump sum payment to vested employaess at retirement, death
while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 days salary payable for each completed year of service.

Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service,

The following table sets out the funded and unfunded status and the amounts recognised in the finandial statements for the gratuity plans

a) Changes in definad benefit obligations

{% in lakhs)
Particulars Asat March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Defined benefit obligation, beginning of the year 8,71.62 £,03.03
Currant service Cost 4,75.84 75,93
Interest cost 3,37.12 41,68
Remeasurement {gains) / lossas
Actuarial {gain) flosses arising from change in financial assumptions 60,02 1.38
Actuarial (gain) /losses arising from change in demographic assumptions {63.12} {13.69)
Actuarial {gain) flosses arising from change in experience adjustments 3,37.77 {4.88)
Transfer-in on account of demerger 45,16.18 -
Benefits paid from plan assets {10,11.21) (31.82)
Defined benefit obligation, end of the year 53,24.22 6,71.62
b} Changes in pian assets
{< in fakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year 5,14.03 5,40.38
Interest Income on plan assets 3,39.12 39.46
Remeasurement gains / (losses) -
Return on plan assets, {excluding amount inciuded in net Interest expense| 0.18 3.36
Transfer-in on account of dernerger 45,72.73 -
Empioyer's contribution 57.58 62.64
Benefits paid {10,11.21) {31.82)
Fair value of plan assets, end of the year 45,7244 £,14,03
t) Amount recognised in balance sheet consists of:
{Xin iakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation {53,24.22) (6,71.62)
Fair value of plan assets 45,72.44 §14.03
Net Assets/ (Liability) {7,51.78) {57.59}
4} Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
{2 in fakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 21
2024 2023
Current Service Cost 4,75.84 75.93
Interest on defined benefit obiigations (Net) (2.00} 2.23
Net Charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss 4,73.84 78,186
€) Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income(OCI] for the year:
(® in lakhs)
Particuiars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Remeasurement of the net defined banefit liability:
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest expense/{incame) (0.18} (3.36}
Actuarigl (gain} fiosses arising from change in demographic assumptions (63.12) {13.69)
Actuarial (gain} flosses arising from change in financial assumptions 60.02 1.36
Actuarial (gain) flosses arising from change in experignce adjustments 3,37.77 {4.88)
Net impact on the other comprehensive income bafore 1ax 3,34.45 {20.57)




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMFTED) {CIN - U65910MH2992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

f) The fair vatue of Company’s Gratuity plan asset by category

(T in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2525 2023
Asset Category
- Government securities {quoted) - -
- Debt instruments (quoted) - -
- Debt instruments {unguoted) - -
- Equity shares (guoted) - -
- insurer Managed Funds {unguoted} 100% 100%
g) The assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plans are set out below:
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Discount rate 7.00% 7.20%
Expected return on plan assets 7.20% 7.10%
Salary Escalation rate
2% for first year,
7.00% 7% thereafter
Mortality Tables indian Assured Lives mortality (2006-

08y Ul
{a} Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the

abligations.
{b) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account the inflation, seniority, promation and other relevant factors.

h} The maturity profile of defined benefit obligation are set out below:

{% in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Within next 12 manths {next annual reporting period) 5,83.19 1,05.54
Between 1 and 5 years 31,4422 3,09.01
Between 5 and 9 years 42,2674 5,83.06
i) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions: (% in lakhst
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
100 bps increase in discount rate {2,88.10} {38.71)
100 bps decrease in discount rate 3,19.93 43.30
100 bps increase in salary escalation rate 3,15.99 42.85
100 bps decrease in salary escalation rate (2,89.45) {38.97}

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes In some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reparting period} has been applied as when calcuiating the defined benefit lability recognised in the Balance Sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous year,

i) Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation:
Particulars As a1 March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 5.81 years 7.87 years
k} The best estimate of the expected Contribution for the next year:
(Zin lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31
2024
Expected contribution to the funded gratuity pians in next financial year. £2,10.71

1} Risk Exposure
Through its gratuity cefined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed helow :

Investment Risk: If Tuture Investment returns on assets are lower than assumed in valuation, the scheme’s assets will be lower, and the funding level
higher, than exgected,

Change in bond yields: A decrease in vields will increase plan lizbilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans’ bond
holdings.

Note : Comparative years amounts prasented in employee benefits notes are not restated on account of demerger and are 2s published In previous vear's
financial statement.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MGOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - UGS910MH1992PLCI87184}
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

38. Fair value measurements

Financial Instruments by categories

The following table presents the carrying amounts of each tategory of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024

{in lakhs)
Derivative Derivative
X . . instruments in instruments Total carrying
Financial assets Amortised cost FVTOC! FVTPL K X N
hedging not in hedging value
relationship refationship
(2} Investments-other than Subsidiaries 1247,64.91 168,97.57 1112,83.22 - - 2529,45.70
{b) Loans 14360,54.02 167458,40.28 - - - 311108,03.80
{c) Trade & other receivables 53,84.20 - - - - 53,84.20
(d} Cash and cash aguivaients 3001,26.60 . - - - 3001,26.60
(e} Other bank balances 3,43.42 - - - - 3,43.42
{f) Other financial assets 1087,06.98 - - - - 1087,06.98
{z} Derivative financial instruments - - - 102,44.23 102,44.23
Total 19753,80.13 16918,47.45 1112,83.22 102,44.23 - 37887,55.03
(X in [akhs)
Derivative Dearivative
Financial liabilities Amortised Cost FVTOCH FVTPL instruments in instruments - Total carrying
hedging naot in hedging value
refationship relationship
{a) Borrowings 25348,39.28 - - - - 25348,39,28
(b} Debt sacurities 3829,90.00 - - - - 3823,90.00
(c} Trade & other payables 402,84.53 - - - - 402,84.53
(d} Subordinated liabilities 1082,86.07 - - - - 1082,86.07
(e} Derivative financial instruments - - - 4,91.28 - 491,29
{f} Other financial Hiabilities 1155,22.81 - - - 1155,22.81
Total 31819,22.69 . - 4,91.29 - 31824,13.92

Fair value hierarchy

Set out below, is a comparison by class of carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial assets/liabifities, other than those with the carrying amounts that
ryi

are reasonable approximations of fair values:

(Xin izkhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2024
LCarrying value Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets measured at fair value
{a) investments 1281,80.79 1281,80.7¢ 423,24.56 - 858,56.23 1281,280.79
{b} Derivative instruments 102,44.23 102,44.23 ~ 102,44.23 - 102,44.23
{c}) Loans 16749,49.58 15749,49.88 - - 16749,49.88 16745,49.88
Total 18133,74.90 18133,74.90 423,24.58 102,44.23 17608,06.11 18133,74.90
{Z In lakhs}
Particulars As at March 31,2024
Carrying vaiue Fair value Level 1 Level 2 tevel 3 Total
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
for which fair value is disclosad
{a) Loans 14360,54.02 14379 68.82 - - 14379,68.82 14379,68.82
Total 14360,54.02 14379,68.82 - - 14379,68.82 14379,68.82
{2 in Iakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2024
Carrying value Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
{a} Derivative instruments 4,81.29 4,91.29 - 493,29 - 4,93.29
4,91.29 4,91.2% - 4,91.29 - 4,91.29




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - US5810MH1992PLC187184)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{% in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2024
Carrying value Fair value Level T Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial fiabilities measured at amortised
cost for which fair vatue is disclosed
{a) Debt securities 2757,15.43 2751,16.23 - 2751,16.23 - 2751,16.23
{h} Subordinated liabilities 1082,86,07 1129,73.07 ~ 1129,73.07 - 1125,73.07
Total 3840,05.50 3880,89.30 - 3880,89.3G - 3880,89.30
The following table presents the carrying amounts of each category of financial assets and Habilitles as at March 31, 2023
(X in fakhs)
Derivative Derivative
Financial assets Amaortised cost FVTOC! FVYTPL anstmm?nts n msfcrumen'ts Totai carrying
hedging not in hedging value
ralationship relationship
{a) investments-other than Subsidiaries 1233,14.93 129,96,52 502,09.33 - - 1965,20.78
{b} Loans 16555,76.00 16972,84.590 - - - 33528,60.90
(¢} Trade & other receivables 26,54.99 - - - 25,64.9%
{d} Cash and cash equivalents 4173,16.79 - - - - 4123,16.79
{e) Other bank balances 61,41.91 - - - - 61,41.91
{f) Other financial assets 909,77.15 - - - - 809,77.15
{g} Derivative financial instruments - - - 13,40.42 96,99.07 110,3%.4%
Total 22909,91.77 17102,81.42 602,09.33 13,40.42 96,99.07 40725,22.01
(% in lakhs)
Berivative Derivative
Financial liabilities Amortised Cost svToC FVTPL mstrum:?nts in sns!:rumen.ts Total carrying
hedging not in hedging value
relationship relationship
{a) Borrowings 24145,53.23 - - - - 24149,53.23
(b} Debt securities 7867,43.92 - - - - 7867,43.92
{c) Trade & cther payables 366,70.58 - - - - 366,70.58
{d} Subordinated liabilities 1311,67.23 - - - - 1311,67.23
{e} Derivative financial instruments - - - - 14,86.64 14,86.64
(f} Other financial liabilities 1002,76.03 - - - - 1002,76.03
Total 34698,10.99 - - - i4.86.64 34712 97.63

Fair value hierarchy

Set out below, is a comparison by class of carrying amounts and fair vaiue of the Company's financial assets/liabilities, other than those with the carrying amounts that

are reasonable appreximations of fair values:

(Xin lakhs}
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Carrying value Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets measured at fair value
(g} Investments 732,05.85 732,05.85 494,00.87 - 238,04.98 732,05.85
{b} Derivative instruments 110,39.49 110,39.49 - 110,38.49 - 110,3%.45
{c} Loans 16972,84.50 16572,84.50 - - 16972,84.80 16972,84.50
Total 17815,30.24 17815,30.24 454,00.87 110,39.49 17210,89.88 17815,30.24
{Zin lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Carrying value Fair value Level 3 Leval 2 Level 3 Tatal
Financlal assets measured at amaortised cost for which fair value is disclosed
{a) Loans 15555,76.00 16606,41.40 - - 16606,41.40 16606,41.40
Total 16555,76.00 16606,41.40 - - 16606,41.40 16606,41.48
(X in [akhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Carrying value Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
{a} Derivative instruments 14,86.64 14,86.64 - 1,486.64 - 14,86.64
14,86.64 14,86.64 - 14,86.64 - 14,86.64




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) [CIN - USS910MH1I992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financiai statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(X in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Carrying value Fair value Level 1 tevel 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed
{a) Debt securities 4265,36.09 4212,15.02 - 421,215.02 - 4212,15.02
b} Subordinated liabilities 1311,67.23 1335,65.85 - 133,569.85 - 1335,69.85
Total 5577,03.32 5547,84.87 - 5547,84.87 - 5547,84.87

1. Quoted prices in an active market {Level 1): This leve! of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities, This category consists of quoted equity shares and mutual fund investments.

2. Vaiuation technigues with observable inputs {Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilitias, measured using inputs other than quoted prices

included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e; as prices) or indirectly (i.e; derived from prices). This level of hisrarchy include

Company's over-the-counter (OTC) derivative contracts.

3. Valuation technigues with significant unobservable inputs {Level 3}: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabifities maasured using inputs that are not

tased on chservable market data {unobservabie inputs). Fair vaiues are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither

supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. This level of hierarchy includs
investments in certaln ungucted equity shares.

Valuation technique used to determine fair vaiue of financial instruments

{a} Derlvatives instruments are fair valued using market observable rates and published prices together with forecast cash flow information where applicable are
classified in level 2. The fair value (L.e. Market to Market) of the derivative instruments is provided by independent third party external valuer {i.e. reputed
banks/financial institution).

{b} The fair value of loans arising from financing activities has been estimated by discounting expected cash flows using rates at which loans of similar credit guality and
maturity would be made and internal assumptions such as expected credit losses and estimated coliateral value as at March 31, 2024 and March 21, 2023, Since
significant unaobservable inputs are applied in measuring the fair value of loans arising from finance activities are classified in Level 3.

{c) The fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows, using a discount rate equivaient to the risk-free rate of return, adjusted for the
cradit spread considered by the lenders for instruments of similar maturity and credit quality are classified in level 2.

{d} The fair value of the long term borrowings carrying floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to interest rate changes and will not be significantly different from
thair carrying amounts.

(e} Costs of certain unguoted equity instruments has been considerad as an appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possible fair value
measurements and cost represents the bast estimate of fair value within that range. These investments In equity instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they
are held for medium or long term strategic purpose. Upon the application of Ind AS 109, the Company has chosen to designate these investments in equity
instruments at FYTOC as the directors believes this provides 3 mere mesningful presentation for medium or long term strategic investments, than reflecting changes
in fair value immaediately in profit or {oss.

Certain unquoted equity instruments classified as Leve! 3 are fair valued by independent third party valuer using the Comparable Company Method/Approach
{CCM). Since significant uncbservable inputs are applied in measuring the fair value they are classified in Level 3. lncrease or decrease in multiple will result in
increase or decrease in valuation,

(f} Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. Howaver, there are inherant limitations in any estimation technigue.
Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value astimates presented above afre not necessarily indicative of all the amounts that the Company
could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, the fair valug of the financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting
dates may be different from the amounts reported at each year end.

Fair value of financial assets/Kabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilitles other than those disclosed in table above are considered to be the same as thair fair values due to
the short term maturities of instruments or no material differences in the values.

feconciliation of level 3 financial asset measured at fair value is as below :

(% in lakhs)
icul
Particulars For the period year For the year ended
ended March 31 March 31
2024 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 17210,89.828 14310,17.85
Additions during the year 4116,74.37 6768,77.83
Mark to Market {loss)/gzin recognized in QCI (177,22.99) {113,43.93;
Mark to Market gain recognized in P&L 610,26.88 5,41.47
Reslised during the year {4152,62.04} {3761,03.34)

Balance at the end of the year 17608,06.10 17210,85,88




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

38. Company as 3 Lesses
The Company has leases for the office premises at its PAN India branches, rented yards for repossessed vehicles and for other eguipments like Gensets. With the
exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liabiiity.
Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate {such as lease payments based on a percentage of revenue) are exciuded from the initial
measurement of the lease liability and asset, The Cempany classifies its right-of-use assets in a cansistent manner to its property, plant and equipment {refer Note
13)
Leases of rented offices are generally limited to 2 lease term of 2 to 10 years. Leases of rented yards generally have a lease term ranging from 2 years to 7 years,

Each lease generaily impeses a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublet the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset can
only be used by the Company.

Set out below, are the carrying amounts of the Company's right-af-use assets and fease liabilities and the movements during the year:
{%in lakhs)
For the year ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Right-of-use Other financials Other financiais
assets liabilities Right-of-use assets liabilities

Buildings Lease Liabilities Buildings Lease Liahilities
Balance at the beginning of the year 75,29.78 83,89.28 66,17.53 72,08.09
Additions 15,38.41 15,38.41 26,37.48 26,37.48
Deletions (2,88.92) {3,32.08}) (1,73.75} (56.62)

Depreciation expense {16,84.26) - (15,51.48) -
Interest expense - 6,77.21 - 6,48.78
Repayments - {21,05.08) - {20,49.45}
Salanced at the end of the year 70,95.01 81,67.74 75,29.78 83,89.28

wWhen measuring the lease liabilities for leases that were classified as operating leases, the Company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing
rate.

Refer Note 43 on Financial Risk Management for maturity analysis of lease liabilities at March 31, 2024

{% in lakhs}
Set out below, are the amounts recognised in profit and For the year ended  For the year ended
loss March 31 March 31

2024 2023

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 16,8426 15,5148
Interest expense on lease liabilitles 6,77.21 6,48.78
Rent expense- Short term feases 5,13.00 6,57.42
Leases of low value assets 3.68 3.68

Variable lease payments (not being linked - .
to any index or rate)



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED ([FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial stataments for the year ended March 31, 2024

40, Finance Lease receivables
The Company has entered into lease arrangements as a lessor that are considered to be finance leases. The Company leases vehicles and as it transfer’s substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets they are classified as finance leases. The lease term for these leases ranges from 2 to 7 years.
The maturity analysis of lease receivables, including the undiscounted lease payments to be received are as follows:

(% in lakhs}

Particulars As at March 31 As at March 33,
2024 2023

Less than 1 year 82,80.94 35,14.04
1.2 years 56,18.11 25,60.94
2-3 years 52,895.40 17,85.03
3-4 years 39,16.36 14,%4,96
45 years 3,75.42 3,72.91
maore than 5 years - -
Total undiscounted lease payments receivable 234,96.23 97,41.88
Unearned finance income {41,04.79) {15,87.38)
Net investment in the lease 193,91.44 81,54.50

Further, Company has recognized following amounts in statement of profit and loss during the year

{% in lakhs)
particulars For the year  For the year ended
ended March 31 March 31
2024 2023
Finance income on the net investment in 13,90.28 8,31.04
the lease

41 Reconciliation of movement in borrowings to cash flows from financing activities

{%in lakhs)
’ As at April 01, Exchange Amortisation / EIR As at March 31,
Particulars 2023 Cash flows {net) difference adjustments 2024
Debt securities 7867,43.92 (4383,75.94} - 346,22.02 3829,80.00
24148,53.23 1187,61.83 {1,58.30) 12,82.52 25348,39.28
Borrowings {Other than debt securities)
Subordinated liabilities 1311,67.23 {230,10.00) - 1,28.84 1082,86.07
Total 33328,64.38 (3426,24.11) {1,58.30) 360,33.38 30261,15.35

Mote: Debt securities includes commercial papers and zero coupon debentures for which the discounting charges paid is % 340,20.24 Iakhs on the
repayment date is shawn in the finance cost paid in cash flow statement.

(% in lakhs)
. As at April 01, Exchange Amortisation [ EIR As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 Cash flews {net) difference adjustments 2023
Debt securities 9935,44.58 {2126,04.64) - 58,03.98 7867,43.52
25334,12.88 [1080,87.48) 16,75.83 (120,48.00} 24149,53.23
Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
Subordinated liabilities 1500,55.82 {190,40.00) - 1,51.41 1311,67.23
Totai 36770,13,28 {3397,32.12) 16,75.83 (60,92.61) 33328,64,38

Note: Debt securities includes commercial papers and zero coupon debentures for which the discounting charges paid is € 244,84.45 fakhs on
the repayment date is shown in the finance cost paid in cash flow statement.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE UMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED} {CIN - U65310MH1992PLC187184)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

42, Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

The table below shows the maturity analysis of assets and fiabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled

{Zin lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Lurrent Mon current Total Current Neon current Total
1 ASSETS
1 Financial assets
(a} Cash and cash equivalents 3001,26.60 - 3001,26.60 4123,16.79 - 4123,16.79
{b] Bank Balance ather than cash and cash equivalents 3,43.42 - 3,43.42 8,59.49 52,82.42 61,41.51
{c} Derivative financial instruments 86,17.78 6,26.45 102,44.23 13,40.42 96,99.07 110,39.49
{d} Receivables
i. Trade receivables 33,05.68 - 33,05.68 24,07.84 - 24,07.84
ii. Other receivables 20,78.52 - 20,78.52 2,57.15 - 2,57.15
{e} Loans 24597,00.22 £513,03.68 31110,03.90 25405,26.49 8123,34.41 33528,60.50
{f} Investments 431,31.77 2049,43,68 2830,75.45 571,96.24 1394,54.29 1966,50.53
(g} Other financizl assets 1077,43.32 9,63.66 1087,06.98 878,52.40 30,24.75 909,77.15
2 Nen-financial assets
{a) Current tax assets (net} - 112,37.88 112,37.89 - 66,284,563 66,84.63
{b} Deferred tax assets {net) - 11,63.78 11,63.78 - 168,83.92 168,83.52
(¢} Property, plant and equipment - 112,08.44 112,08.44 - 97,53.00 97,53.00
{d} Goodwill - 180,25.25 180,25.25 - 180,25.25 180,25.25
{e]} Other intangible assets - 7,23.17 7,23.17 - 2,24,53 2,24.53
{f} Other non-financial assets 172,12.35 17,15.94 189,28.29 156,08.46 19,0851 175,17.57
2 Assets held for sale 65,46.18 - 65,4618 192,01.23 - 152,01.23
Total assets 29548,05.84 9019,11.94 38567,17.78 31376,66.51 10232,75.78 41609,42.29
1| LIABILITIES
1 Financial liabilities
{a) Derivative financial instruments 19,51.51 {14,60.22) 4,91.29 - 14,85.64 14,86.64
(b} Payables
i, Trade payables 292,14,13 292,14.13 262,85.46 . 262,85.46
il. Other payahies 110,70.4C - 110,76.40 103,85.12 - 103,85.12
{c} Debt securities 3034,80.32 795,09.68 3825,20.00 5200,64.54 2666,72.38 7867,43.52
{d) Borrowings {Other than debt securities) 12386,82.71 12961,56.57 25348,39.28 10984,70.76 13164,82.47 24149,53,23
(e} Subordinated labilities 234,26.85 848,59.22 1082,86.07 229,80.77 1081,86.46 1311,67.23
{f) Dther financials ligbilities 1066,83.89 88,38.92 1155,22.81 908,42.00 94,34.03 1002,76.03
2 Nen-financial liabilities
{a) Current tax Habilities {net} 19,43 - 18.43 - - -
{b} Provisions 3,24.94 95,57.48 98,82.42 2,21.25 78,79.15 81,00.40
{c] Cther non-financia! liabilities £9,77.78 - £€9,77.78 78,85.10 - 78,8510
Total liabilities 17218,31.26 14774,61.65 31992,93.61 17771,35.60 17101,48.13 34872,83.13
Net 12329,73.88 {5755,49.71} 6574,24.17 13645,31.51 {6868,72.35) 6736,59.16




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED] {CIN - US5910MH1992P1C187184)
Wotes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

43, Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to market risk {including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s risk
managemnent strategies focus on the un-predictability of these elemants and seek to minimise the potential advarse effects on its financial performance. Centralised
treasury department and risk management department advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framewerk for the Company and
provides assurance to the Company's senfor management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriste policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managad in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

All hedging activities are carried out by Centralised treasury department possessing the appropriate skilis, experience and supervision. The Company’s policy is to
hedge the exposure by taking derivative instruments and not to trade in derivatives for speculative purposes.

{A) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a countergarty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financiz! 1035, The Company is
expesad to eredit risk from its

-operating activities, primarily loans arising from financing activities;

- Invasting activities, including primarily investments in dabt securities, preference shares, aquity shares and mutyal fund schemes; and

- financing activities, including term deposits and balances with banks and financlal institutions and other financial instruments.

Exposure to Lredit Risk
The carrying amount of financial assets reprasents the maximum credit exposure, being the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, time depesits with
banks, loans arising from financing activities, investment in debt instruments, derivative instruments and cther financial assets excluding equity investments.

Financial assets that are neither past due or impaired

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks/financial institutions is generally low as the said deposits have been made with banks/financial
Institution who have been assigned high credit rating by international/domestic rating agencies.

Credit risk on derivativa instruments is generally low as the Company enters into derivative contracts with reputed banks,

investments of surplus funds are made only with internally approved financial institutions/counter party and primarily include investments in mutual funds and bank
deposits,

None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. Regarding the derivative contracts, trade receivables and
other financial assets are neither impaired nor past due, there were no Indications as at March 31, 2024, that defaults in payment obligations will oceur,

i} Loans - Credit quality of financiai assets and impairment joss

Loans eriginate from financing activities to customers, Credit risk for loans is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
periodic monitoring of the creditwarthiness of its customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business, Credit risk is monitored by
the credit risk departmant of the Company independent Risk department/function who have the responsibiiity for reviewing and managing credit risk.

The Company creates & secures first and exclusive collateral charge at the time of loan origination on all vehicles for which vehicle financing iloans are given.
Hypothacation endorsement is obtained in favour of the Company in the Registration Certificate of the Vehicle funded under the vehicle finance category. Any
surplus remaining after settiement of cutstanding loan by way of sale of vehicle {collateral} is returned to the customer. Cther than the above Company securas
portion of the loss against loans financed to customers by obtaining third party credit guarantees.

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have similar
economic features that would cause their ahbility to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economie, political or other conditions. The
Company is in retail lending business on pan India basis. Vehicle Finance (consisting of new Commaercial Vehicles, Passenger Vehicles) is lending against security.
Hypothecation endorsement is made in favour of the Company in the Registration Certificate in respert of all registerable collateral. Portfolio is reasonably well
diversified across South, North, East and Western parts of the country. Similarly, sub segments within Vehicle Finance like Heavy Commaerciai Vehicles, Light
Coramercial Vehicles, Car and Multi Utility Vehlcles, and Small Commercial Vehicles, are well diversified inte sub product mix to mitigate concentration risk.

The maximum credit exposure to any single customer from the financing business as of March 31, 2024 was ® 164,60.84 iakhs lakhs {March 31, 2023; % 303,92.92
takhs}.

The Company uses the 3 staging Expected Cradit Loss {ECL) modal to assess the provision for impairment loss aliowance. The model takes into account a continuing
cradit evaluation of Company's customers’ financial condition; ageing of loans; the value and adequacy of collateral received from the customers; the Company's
historical loss experience; and adjusted for forward looking information. The Company defines default as an avent when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery.

The Company makes allowances for lasses on its portfolio of loans on the basis of expected future coflection from receivables. The future collaction are estimated on
tha basis of past collection trend which are adjusted for changes in current circumstances as well as expected changas in collection on account of future with respect
to certain macro economic factor, The Company’s impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out in Note 3{x} - Accounting policies.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {(FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIVITED] {CIN - U65910MH1992PLC18T7184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The tollowing table provides intormation about the credit quality ot tinancial assels and impairment loss
Tha ageing of loans as of balance sheet date is given below. The ageing analysis have been considered from the due date.

{% in lakhs)
Stage-1 Stage-2 Stage-3 Total
Particul i | H | i
reutars Loans (Gross) fmpairment Loans {Gross} impa'rr.nem Loans {Gross) mpairment Loans {Gross) mpatrment
loss allowance loss allowance loss allowance loss allowance
As at 1st April 2023 29580,44.47 208,75.67 2607,85.53 151,05.18 3281,78.85 1581,67.08 35470,08.83 1941,47.93
Transfars during the year
Transfer to Stage-1 §26,00.60 53,20.31 {556,49.56) {29,32.88) {63,51.04) 123,87.43) - -
Transfer to Stage-2 {1608,02.50) {29,49.45]) 1682,53.68 36,36.82 {73,51.19) (16,87.36) - -
Transfer to Stage-3 (663,93.76) {5,53.08} {445,98.54) {23,20.45) 1113,92.70 28,73.53 - -
[1652,95.66) 27,17.77 676,05.18 {16,16.51) 976,80,47 {11,01.26) - -
Impact of change in credit
risk on account of stage - {61,97.82} - 140,66.248 1251,02.45 - 1329,70.89
movement
g::gf::em Opening Credit {38453,41.25} {26,70.95) (1534,03.23) {43,73.73} {563,88.50) {185,84.77)  (40551,42.98} {260,28.45)
New Credit Exposure during
350849,96.30 66,77.85 161,44.47 14,2407 29,50.60 7,62.03 35290,91.36 88,63.95
the year (net of
. Buri
f;gii':r written off Buring - - - . (1749,39.89) (1749,33.89)  (1749,39.89)  {1749,39.59}
As at 31st March 2024 28574,03.86 214,02.52 1911,31.95 246,05.27 1974,81.53 890,05.64 32460,17.32 1350,13.43
Stage-1 Stage-2 Stage-3 Total
Particul i t i i i
articulars Loans {Gross) Impairmen Loans [Gross) Impairment Loans (Gross) Impairment Loans (Gross) Impairment
loss allowance lass allowance loss allowance loss allowance
As at 1st April 2022 27938,42,99 99,86.5% 6545,31.96 200,89.77 3676,32.20 1579,43.92 38160,07.15 1871,20.68
Transfers during the year
Transfer to Stage-1 1980,37.62 116,77.48 {1773,57.75} {43,93.87) {206,79.86} {72,83.61) Q.00 -
Transfer to Stage-2 {1754,34.35) (8,72.05) 1796,57.05 24,8578 (42,22.69) {15,13.68} 10.00) {0.00)
Transfer to Stage-3 {502,24.93) {2,86.87) (1204,33.48)} {41,59.54} 1706,58.41 44,46,41 - -
(276,21.66} 105,18.52 {1181,34.18) (60,67.65) 1457,55.86 {44,50.88)} {0.00} {0.00}
Impact of change in credit
risk on account of stage - {81,91.96] - 73,75.22 - 2087,11.08 - 2078,94.35
movement
Changes in Opening Credit
Exposure {29318,59.06} 3,47.3% {2985,09.93) {75,74.99) 108,56.41 {22,75.600  (32196,12.58) {95,03.20}
New Credit Exposure during
the year (net of 31237,82.20 82,1473 228,97.68 12,82.83 71,20.02 23,94,19 31538,69.90 118,81.74
repayments)
t W Duri
gzz‘;:r ritten off During ) ) ) ) (2032,55.64) (2032,55.64)  (2032,55.64)  (2032,55.64)
As at 31st March 2023 29580,44.47 208 75,67 2607,85.53 151,05.18 3281,78.85 1581,67.08 35470,08.83 1941,47.93




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LEMITED] (CIN - US5910MH13992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(B) Management of Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wilt not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The objective of liquidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient iquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as and when required.

The Company manages the Hiquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously menitoring
forecast and actual cash flows, ant by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit
and liguid schemes of mutual funds, which carry no/negligible mark to market risks.

The below table analyses the Company's non-derivative and derivative financial Hizhilities as at the reporting date, into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period {as at that date) to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the below table are the contractual un-discounted cash flows.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated/contractual interest payments as at March 31, 2024:

(% in lakhs}
. . R Tatal
: Carrying s Due in 2nd Duein3rdto  Due after 5th
Particulars Due in 1st year contractual
amount year Sth year yaar

cash fiows
Non darivatives financial Habilities
Borrowings 25348,39.28 13788,27.45 5517,61.89 9112,02.98 - 28418,82,32
Trade and other payabies 402,84,53 402,84.53 - - - 402,84.53
Debt securities 3829,50.00 3134,86.74 - 966,31.64 - 4101,18.33
Subordinated liabilitias 1082,86.07 379,68.98 77,32.50 702,04.74 304,08.56 14£3,14.78
l.ease liabilities 81,67.74 22,27.14 20,7183 42,81.13 15,55.90 101,36.00
Other financial liabilities {other than lease labilities) 1073,55.07 1071,47.51 32.85 1,74.31 1073,55.07
Derivatives
Derivative contracts 4,91.28 - - 4,91.29 - 4,81.29
Total 31824,13.58 18799,42.75 5615,93.07  10830,76.09 319,64.46  35565,82.37

Contractual maturities of barrowings includes cash flows relating to collateralized debt obligations. This represents the amount recelved against the transfer of loans
arising from financing activities In securitisation transactions and/or direct assignments, which do not gualify for derecognition, The liability of the Company in such
cases is fimited to the axtant of credit enhancements provided. The contractual maturities of such collateralized debt obligations are as follows:

[Xin lakhs}
. Carrying 3 Due in 2nd Due in 3rd to Total
Particulars Due in 1st year contractual
amournt year 5th year
cash flows
Collateralized debt obligations - - - - -

The table below provides detalls regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated/contractual interest payments as at March 31, 2023%;

I% in lakhs)
. Carrying Due in 2nd Duein3rdto  Due after Sth Total
Particulars Due in st year contractual
amount year 5th year year

cash flows
Nen derivatives
Borrowings 241495323 12504,33.71 8428,17.85 5092,88.27 - 27023,40.83
Trade and other payables 366,70.58 366,70.58 - - - 366,70.58
Debt securities T867,43.92 5370,22.61 2033,86.04 8966,31.684 - 8370,50.29
Subordinated liabilities 1311,67.23 339,57.99 375,68.98 480,18.13 503,27.67 1803,12.77
Lease liabilitias 83,89.28 20,07.18 18,84.41 44,88.57 21,55.33 106,35.49
Other financial Habilitias 1071,33.53 1061,68.28 1,75.01 7,90.24 1071,33.53
Derivatives
Darivative contracts 14,86.64 - 14,86.64 - - 14,86.64
Total ’ 34865,44.41 19663,00,35  10876,28.93 7592,17.85 624,83.00  38756,30.13

Contractual maturities of borrowings includas cash flows relating to collateralized debt obligations. This represents the amount received against the transfer of loang
arising from financing activities in securitisation transactions and/or direct assignments, which do not qualify for derecognition. The liability of the Company in such
cases is limited to the extent of credit enhancements provided. The contractual maturities of such collateralized debt obligations are as follows:

% in lakhs)
. . N Total
Particulars Carrying Due in ist year Due in 2nd Due in 3rd ta contractual
amount year Sth year
cash flows

Cellateralized debt obligations 74,87.24 74,87.24 - - 74,8724



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOGWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED] {CIN - UG5910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{C) Management of Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk, such 2s equity price risk. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in
the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, eguity price fluctuations, liguidity and other market changes. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include borrowings, investments and derivative finandial instruments.

The Cempany exposure to market risk is a function of asset lizhifity management activities, The Company continuously monitors these risks and manages them
through appropriate risk limits, The Asset Lizbility Management Cornmittee {ALCO) reviews market-related trends and risks and adopts various stretegies refated to
assets and liabilities, in line with the Company’s risk management framework. ALCO activities are in turn monitored and reviewed by a board sub-committee,

i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of impact/changes related to fair value or future cash flows of an financial instrument expasure in foreign currency, which fluctuate
due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The fluctuation in forelgn currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the Statement of Profit and toss and
equity, where assets/liabifities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company.

The Company’s foreign currency exposure arises mainly from varisble rate foreign currency borrowings denominated in USD. The Company, as per its risk
management policies, enters into derivative financial instruments like currency swaps and forward contracts to mitigate risk of changes in exchange rate in foreign
currency. When a derivative is entered in to for the purpose of being as hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivetives to match with the terms of
the hedge exposure. The Company policy is to fully hedge its forelgn currency borrowings at the time of drawdown till the repayment.

No sensitivity analysis Is prepared as the Company does not expect any material effect on the Company’'s profit and loss & financial position arising from the effects
of reasonably possible changes to foreign exchange rates on variable rate foreign currency barrowings as the exposure is fully hedge by entering into derivative
financial instruments.

{ii} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changss in market rates. The Company’s
exposure to the risk of changes In market rates refates primarily to the Company’s borrowings obligations with floating/variable interest rates.

The Company borrews through various instruments which has interest rate reset clause which is exposed to interest rate risk. As at the end of reporting periad, the
Company had fellowing variable/floating interest rate borrowings:

(X in lakhs)
Particutars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Non derivative Financial Eiabitities
Variable rate borrowings® 21850,27.78 22322,79.43

* Tha above excludes the forelan currency denominated floating interest rate borrowings, the Company manages its interest rate risk by entering into interest rate
swap and cross currency interest rate swap derivative instruments in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variakle
rate interest amounts calcutated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount.

Interest rate sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to interest expense from variable rate borrowings as a result of changes in interest rate. Increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates st the reporting date would resuit in an impact (decrease/increase in case of profit/{ioss] before tax of X 216,50.28 takhs and % 223,22.79 fakhs on income for
the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively.

The above sensitivity analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant and the borrowings outstanding at the reporting date have been outstanding for the
entira reporting period.

iil} Eguity gprice risk

Equity price risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments in gquity securities.
The fair value of some of the Group's investrnents measured at fair value thraugh other comprehensive income and fair value through profit and loss exposes the
Group to equity price risks. These investments are subject to changes in the market price of securities. The fait value of Group’s investmant in eguity securities as at
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 was T 972,98.03 lakhs and % 310,44.80 lakhs respectively.

{% in lakhs}
impact on lm:ta:: an
profit for the compone;ts of
Particulars year eguity
March 31, March 3%, March 31,
24
2024 2003 March3l 2o 2023
Equity price Sansitivity
Increase in equity price by 10 %* 79,77.37 18,04.83 17,52.44 12,99.6%
Decrease in equity price by 10 %* (78,77.37) {18,04.83) {17,52.44} {12,59.65}

{Mote: The Impact is indicated on equity before consaguential tax impact, if any),



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED} [CIN - UB5S210MH1992PLCT87184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Capital management

The Company's capital management is intended to create value for sharehoiders by facilitating the meeting of long-term and shert-terrn goais of the Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other strategle Investment plans. The
funding requirements are met through equity, convertible and non-convertible debt securities, and other long-term/short-term borrowings. The Company's policy is
aimed at combination of short-term and long-term borrowings.

The Company maonitors the capital structure on the basis of regulatory capital ratio viz. CRAR

The management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company's goal is to continue to be able to provide return to
shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods. Refer the balow note for dividend declared and pald.

Total debt includes all long and shori-term borrowings as disciosed in notes 17 to 19 to the financis! statements. Equity comprises all components excluding
{profit}/loss on cash flow hedges.

Below are the key regulatory capital ratios at the year end dates

Particulars * As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023 **
CRAR (%) 20.92% 23.16%
CRAR - Tler | capital (%} 12.71% 12.90%
CRAR - Tier [l capital {%) B.21% 3.26%

*These are computed In accordance with the guidelines issusd by RB81,

** These ratios are as reported 1o Resarve Bank of india for March 2023 and are not re-stated to give impact of de-merger.

In addition the Company bas financial covenants relating to the borrowing facilities that it has taken from the lenders which is monitored and compiied by tha
Coampany.

44, Transfer of financial assets
The Company transfers foans arising from financing activities through securitisztion and assignment transactions. In most of thesa transactions, the Company also
provides credit enhancements to the transferes,
Because of the existence of credit enhancements in such transactions, the Company continues to have the obligation to pay to the transferae, limited to the extent
of credit enhancement, even if it does not collect the equivalent amounts from the original asset and continues to retain substantially all risks and rewards
associated with the receivables, and hence, such transfer does not meet the derecognition criterla resulting into the transfer not being recorded as sale.
Consequently, the proceeds received from the transfer are recorded as collateralizad debt obligation.
The carrying amaount of loans arising from financing activities along with the associated Habilities is as follows:
(% in iakhs)
As at March 32, 2624 As at March 31, 2023
. Carrying , Carrying
Nature of Assets Carrying amount of Carrying amogﬂ: of
amount of . amount of N
assaciated associated
asset soid . asset sold s
iiahilities fiahifities
Loans - - 106,90.83 74,87.24
Nat of provision of Nil and % 2,60.36 fakhs as at March 31, 2024, and March 31, 2023 respectivaly.
45. The Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 {'the Code'} which may impact the contribution by the Company towards Provident Fund and

Gratuity. The effective date from which the Code and its provisions would be applicable is yet to be notified and the rules which would provide the details based on
which financial impact can be determined are yet to be framed after which the financial impacet can be ascertained. The Company wiill complete its evaluation and
will give appropriate impact, if any, in the financial results following the Code becaming effective and tha related rules baing framed and notified.

46 Asset Held for <ale

The Company has acquired underlying collateral in satisfaction of its receivabie from certain borrowers and has classified those assets as held for sale. As at March
31, 2024 assets held for sale amountad 1o T 59,19.36 iakhs {as at March 31, 2023 %192,01.23 [akhs). The Company expects to dispose off these assets in open market
within next 1 year.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - US5810MH1992PLC187184)

Motes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

47 Additional disclosures given in terms of Notification dated March 24, 2021 issued by Ministry of Corporate affairs.

a, Title deed of immoveable properties

The title deed of properties are held in the name of Company, Hence, ather disclosure requirements are not applicable.

b. The Company have loans or advances outstanding to promoters, directars, KMPs and the related parties, that are repayable on demand or without specifying any

terms of repayment.

Particulars For the Year ended March 31, 2024 For the Year ended March 31, 2023
Amount of loan or Percentage to the Amount of loan or Percentage to the
advance in the nature of total Loans and advance in the nature total Ltoans  and
Joan outstanding Advances in  the of loan outstanding Advances in the

nature of loans nature of loans

Promoter 85,00.00 0.26% 45,00.00 0.13%

Directors - - - -

HKhiPs - - - -

Related parties 54,64.66 0,17% 47,15.68 0.13%

¢. Capital Work in Progress & Intangible Assets under Development amounted te Nil at March 31, 2024 and Nil at March 31, 2023,

d. There is no proceedings initizted/pending against the Company for benami property.

e. Borrowings from banks or financial institutions

The Company harrows from barks or financial institutions on the basls of security of current assets. Quarterly returns filed by the Company are in agreement in the

books of accounts.

£, willful defauiter

The Company has not been declared as Willfu! Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any tender.

g. Transactions with struck off companies

The following table summarises the transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section

560 of Companies Act, 1956 for the year ended / as at March 31, 2024

Amount of
transactions

Nature of transactions

Name of struck off Company with struck off Company

Balance outstanding

Relationship with the
struck off company

Progressive Logistics Private timited
Kalptaru Publishers Private Limited

Divino Foods International Private Limited
Thanvee Sree Foods Private Limited
Atadco Trading Private Limited

Vir Cargo Express Private Limited
Rainbow Smart Solution Private Limited
Game of Shakes Private Limited

Techtilt info Solutions Private Limited
Vintage Motors Private Limited

S & Cabs Private Limited

Truebiue Tours Taxi Private Limited

Efv Supply Chain Selutions {Opc) Private Limited
Zomax Foods Private Limited

Kathi Xpress Hospitality Private Limited

Financing transaction

Him Metors Private Limited

Knr Marketing Private Limited

Om Sai Cars india Private Limited

Vistar Motors Goa Private Limited
Bzlasanka Cars Private Limited

Calicut Automebiles Private limited
Repro Digital Private Limited

Parshav Automobiles India Private Limited
Praseem Motors Private Limited

Manan Motors Gujarat Private Limited
Sarthak Financial Services Private Uimited

COther Services

23.00
1.08
0.00
G.35
0.81

(0.01)
0.00
3.72
0.00
0.24
8.25
0.00
3.64
0.11

4.93
{0.00)
0.04
0.34
{0.03)
0.02
{0.02)
2022
2.01
0.11
0.02

66.83

Borrower

Vendor/customer



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWRN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED] {CIN - U65910MH1992PLCE 8T 1R4)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The following table summarises the transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956 for the year ended / as at March 31, 2023

Nature of transactions Amount of Relationship with the

Name of struck off Company with struck off Company  transactions Balance outstanding Struck off company
Progressive Logistics Private Limited 9,00.00 5.57
Divine Foods International Private Limited - 038
Atadco Trading Private Limited 18.25 028
Vir Cargo Express Private Limited 5.45 0.81
Rainbow Smart Solution Private Limited 0.80 {0.01)
Game Of Shakes Private Limited “ 0.35
Techtilt Info Solutions Private Limited Financing transaction - 2.48 Borrower
Vintage Mators Private Limited - {0.00)
S R Cabs Private Limited 3.85 0.62
Trueblue Tours Taxi Private Limited 2,10.58 2.79
Efv Supply Chain Solutions {Qpc) Private Limited - 0.00
Zomayx Foods Private Limited - 3.64
Kathi Xpress Hepitality Private Limited - 011
Him Moters Private Limited - 4,93
Knr Marketing Private Limited - 0.00
Om Sai Cars India Private Limited - 0.02
Vistar Motors Goa Private Limited . 0.34
Balasanka Cars Private Limited - {1.82)
Calicut Automobiles Private Limited . - 0.02
Repro Digital Private Limited Other Services - {0.02} Vendor/customer
Parshav Automobiles india Private Limited {0.16) 20.22
Triveni Restaurant Private Limited {0.18) (0.14)
Praseem Motors Private Limited - 0.01
Manan Metors Gujarat Private Limited - 0.11
Sarthak Financial Services Private Limited - 0.02

11,39.61 40.61

h. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
At March 31, 2024 and at March 31, 2023, there is no charges or satisfaction with charge yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
period.

" i, Compliance with number of layers of companies
As per Companies {Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017, Non-Banking Financial Companies are exempted from restriction on number of layers.

j» The company has not advanced or loanad or invested funds {either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s}
or entitylies), including foreign antities (Intermediaries) with the undarstanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Intermediary (1} directly or
indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities fdentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or {ii} provide any
guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Uitimate beneficiarias,

k. The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Funding Party} with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the company shall (i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitles identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or {ii) provide any guarantee, security or the fike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

i. There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year endad March 31, 2024
and March 31, 2023 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

m. The Company has not traded/invested in crypto currency or virtual currency for the year ended March 31, 2624 and March 31, 2023.
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN -
US5510MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company

and Deposit Taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 {as amended)

48C. Perpetual debt instruments

{% in takhs}
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
1 Funds raised through perpetual debt instruments - -
2 Amount cutstanding at the end of year 1808,00.00 460,00.00
3 Percentage of amount of perpetual debt instrument of the amount of Tier | Capital 17.53% 14.47%
4 Financial year in which interest on perpetuai debt instruments is not paid on
) s ) NIL NiL
account of 'Lock-in Clause
48D,

Disclosure on securitisation/direct assigment of standard assets

1} Securitisation of standard assets effected in fine with the revised guidelines Issued by RBI, dated August 21, 2012 { Refer note

50{13})
H} Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by applicable NBFCs
{% in fakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023

1 Ne. of contracts assigned during the year 32,819 14,430
2 Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold* 3944,08.07 1361,62.84
3 Aggregate consideration 3944,05.07 1361,62.84
4 Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earfier years N

5 Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

*Excluding Deal under Co-lending arrangement of % 793,18.69 Lakhs {Bank contribution is T 634,54.95 Lakhs.
*Includes the carrying value of portfolios sold out of icans classified as amortised cost of X 373,22.57 lskhs in FY 23-24 & 2 540,6

lakhs in FY 22-23.

2.72

* Gain on derecognitien of financial instruments amounted to ¥ 194,26.04 lakhs and % 208,31.02 lakhs respectively for the year ended

March 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31, 2023 respectively.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED] {CIN - US5910MH1992PLC187184)

Naotes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically important Non Depaosit Taking Company and Deposit
Taking Company {Reserve Bank] Directions, 2016 (as amended)

48E, Disclosure of restructured advancas

{Xin lgkhs)

Type of Restructuring =~

Asset Classiication =>

Loss

Total

g

Restructurad accounts as on Aprit 1, 2023

Transferred from TMF Business Services Limited
{formerly known as Tate Motors Finance Limited) on

account of demerger

Fresh restructuring during the year

Upgradations to restructured standard category
during the financial year

Restructured standard advances which cease to
attract higher provisioning and / or additional risk
welght at the end of the finandial year and hence
need not be shown as restructured standard
advances at the beginning of the next financial year

Down gradations of restructured accounts during the
financial vear {Refer Note 1)

Write offs of restructured accounts during the

financial year

Recovery from restructured accounts during the

financial year

Sale of restructured accounts during the financial year

Restructured accounts as on March 31, 2024

Mo, of borrowers
Amount outstanding
Provision amount
No. of barrowers
Amount outstanding
Provision amount

No. of borrowers
Amount outstanding
Provision amount

No. of borrowers
Amount cutstanding
Provision amount

No. of borrowers
Amount outstanding

Provision amount

Mo, of borrowers
Amaount outstanding
Provision ameount

No. of borrowers
Amount cutstanding
Provision amaunt

No. of borrowers
Amount outstanding
Provision amount

No. of borrowers
Amount outstanding
Provision amount

No. of borrowers
Amount outstanding
Provision amount

QOthers
Standard Sub- Doubtful
standard
1 - 7
7.89 - 76,08
0.42 - 14.85
10 - 48
86,45 - 6,78.27
6.40 - 1,78.02
486 38 -
44,27.65 2,34.67 -
11,71.46 22.87 -
3 - (3}
23,48 - {23.49)
8.70 - {9.70}
- - 2,50.69
- - {6}
- - {48.16}
- - (12.75)
(13) - (13}
(1,06.48} - {1,92.78}
{15.83} - {49.34)
489 38 31
44,38.55 2,34.67 4,89.91
11,72.14 82.87 3,72.37

3
83.97
15.37

56
7,64.72
1,85.42

524
46,52.32
12,5433

{0.00)
0.00

2,50.59
{8}
{48.18)
(12.75)

(24)
(2,99.26}
{65.67)

558
51,63.58
16,27.38

The Company has not done any restructuring under COR mechanism and SME Debt restructuring mechanism ang hence no disclosure s required for
same.

Mote 1: Represents increase in provision amount of the existing restructurad borrowers accounts.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMIETED) {CIN - UB5910MH1992PLC187184)
Nates forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Depaosit Taking Company and Deposit
Taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 {as amended)

48E. Disciosure of restructured advances

For the year ended Mareh 31, 2023 {% in lakhs}
Type of Restructuring => Cthers
Asset Classification => Standard s:b—rd Doubtful Loss Total
1 Restructured accounts as on April 1, 2022 No. of horrowers 1 - 12 - 13
Amaount autstanding 3,43.84 - 3,73.37 - 7,17.31
Provision amount 17.81 - 74.01 - 91.82
2 Fresh restructuring during the year No. of borrowers - - - - -
Amaount cutstanding - - - - -
Provision amount - - B - -
3 Upgradations to restructured standard category No. of borrowers 1 . {1) - -
during the financial year Amount outstanding 7.89 - {12.18) - {4.29)
Provision armount 0.42 - {3.13) - (2.71)
4 Restructured standard advances which cease to No. of borrowers - - - - -
attfact higher provisioning and / or additional risk Amount outstanding B ) R . ;
weight at the end of the finencial year and hence
neead not be shown as restructured standard .
advances at the beginning of the next financial year  Frovision amount - - - - -
5 Down gradations of rastructured accounts during the  No. of barrawers . - - - -
financial year Amount outstanding - - . - -
Provizion amount - - - - -
& Write offs of restructured accounts during the No, of borrowers . - (2} - {2}
financial year Amount outstanding - - {58.88} - (58.88)
Pravision amount . - {10.48} - {10.48}
7 Recovery from restructurad accounts during the No, of borrowars {1} - {2} - {3}
financial yaar Amount obtstanding {3,43.94) - {2,26.22) - {5,70.16)
Provision amount {17.81} - {45.45) - {53.25)
8 Sale of restructured accounts during the finzncial year No. of borrowers - - - - -
Amount cutsianding - - - - -
Provision amount - - - - -
9 Restructured accounts as on March 31, 2023 No. of borrowers 1 - 7 - 8
Amount cutstanding 789 - 76.08 - 83.57
Provizion amount Q.42 - 14.95 - 15.37

The Company has not done any restructuring under CDR machanism and SME Debt restructuring mechanism and hence no disclosure is raquired for

same,



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMETED (FORMERLY XNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMIETED) {CIN - U65910MH1952PLC187184}
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional distlosures given in tarms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically mportant Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking
Company (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016 {as amendad)

48F. Break up of "Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head 'Expenditure’ in the Statement of Profit and toss

(Xin lakhs)
Particuiars For the year ended  For the year ended
2024 2023
1 Provision for doubtful loans and advances {others} 25,74.40 62.18
2 Provision for doubtful Loans {647,85.99) {58,02.88)
3 Provision made towards income tax* 172,26.86 3,54.09
4 Provision on consumer disputes 9,59.44 -
S Provision on indirect taxes - - -
* Includes deferred tax
486G, investiments
{Tin takhg}
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023

1  Value of investments

i} Gross value of investments

fa} intndia 2530,75.45 608,62.92
(o} Outside India - -
{ii} Prowvision for depreciation -
{a} Inindia - -
{b) Outside India - -
{ifi) Netvalue of investments

{a} InIndia 2530,75.45 £08,62.92
{b} Outside india - -

2 Movement of provisions held towards depreciation of investments

{i) Opening balance ) "
{fi}  Add: Provisions made during the vear - -
(iif} Less: Utllised - i
{iv} Closing balance - -

4BH. Capital Market

(X in lakhs
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
1 Direct investment in equity shares, convertibie bonds, convertible debentures and units of
equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt: 1083,61.70 373,87.69

2 Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or cther securities or on clean basis to individuals
for investment in shares fincluding POs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, - -
and units of equity oriented mutuz] funds;
3 Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures
or units of equity orlented mutua! funds are taken as primary security;
4 Advances for any other purpeses to the extent secured by the coflateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where
the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds { convertible debentures / units of
equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances;
5 Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guaraniees issued on behalf of
stockbrokers and market makers;
& Loans sanctioned to corporate against the security of shares / bonds / debentures cor other
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies - -
in anticipation of raising resources;
7  Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; - -
& underwriting commitments taken up by the hanks in respect of primary issue of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debertures or units of equity oriented mutual funds;
9 Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; - -
10 Alf exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:
(i} Category |
{ii} Category I}
{ili} Categary il

5,02.28 -

1088,63.98 373.87.68



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNGWRN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) [CIN - UG5910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 3%, 2024

Additiona disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Caompanies - Systernically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking
Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 {as amended)

48l. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migrations of ratings in respect of all cradit facilities and dabt instrumants during the year:

Instruments
Rating Yearended  leng-term bank Short-tersm bank N‘m—, Subordinated .
agency . s convertible . Commerciai papars Perpetual debt
facilities facilities Tiar I NCDs
debentures
CRISH. AA/ CRISIL AL+ CRISH AAS CRISIL AS/ CRISIL AL+ CRISIL A+
March 31,2024 osimve POSITIVE POSITIVE /POSITIVE
1 CRISH March 31 3033 CRSILAA/ NA CRISIL A/ CRISIL AA-/ CRISiL A1+ CRISK A / STABLE
aren 3L STABLE STABLE STABLE
1+
March 31, 2024 1CRA ICRA AL+ ICRA FCRA AA/STABLE ICRA AL iCRA A+/STABLE
> IRA AASSTABLE AAFSTABLE
NA NA NA ICRA AA-/ ICRA Al+ ICRA A / POSITIVE
, 2023
March 31, 20 POSITIVE
CARE March 31, 2024 CARE NA CARE CARE CARE A+ CARE AA-/STABLE
3 AA+/STABLE AA+/STABLE AA+/STABLE
March 31, 2023 CAEE Ab-f NA CARE AA-/ CARE AA-/ CARE Al+ CARE A / STABLE
STABLE STABLE STABLE
484, Details of financing of parent company’s products
{Zin Jakhs)
Particulars As at Mareh 31 As at Mareh 31
2024 2023
Na's Amount No's Amount
1 Commercial vehicle# 44,227 2508,92.00 - -
2 Passenger vehicles 2,437 236,02.00 - -
#Represents financing of products of ultimate parent entity Tata Moters Limited,
48K. Concentration of advances
{% in takhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
1 Total advances to twenty largest borrowers / customer 1269,62.41 1227,80.29
; N
2 Percentage of Advances to twenty fargest borrowers to Total Advances of the applicable NBFC 3,915 12.32%
48L. Cencentration of exposures
(Zinlakhsh.
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
1 Total exposure to twenty larzest borrowers / customer 1289,63.41 1227.80.29
th !
2 Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customer to total exposure of the NEFC 3.61% 19.37%
on borrowers f customer
48M. Concentration of NPAs
{Zinlakhal.
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2423

1 Total exposure to top four NPA acrounts 26,65.77 43,31.72



TATA MOTORS EINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - UB5910MH1992P1LC187184}
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemicaily important Non Depasit Taking Company and Deposit Taking
Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 {as amended)

48N. Sector-wise NPAs [Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector)

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Sectors Total Exposure  Gross NPAs Percentage of  Total Exposure Gross NPAs Parcentage of
{includes on Gross NPAste  (includes on Gross NPAs to total
balance sheet total exposure  balance sheet exposure in that
and off-balance in that sector and off-balance sector
sheet exposure) sheet exposure)
1 Agriculture and allied activities - - - - -
2 Industry
i - “ - - - -
ii, - - - - - -
Total
3 Service
i. Retail loans 29537.83.27 1958,02.42 6.63% 7155,67.12 386,22.51 5.40%
it. Wholesale loans 3595.58.67 15,7813 0.44% 2823,43.42 20,76.96 0.74%
Totat 33133,41.94 1674,81.55 5.96% 9979,10.54 406,98.47 45.08%
4  Personal loans
il. - - - - . -
Total - - - - . -
5 Others.ifany - - - - .
Motes:

{a} Percentage of gross NPA to total advances at Company fevel as per RBi regulations for current and comparative years are as befow :-
March 31, 2024 : 6.08%, March 31, 2023 : 4.08%

480, Customer complaints
{Numbers)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
1 No of complaints pending at the beginning of the year # 983 60
2 No of complaints received during the year™ 9,047 1,585
3 No of complaints redressad during the year g,308 1,468
3.1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC 1,475 a5
4 No of complaints pending at the end of the year 722 187
*complaints include legal cases lodged
Compiaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
5 Mumber of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 210 3
5.1 Of 5, number of complaints resclved in favour of the NBFC Ly Office of Ombudsman 206 8
5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advisories 2 -
issued by Office of Ombudsman
5.3 Of 5, nurber of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the - -
NBFC
6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed) - -
# Included 796 of complaints transfarred from TMF Business Services Lirnited { Formerly known as Tata Motors Finance tmited} on account of demerger.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE IMITED (FORMERLY XNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FIRANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) [CiN - USS910MH1922PLC187184}
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Additional disclosures given In terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically mportant Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking
Company [Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 [as amendad)

Grounds of complaints, Number of Number of

% increasef Number of Of 5, number of
{i.e. complaints refating complaints complaints decrease in the complaints complaints
to} pending at the received number of pending at the  pending beyond 3G
beginning of the  duringa the complaints aend of the year  days
year # year receivad over
the previous
1 2 3 4 5 g
Current Year
Any Motice / request from Advocates/ RTO 02 3231 7% 807 416
Loan is tarminated, but reflecting in credit bureau report 2 1414 258% 24 4]
Payment not reflecting 20 1063 47% 31 5
Recovary Agents/ Direct Sales Agents 31 510 0% 11 4
Collection call recetved despite regular payment of EMils 1 991 989% 2 o]
Others 123 1832 5% 47 14
Total 933 9047 15% 722 439
Previous Year
Payment not reflecting 3 472 -25% 7 Z
Any Motice / request from Advocatas/ RTO 49 685 104% 168 112
Loan is terminated, but reflecting in Credit Report 2 €7 294% b3 -0
Renewed Insurance Palicy Not received o] 107 168% 0 g
Recovery Agents/ Direct Sales Agents 0 38 36% 2 1
Others 3 226 25% 8 3
Total 60 1595 30% 187 118
#  included transferred from TMF Business Services Limited { Formerly known as Tata Motors Finance Limited) on account of demerger.
43P, Movement of NPAs
X in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31 |
2024 2823
1 Net NPAs 1o net advances 3.44% 2.82%
2 Movement of NPAs [Gross)
(i} Opening balances 406,92.47 618,50.83
{ii} Transfer from TMF Business Services Limited { Formerly known as Tata Motors Finance Limited) 2874,79.40 -
on account of demerger
{fii) Additions during the year 815,88.46 305,20.08
{iv} Reductions durlng the vear 2122,85.78 521,71.44
{v} Closing batances 1974,81.55 406,99.4F
2 Movement of Net NPAs
{i} Opening balances 277.80.97 403,84,81
(i} Transfer from TMF Business Services Limited { Formerly known as Tata Motors Finance Limited) 1422,30.79 -
on account of demerger
(iii} Additions during tha year 413,72.55 (8,67.89}
{iv] Reductions during the year 1029,08.45 117,35.95
(v} Closing balances 1084,75.86 277,80.97
4 Movement of provisions for NPAs {excluding provisions on standard assets)
(iy Opening balances 129,18.50 215,66.02
{ii} Transfer from TMF Business Sarvices Limited { Formerly known as Tata Motors Finance Limitad} 1452,48,61 -
an aceount of demarger
{#ii) Provisions made during the yaar 402,15.91 317,87.97
(v} Write-off / writa-back of excess provisions 1093.77.33 404,35 49
{v} Closing balances 898,05.69 129,18.50
48Q, Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap
[%in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
{i} The notional principal of swap agreements 2370,14.59 110,71.50
{il} Losseswhich wouid be incurred if countarparties falled to fulfill their obligations under the 102,44.23 13,40.42
agresments
{lil} Cotlateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering into swap - -
{ivl Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps - -
{v] The fair value of the swap book 97,5293 13,40.42

The Company as per its risk management policy, uses foreign exchange forward and other Interast Rata Swap (IRS) to hedge the risk expesure
refating to changes in foreign currency exchange rata and interest rate.

Refer note 3 for accounting policies on derivative and hedging activities and note 42 for risk management policies adopted by the Company.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY XNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - Us5910MH1992PLCLE7184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additianal disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking
Company (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016 {as amended)

Quantitative Disciosures
(% in lakhsl
Particulars As at March 31 As at March 31
2024 2023
Currency Interest Rate Currency Interest Rate
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
{i}  Derivatives {Notional Principal Amount}
For hedging 2370,14.93 110,71.50
{iit  Marked to Market Positions
a) Asset (+) 88,02.02 13,42.21 13,4042 -
b} Liabifity {-) {4.91.29) - -

{iii} Credit Exposure
{(iv] Unhedged Exposures

Disclasure on fiquidity risk as per RBI notification RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC {PU} €C. W0.102/03,10.001/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019 on Liquidity Risk

48R. . . " .
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies

{i} Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty {both deposits and borrowings)

(% in lakhs)
No. of Significant Amount Petcentageto  Percentage to
Counterparties® Total Deposits  Total Liabilities
1 21 27874,25.96 NA 87.13%

{ii} Top 20 large deposits {amount in Rs lakhs and percentage of Total Deposits) - Not Applicable

{iit} Top 10 Barrowings

(X in lakhis)
Amaunt % of Tt?tal
Borrowings
21499,05.40 67.04%
{iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument / product
{X in lakhs)
Name of the instrument/product Amount * to.'itu.tai
Liabilities
T Term Loans (including External Commercial Borrowings) 22250,45.34 69.67%
2 Working capitai demand loan 2914,90.00 2.11%
3 Commercial paper 1072,70.57 3.35%
4 Non-Convertible debentures 2757,18.42 8.62%
5 Subordinated debt 1082,86.07 3.38%
& Inter corporate deposit - 0.00%
7 Cash credit 143,03,94 0.45%

{v} Stock ratios

Total public

Particulars Total liahilities Total assets
funds
1 Cornmercial papers as a percentage of 3.34% 3135% 2.78%
Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less than one yearjasa
2 nane none nane
percentage of
3 Other short-term lisbilities as a percentage of 50.35% 50.47% 41.86%

Note: Interest accrued but not due has been exciuded fram borrowings/total public funds.
Total Public Funds includes alt borrowings including Collateralise debt obligation, nomina! value of Compulsery convertible preference shares {conversion

period > 5 vears) & instrument entirely in nature of equity.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SCLUTIONS LIMITED} (CIN - UB5210MHI1D82PLLI871384)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional disclosuces given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking
Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2046 (as amended)
[vi} Institutiona] set-up for liquidity risk management

Tha company has constituted an Asset Liability Supervisory Committee [ALCO) to overses fiquidity risk management. ALCO conslsts of Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer, Non-Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Digital and Marketing Officer, Chief Credit Officer, Chief Risk Officer and Head - Treasury, The
ALCO meetings are held every quarter, TMFL has a Risk Management Committes (RMC), a sub-committee of the Board, which oversees overall risks to which the
Company is exposed including liquidity risk management {LRM), ALLO's views on liquidity and asset iability management are presentad to RMC for its independent
review on a regular basis. The ALCO and RMC also updates the Board at reguiar intervals.

For the previcus year i.e. financial year 2022.23

{i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings}

(% in lakhs)
No. of Significant Parcantageto  Percentageto
N Amount " e
Counterpartiss® Total Deposits  Totat Liabilities
1 21 8033,63.18 NA 95.64%

*Represents counterparties accounting for more than 1% of total Kabilities

(i1} Top 20 large deposits (amount in Rs fakhs and percentage of Total Deposits) - Not Applicable

{iii} Top 10 Borrowings
{Tin lakhs
% of Total

Borrowings
5956,22.08 £6.34%

Amount

[iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument / product

=% i lakhs}
. % to Total
Name of the inst nt/product
instrument/p Amount Liabilitie
1 Term loans {Including External Commertial Borrawings) 6765,31.92 72.43%
2 Commercial paper 346,00.3% 3.70%
3 Working capital demand loan 565,00.00 £.05%
4 Non-convertible debentures 1302,32.95 13.94%
{v) Stock ratios
Tot: i
Particulars otal public Total liahilities Total assets
funds
1  Commerciai papers as 8 percentage of 3.85% 3.70% 2.93%
Nan-¢ ibie debent iginal maturity of less than o
3 n-convertibie debentures {original maturity of le none yearyasa NA NA NA
percentage of
3 {Other short-term liabilities a3 a percentage of 42.85% 41.19% 32.63%

hote: Interast accryed but not due has been excluded from Borrowings/Total Public funds
{vi) Institutionat set-up for liguidity risk management

Tata Motors Finance Limited (TMFL) has an Asset Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO), & Board level Sub-committee to oversee hguidity risk management. ALCO
cansists of Non-Executive Director, independent Diractors, Chief Executive Officer and Group Chief Financial Officer, Tha ALCO meetings are held once in 2 months,
TMFL has a Risk Management Committee {RMC), a sub-committee of the Board, which oversees overall risks to which the Company is exposed including lquidity
risk management. ALCCYs views on liquidity and asset liabllity management are presented to RMC for its independent review on a guarterly basis. The ALCO and
RMC aiso updates the Board at regular intervals,



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIGNS LIMITED) (CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Peposit Taking Company and Deposit

Taking Company, (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 {as amended)

485, Disclosure on asset classification and provisions as per RBI notification RBI/2019-20/170 DOR {NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated

13th March 2020

(X in lakhs)
Asset Gross Carrying Loss Net Carrying Provisions Difference
classification Amount as per  AHowances Amount required as per between Ind AS
Asset classification as per RBl Norms as per Ind AS ind AS {Provisians) as JRACP norms 109 provisions
109 required and IRACP
under ind AS norms
1 2 3 4 5=3-4 3 746
Performing Asset
Standard Asset Stage-1 28574,03.85 213,38.53 28360,65.32 116,98.87 96,39.66
Stage-2 1911,31,96 246,05.26 1665,26.70 9,34,89 236,70.37
Subtotal 30485,35.81 459,43.79 30025,92.02 126,33.76 333,10.03
Non-Performing Asset {(NPA)
SubStandard Stage-3 794,66.57 253,29.41 541,37.16 79,80.39 173,39.02
Doubtful up to 1 Year Stage-3 769,48.66 347,65.07 421,83.55 529,85.82 {182,20.75)
1to 3 Years Stage-3 403,34.06 282,80.79 120,53.27 319,01.34 {36,20.55)
More than 3 Years Stage-3 7,32.25 £,30.41 1,01.84 £,51.99 (61.58}
Subtotal of Doubtful 1180,14.97 636,76.27 543.38.70 855,79.15 {215,02.88)
Loss Stage-3 - - - - -
Subtotal of NPA 1974,81.54 890.05.68 1084,75.86 935,69.54 {45.63.86)
COther items such as guarantees, loan Stage-1 158,24.61 53.98 157,60.63 - £3.58
commitments, etc, which are in the scope of Stage-2 - - - - -
Ind AS 109 but not covered under current Stage-3 - - - -
tncome Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning (IRACP) norms
Subtotal 158,24.61 63.98 157,60.63 - 63.98
Stage-1 28732,28.46 214,02.51 28518,25.55 116,98.87 97,03.64
TOTAL Stage-2 1911,31.96 246,05.26 16€5,26.70 9,34.83 236,70.37
Stage-3 1974,81.54 880,05.68 1084,75.86 935,69.54 {45,63.86)
32618,41.96 1350,13.45 31268,28.51 1062,03.30 288,10.15

In terms of requirement of RBI notification no. mentioned above on implementation of indien Accounting Standards, Non-Banking Financial
Companies {(NBFCs) are required to create an impairment reverse for any short fall in impairment allowance under ind AS 109 and income
Recognition and Asset Classification and Provisioning {IRACP) norms {inciuding provision on standard assets). The Impairment aliowance under
ind AS 109 made by the company exceeds the total provisior required under IRACP (Including standard assets provisioning), as at March 31, 2024
and accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to impairment reserve.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - UB5910MH1992PLC1R7184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 331, 2024

Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically important Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit
Taking Company, (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016 {as amended)

For the previous year i.e. financial year 2022-23

{(%in lakhs)
Asset Gross Carrying Loss Net Carrying Provisions Difference
classification Amount as per  Allowances Amount required as per between Ind AS
- 1 .
Asset classification as per RBI Norms as per Ind AS Ind AS (Prowsafms) as {RACP norms 09 provisions
109 required and IRACP
under Ind AS norms
109
1 2 3 4 5=3-4 B 7=4-6
Performing Asset
Standard Asset Stape-1 9180,82.75 49,84.36 9130,88.3% 36,96.47 12,97.89
Stage-2 376,72.89 13,05.49 363,67.40 2,26.69 10,78.80
Subtotal 9557,55.64 62,99.85 9494,55.79 39,23.18 23,76.69
Non-Performing Asset (NPA}
SubStandard Stage-3 228,63.62 72,88.29 155,75.32 21,43.83 51,44.46
Doubtful up to 1 Year Stage-3 143,24.91 37,91.53 145,33.38 59,19.85 {21,28.32)
1to 3 Years Stage-3 34,35.17 18,06.18 16,29.07 23,40.48 {5,34.38}
Mare than 3 Years Stage-3 75.77 32.58 43.19 57.58 {25.01}
Subtotai of Doubtful 178,35.85 56,30.21 122,05.64 832,17.91 {26,87.71)
Loss Stage-3 - - - - -
Subtotal of NPA 406,99.47 126,18.50 277,80.57 104,61.74 24,56.75
Qther items such as guarantees, loan Stage-1 14,55.44 9.08 14,46.36 - 5,08
commitments, etc, which are in the scope of Stage-2 - - - - -
Ind A3 109 but not covered under current Stage-3 - - - - -
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning {IRACP) norms
Subtotatl 14,55.44 9.08 14,46.36 - 9.08
Stage-1 9195,38.19 50,03.43 9145,34.76 36,96.47 13,06.97
{OTAL Stage-2 376,72.89 13,05.49 363,67.40 2,26.69 10,78.80
Stage-3 406,95.47 125,18.50 277,80.95 104,61,74 24,58.75
9979,10.55 192,27.42 9786,83.12 143,84.90 48,42.52

In terms of requirement of RBI notification ne. mentioned above on implementation of Indian Accounting Standards, Non-Banking Financial
Companies (NBFCs) are required to create an impairment reverse for any short fall in impairment allowance under Ind A$ 109 and income
Recognition and Asset Classification and Provisioning {IRACP) norms {including provision on standard assets). The Impairment allowanice under ind
A3 103 made by the company exceeds the total provision required under IRACP {Including standard assets provisioning), as at March 31, 2023 and
accordingly, nc amount is required to be transferred to impairment reserve,



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN - UE5910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Additional disclesures glven In terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Mon Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking Company

487
Disclosure on liguidity risk as per RB! notification RBI2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD} GC. No.102/03.10.001/2013-20 dated November 04, 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management
Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies

RB! vide circular dated November 4, 2018 has made # mandatory for NBFCs to implement Liquidity Coverage Ratio {LCR) with effect from December 1, 2020. Accordingly, the Board
and ALCO has approved the Liquidity risk management palicy including LOR poilcy. The averall Liquidity risk management of TMFL is under the guidance of the ALCO and within the
averall framework of the Board approved policies. The mandated regulatery threshold as per the transition plan is embedded into the policy to ensure maintenance of adeguate fquidity
buffers. LCR computaticns are reported to ALCO and the Board for oversight and periodical review. LCR seeks to ensure that TMFL has an adequate stock of unencumbered High-
Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) that can be converted inlo cash promptly and immediately to meet its liquidity needs under a 30-day calendar liquidity siress scenario, As a strategy, TMFL
has been maintaining Investment in Government Securities and kalance in current account with banks which has resulted in a high leve! of HQLA, TMFL foliows the criteria laid down by
the RB! for caloulation of High-Quality Ligquid Assets {HQLA), gross outflows and inflows within the next 30-day period, MOLA predominantly comprises tnvestment in Government
Securifies and Balance in current accounts with the Banks, TMFL is funded through Comemercial papers, term loans from banks, long term bonds, and foreign currency borrowings, Al
significant outflows and infiows determined in accordance with RB! guidelines are included in the prescribed LCR computation. The Campany assesses the impact on short term liquictity
gaps dynamically under various scenarics covering business projections under normal as well as varying markst conditions. Periodical reports are placed before the Company's ALCO for
perusal and review. The LCR is calculated by dividing 2 TMFL's stock of HOLA by its total net cash cutflows over a 30-day stress period.

RB! has mandated a minimum LCR of 85% from 1st December 2023 and TMFL's LCR stood at 140% for the quarter ended March 31, 2024,
Below is the guarterly summary of LCR values for financial year 2023~ 2024,

{% in lakhs}
Quarter ended March 31, Quarter ended December 31, Quarter ended September 30, Quarter ended June
2024 2023 2023 30, 2023
Particulars Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
Unweighted Weighted Unweighted Weighted Unweighted Weighted Unweighted Weighted
Value Value Value Value Value Vatue Value Value
High Quality Liquid Assets (HOLA
(i} Fixed Deposits {unencumbered) - - - - - - - -
(i) Investment in Government Securities 1404,64.38 1404,64.38 1504,70.86 1504,70.86 1423,01.27 1423,01.27 1301,93.46 1301,83.48
(iiiy Cash & Bank Balance 187.63.55 187,63.55 136,47.03 136.47.03 116,80.18 115,80.18 122,24.84 122,24.84
(iv) investment in Listed Companies - - - - - - - -
1 Total HQLA 1592,27.93 1592,27.93 1641,17.89 §641,17.589 1539,81.45 1539,81.45 1424,18.30 1424,18.30
Cash Outflow
2 Deposits {for deposit taking companies) - - - - - - - -
3 Unsecured wholesale funding 1236,70.34 1422,20.89 1203,37.48 1383,88.10 1081,06.14 1243,22.08 485,81.28 558,68.47
4 Secured wholesale funding 1335,70.65 1536,06.25 1358,82.04 1562,64.35 1445,458,73 1662,28.74 1404,13.02 1611,20.97
5 Additions} requirements, of which
.. Outflows related to derivative expasures and
{0 other coliateral requirements - . - . 44187 5,08.27 - -
.. Qutflows refated to loss of funding on debt
@) products - . - - - - - -
{ith) Credit and fiquidity facifities - - - - - - - -
8 Other contractual funding obligations 1251,98.02 1439,77.73 1166,39.05 1341,34.41 1172,51.47 1348,38.85 1253,01.54 1440,86.77
t  Qther contingent funding obligations 135,99.60 156,39.54 142,15.39 163,47.70 137,51.53 158,14.26 136,79.94 157,31.93
8 Total Cash Outflow 3960,38.61 4554,44.41 3876,73.96 4451,35.06 3540,97.54 4417,12.18 3276,75.78 3768,27.14
Cash inflow
9 Secured lending - - - - - - - -
10 Inflows from fully psrforming exposures 1884,27.51 1413,20.63 2033,40.48% 1525,05.37 2118,79.79 1569,84.85 1864,76.95 1473,57.72
11 Other cash inflows 3153,04.90 23684,78.68 3366,50.37 2524,72.78 3385,64.68 2548,73.51 5984,12.35 6738,09.28
12 Total Cash Inflow 5037,32.41 3777,99.31 5398,70.86 4049,78.15 5515,44.47 4136,58,36 10948,89.30 B211,66.98
13 Total HQLA 1592,27.93 1641,17.89 1539,81.45 1424,15,30
14 Total Net Cash Qutflow 1138,61.10 1112,83.77 1104,28.04 942,06.78
15 LIQUIDUTY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 140% 147% 138% 151%
Notes:

1. Total Unweighted Value (average) and Total weighted Value {average} are calculated taking simple averages of monthly observations for the respective quarter.
2, Inflows from fully performing exposures represants inflow from both secured and unsecurad leans and advances.



TATA MOTORS FIMANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FSNANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) [CIN - UE5210MH1392PLC187184}
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 33, 2024

Additionai disciosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financiai Companies - Systemically Impertant Non Deposit Taking Company and Deposit Taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
{as amended)

Disclosure on kgquidity risk as per RBE notification RBI/2019-20/83 DOR.NBFRC (PD) CC. No,102/03,10.001/2015-20 dated November 04, 2019 oh Liquidity Risk Management Eramework for Non-
Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies

Tata Motors Finance Solutions Limited (TMFL} {Formerly known as Tata Motors Financa Solutions Limited (TMESL}} has constituted an Asset Lizbility Supervisory Committee {ALCO) to oversae lguidity
risk management. ALCQ consists of Whole Time/ Executive Director, Non-Executive Directer, Group Chief Financial Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Digital and Marketing Officer, Chief Cradit
Gfficer, Chief Risk Officer and Head — Treasury, The ALCO meatings are heid every guarter, TMFSL has a Risk Management Committes (RME), 3 sub-committee of the Board, which oversess averall
risks to which the Company is exposed including liguidity risk management {{RM). ALCO's views on liquidity and 2sset liability management are presentad to RMC for its independent review an 8
regular basis. The ALLC and RMC also updates the Board at regular intervals.

RBI vide circular dated November 4, 2019 has made it mandatory for NBFCs to implement Uquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR} with effect from December 2, 2020. Accordingly, the Board and ALCO has
approved the Liquidity risk management policy Including LCR policy. The overall Liquidity risk management of TMFSL is under the guidance of the ALCO and within the overall framework of the Board
approved policies. The mandated regulatory threshold as per the transition plan is embedded into the policy to ensure maintenance of adequate liquidity buffers. LCR computations are reported to
ALCO and the Board for oversight and periodical review. LCR seeks to ensure that TMFSE has an adequate stock of unencumbered High-Quality Liguid Assets (HQLA) that can be converted into cash
promptly and Immediately to meet its liquidity needs under a 30-day calendar liquidity stress scenario. As a strategy, TMFSL has baen maintaining Investment in Government Securities and balance in
current account with banks which has resulted in a high level of HOLA. TMFSL follows the criteriz Taid down by the RBI for calculation of High-Quality Liquid Assets {HQLA), gross outflows and inflows
within the next 30-day period. HOLA predominantly comprises Investment in Government Securities and Balance in current accounts with the Banks. TMFSL is funded through Commercial papers, term
loans from banks, iong tarm bonds, and foreign currency borrowings. Al significant outflows and inflows detarminad in aetordance with RBI guidelines are included in the prescribed LCR computation,
The Company assesses the impact on short term liquidity gaps dynamically under various scenarios covering businass projections under normal as well as varying market conditions. Periadical reports
are placed before the Company's ALCO for perusal and raview, The LCR is calculated by dividing a TMPSLs' stock of HQLA by its total stressed nat cash outflows over next 30-day period.

RBI has mandated & minimum LCR of 70% and TMFSL's LCR stood at 181% for the quarter ended March 31, 2023,

Below is the quarterly summary of LCR vafues for financial year 2022-23,

{%in lakhs)
Quarter ended December 31,  Quarter ended September 30, {uarter ended June 30,
Quarter anded Mareh 31, 2023 2022 2522 2022
Particulars Total Totai Total Total
Unweighted Total Weighted Unweighted otai Weighted Unweighted Total Weighted Unweighted Yotal Weighted
Vajue Value Value Value
Value Value Value Value
High Guality Uiquid Assets (HOLAY
{i} Fixed Deposits {unencumbered) - - - - - - - -
{ii} Investment in Government Securities 350,25.09 350,25.09 280,39.62 280,39.62 301,26.33 301,26.33 245,53.02 245,53.02
{iii) Cash & Bank Balance 60,458.22 60,45.22 74,17.75 74,17.75 75,80.60 75,90.60 17,31.50 107,31.80
{ivi Investment in Listed Companies - - . - - - - -
1 Total HQLA 410,70.31 410,70.31 354,57.37 354,57.37 377,16.93 377&_5_._93 352,84.52 352,84.52
Lazh Dutflow
2 Depaosits [for donosit 1aking comnpanies) - - - - . - - .
3 Unsecured wholesale funding 183,84.45 2114212 74,50.16 85,67.69 178,28.42 20502.88 96,34.14 110,79.26
4 Secured wholesale funding 251.83.48 289,72.50 185,61.36 213,45.57 269,53.97 309,87.07 154,55.18 177,73.45
5 Additionai requirements, of which
{ij Cutflows related to derivative exposures and other collate - - - - - . R R
(i) Qutflows related to loss of funding on debt products - - - - - - - -
{#)} Credit and liquidity facifities - - - - - - - -
& Other contractual funding obligations 300.44,21 355,85.84 442,84 16 508,26.78 368,83.55 424 27 58 333,55.73 333,58.09
7 Other contingent funding obligations 45,04.03 51,72.63 38,70.89 44,51.53 34,82.57 40,0486 16,28.47 18,72.74
3 Total Cash Outflow 7901_;'6‘.17 S08,80.05 741,66.57 852,91.57 851,58.51 579,322,298 600,73.35{2 6598,85.54
Cash Infiow
9 Secuwredlending - - - - - - - -
10 inflows from fully performing exposures 1069,39.02 802,04.27 1144,93.38 858,70.03 110%,40.05 B832,05.04 923,54.51 542 ,65,89
11 Other tash inflows 2907,59.60 218069.70 32394760  2429,60.70 2595,36.858 2246,53.66 2593,84.77 1945,38.58
12 Total Cash Inflow 3976,98.62 2982,73.97 4384,40.88 3288,30.73 4104,76.93 3078,58.7() 3517,39.28 2638,04.47
13 Total HQLA - 41,070.31 . 354,57.37 - 377,16.94 - 352,84.52
14 Total Net Cash Outflow - 22,720.02 - 213,22.89 - 244 83,07 - 172,71.13
15 LIGLHEDUTY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 181% 1686% 154% 204%

Motas:
1. Total Unweighted Value (averaga) and Total welghted Vaiue {average) are calculated taking simple averages of monthly obsarvations for the raspective quarter.
2. tnflows from fully performing exposures represents inflow from both secured and unsecured toans and advances.



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FOGRMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN -
U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

49, Information as required by Reserve BanX of india Circular on Resolution Framework for COVID 19 related stress dated August 6, 2620

Farmat B: Disclosure for period ended March 31, 2024

{¥ in lakhs)
Type of Exposure o accotnts Of (A), aggregate  Of (A} amount  Of (A} amount paid Exposure to
borrower classified as Standard debt that slipped written off by the horrowers accounts classified
consequent to into NPA during during during the half year as Standard
implementation of resolution half-year half year consequent to
plan = Position as at the end implementation of
of September 30, 2023 (A) resolution plan —
Position as at the
end of March 31,
2024
Personal Loans 63,23.54 2,12.29 82.86 13,13.76 A7 14,53
Corporate persons” - - - - -
Of which MSMEs - - - - -
Others 375,56.78 13,9247 §,66.80 141.09.75 213,88.06
Total 438,80.32 16,04.46 7.49.76 154,23.51 261,02.59

*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insclvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

50.
Other disclosures
1 No penaities were imposed by RBI and other regulators during the year ended March 31, 2024. {March 31,2023 Nif)
2 The Company doss not have any exposure in real estate sector during the year ended March 31, 2024. {March 31,2023: Nit)
3 The Company has not exceedad the prudential exposure limits in respect to single borrower limit / group berrower limit during the year ended
March 31, 2024. (March 31,2023 Nil)
4 The Company is registered with Reserve Bark of India as & Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Mon Banking Financial Company and
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India.
5 The Company has not drawn down any amounts from the reserves during the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31,2023 Nif) except as
disclosed in statement of changes in equity.
& The Company has not sold 2ny Financlal Assets to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction during the year ended
March 31, 2024. {March 31,2023: Nit)
7 The Company has not purchased any non-performing financial assets during the year ended March 31, 2024, {March 31,2023 Nip
8 The Company does not have any exceptional items of income and expenditure during the year ended March 31, 2024, {March 31,2023: Nil)
9 The Company does not have any divergence in provisioning and gross NPA reported by company and assessed by RBlin its inspection report of
FY 22-23.
10 Mo modified opinion(s) or ather reservation(s) has been mentioned in the audit report or timited review report in respect of the financia! results of
any previous financial year or quarter which has an impact on the profit or loss of the reportable period,
11 Overseas assets {for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)
The Compary does not have any joint veniire or subsidiary abroad, hence not applicable.
12 Unsecured advances
At March 31, 2024, the amount of unsecured advances stood at € 1597,44.86 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: ¥ 1733,80.78 Lakhs)
The Company has not granted unsecured advances against collateral of intangible securities such as charge over the rights, ficenses or authority.
13 The Company does not have any balances of securitization transactions during the year ended March 31, 2024, (March 31,2023: Nil)
14 Loan to directors, senior officers and relatives of directors

{Z in lakhs)
Current Year Previous Year
Directors and its relatives Nt Nif
Entities assoclated with directors and their relatives N3 N

Senior officers and their relatives N# Nit



TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED [FORMERLY KNOWRN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED} {CIN - U65910MH1992PLC187184)
Notes forming part of financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

51, The Company transfer standard loans through Direct Assignment route. Following table provide the details of loan transferred during the year ended March 31, 2024

(% in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended March  For the year ended
31 March 31
2024 2023

Number of transactions 13 ]
Number of loans assigned 32,819 14,430
Aggragate principal outstanding amount of loens assigned * 4382,27.86 1812,92.00
Sale consideration 3544,05.07 1361,62.00
Weighted average restdual maturity {months) 39.38 30.46
Weighted average holding period (months) 9.88 9,73
Retention of beneficial economic interest 438,22.79 151,30.60
Tangible security coverage 100% 100%
Rating wise distribution of rated ioans assigned NA NA
Number of instances {transactions} of replacing the transferred loans NA NA
Number of transferred loans replaced NA NA

* indicates 100% principal outstanding amount as on loan assignment date

**Exciuding deal under co-lending arrangement of % 793,19 Lakhs {Bank contribution is % 634,55 takhs} for the year March 31, 2024 and

%113,03 Lakhs {Bank contribution is ¥ 5043,00 Lakhs) for the year March 31, 2023,

52, Fraud

As raguired by Reserve Bank of India circular No RBI/2011-12/424 DNBS.PDLCC. No. 256 /03.10.042 / 2011-12 dated March 02, 2012 on monitoring of frauds, the Company
has reported fraud amounting to  3,78.92 lakhs during year ended March 31, 2024 (during the year ended March 31, 2023 % 52.26 lakhs) through form FMR 1.

53. Unhedged foreign currency exposure

There is no Unhedged foreign currency exposure as on March 31, 2024, The Company in past has issued ECBs which are fully hedged as per Risk Management Policy.

54, Breach of Covenant
There is no breach of covenant for any borrowings undertaken by the Company.
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TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN -

1J65910MH1992PLC187184)

Schedule to the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company

{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015)

(Disclosure as per Annexure 1 of Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding} Companies Prudential Norms

Liabilities side: {Z in lakhs)
1 Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial Company inclusive of Amount Amount
interest accrued thereon but not paid: outstanding overdue
(a} Debentures
: Secured 82,87.08 -
: Unsecured (Note-1) 3884,35.92 -
{other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(b} Deferred credits - -
{c} Termloans 22317,61.44 -
{d} Inter-corporate loans and borrowings - -
(e} Commercial papers (Note-2) 1072,70.57 -
{fy Other Loans
- Working capital demand loan (secured}) 2740,00.00 -
- Working capital demand loan {unsecured) 174,50.00
- Cash Credit from banks 143,03.94 -
- Collaterat debt obligation - -
Assets Side : {Z in lakhs)
2 Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those Amount
inciuded in (4} below]: Outstanding
(a} Secured 30862,72.47
(b} Unsecured 1597,44.86
(% in lakhs)
3 Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets towards AFC activities Amount

Qutstanding

(i} Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
(a) Financial [ease

(i) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
(a)  Assets on hire
{b} Repossessed Assets
{iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
{a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b}  Loans cther than {a) above

193,91.44

134,07.34
32132,18.55




TATA MOTORS FINANCE EIMITED {FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) {CIN -

U65910MH1992PLC187184)

Schedule to the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company

{X in lakhs)

(4} Break-up of Investments:

Amount

Outstanding

Current lnvestments:

1 Quoted:

(i)

{i)

{ii)
{ifi}
(iv)
{v)

Shares : {a) Equity *

(b} Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds
Government Securities
Others

Investment in Senior Pass Through Certificates
2 Unqguoted:

Shares : {a) Equity

{b) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds
Government Securities
Others

Long Term Investments:

1 Quoted:

(i)

(i)
(i)
{iv)
(v

Shares : {a) Equity

{b) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds
Government Securities
QOthers

2 Unquoted:

(B}

(i)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

* Includes investments which are classified as asset held for szle

Shares : (a) Equity

(b} Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds
Government Securities
Others

6,26.82

300,38.96
159,59.93

885,43.33

1097,33.28

72,57.67
40.00

5,02.28

(5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above :

(% in lakhs)

Category

Amount net of provisions

Secured

Unsecured

Total

1 Reiated Parties

{a)
{&)
{c)

Subsidiaries

Companies in the same group

Other related parties

2 Other than related parties

Total

93,85.03

30552,76.43

135,64.66

1673,91.21

233,49.68

32226,67.64

30646,61.46

1813,55.87

32460,17.33




TATA MOTORS FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS TATA MOTORS FINANCE SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (CIN -
U65910MH1992P1C187184}
Scheduie to the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company

(6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current and long term} in shares and securities (both quoted and

unquoted);
(%X in lakhs)

Category Market Value/ Break Book Value {Net of Provision)
up or fair value or NAV '

1 Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - -
{b}  Companiesin the same group 968,41.00 968,41.00
(c) Other related parties - -

2 Other than Related Parties

Quoted .
Investment in Equity Shares * 6,26.82 6,26.82
Unquoted

Investment in non-convertible debentures - -
Investment in units of mutual fund 300,38.95 300,38.96
Others 1261,95.49 1261,95.49
Total 2537,02.27 2537,02.27

{7} Other information

Particulars
(i} Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties -
(b} Other than related parties 1974,81.55
(i) Net Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related parties -
{b)  Other than related parties 1084,75.86
(i} Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -
* Includes investments which are classified as asset heid for sale

Note 1: includes Zero coupon debentures of X 1202,84.97 fakhs, net of unamortised premium on redemption and unamartised
borrowing cost of  196,18.43 lakhs.

Note 2: Commercial Paper of ¥ 1072,70.57 lakhs are net of unamortised discounting charges and unamortised borrowing cost
amounting to £ 27,29.43 lakhs. '
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